
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

BUSINESS MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

MONDAY 6TH JANUARY, 2014 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF BUSINESS MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Hugh Rayner 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Brian Salinger 
 

Councillors 
 

Maureen Braun 
Jack Cohen 
Brian Gordon 
 

John Hart 
Kath McGuirk 
Alison Moore 
 

Rowan Quigley Turner 
Barry Rawlings 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Geoffrey Johnson 
John Marshall 
 

Susette Palmer 
Lord Palmer 
 

Brian Schama 
Alan Schneiderman 
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Nathan – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Andrew Charlwood  020 8359 2014 

andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

1 - 6 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Interests  
 

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non Pecuniary Interests 

b) Whipping Arrangements (in accordance with Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17) 

 

4.   Public Question Time (if any)  
 

 

5.   Members' Items  
 

(submitted in accordance with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rule 9) (if any) 

 

 Call-in  
 

 

6.   Any matters Referred by Members of the Committee relating to 
key decisions made by:  
 

Cabinet Resources Committee 16 December 2013 ;or 
Any action taken by Cabinet Member(s) and /or Directors/Chief 
Officers under delegated powers (Executive Functions) 

 

 Councillor Calls for Action  
 

 

7.   Councillor Calls for Action  
 

(Submitted in accordance  with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure  
Rule 22) (if any) 

 

 Business of the Committee  
 

 

8.   Interim Update Report on the Growth and Regeneration 
Programme  
 

7 - 42 

9.   Housing Strategy  
 

43 - 102 

10.   Parking Policy Task and Finish Group  
 
 
 
 

103 - 108 



 
 

 

   

11.   Task and Finish Groups / Scrutiny Panels - Recommendation 
Tracking  
 

109 - 140 

12.   Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme  
 

141 - 154 

13.   Any Other Items the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Andrew 
Charlwood  020 8359 2014 andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing 
difficulties who have a text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All 
of our Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 
Decisions of the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
18 November 2013 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor Hugh Rayner (Chairman) 

Councillor Brian Salinger (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor Maureen Braun 
Councillor Jack Cohen 
Councillor Brian Gordon 
Councillor John Hart 
 

Councillor Alison Moore 
Councillor Rowan Quigley Turner 
Councillor Barry Rawlings 
Councillor Alan Schneiderman  
(In place of Kath McGuirk) 
 

 
Also in attendance 

Councillor Richard Cornelius - Leader of the Council 
Councillor Daniel Thomas - Deputy Leader of the Council / Cabinet Member for 

Resources and Performance 
Councillor Helena Hart - Cabinet Member for Public Health 

Councillor David Longstaff - Cabinet Member for Safety and Resident Engagement 
Councillor Robert Rams – Cabinet Member for Customer Access and Partnerships 

 
 

Apologies for Absence 
 

     Councillor Kath McGuirk 
  
 

 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2013 be approved. 
 
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Kath McGuirk who was 
substituted for by Councillor Alan Schneiderman. 
 
 

3. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS  
 

Member  Subject Interest declared 

Councillor Hugh Rayner Minute Items 6 - 9 (Call-
ins – Pavilion Way HA8 
Proposed Disposal) 

Non-pecuniary interest 
by nature of his wife 
being of Chinese 
descent  

 

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

 

 
During consideration of the item below, Councillor Quigley Turner entered the meeting at 
7.07pm 
 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS  
 
Details are appended of the questions asked of, and the answers given by the Chairman. 
Verbal responses were given to supplementary questions at the meeting. 
 
 

5. MEMBERS' ITEMS  
 
None. 
 
 

6. CALL-INS  
 
Cabinet Resources Committee, 4 November 2013 
 
The Committee considered a call-in in the name of Councillor Alison Moore of the 
following decision of the Cabinet Resources Committee: 
  

Decision Item: Subject: 

6 Report of the Deputy Leader of the Council / Cabinet 
Member for Resources and Performance  

Pavilion Way HA8 Proposed Disposal (Public) 

 
The Committee received public comments on this item from Andrew Dismore AM, Roger 
Lyons and Deryll David. 
 
Andrew Dismore AM presented the Chairman with 43 signed slips from residents 
claiming the benefit of a covenant at Pavilion Way.   The Chairman requested that these 
be passed to the relevant Council officers. 
 
The Committee asked questions of the Deputy Leader of the Council / Cabinet Member 
for Resources and Performance in respect of the decision. 
 
 

7. MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
Cabinet Resources Committee, 4 November 2013 
 

Decision Item: Subject: 

18 Report of the Deputy Leader of the Council / Cabinet 
Member for Resources and Performance  

Pavilion Way HA8 Proposed Disposal (Exempt) 

 
The Committee RESOLVED to exclude the press and public for the following reason: 

2



 

 

 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded 
from the meeting on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 5 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended) 
as it contains information which a claim to legal professional proceedings could be 
maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
RESOLVED that the exempt information set out in Pavilion Way HA8 Proposed 
Disposal exempt report to the Cabinet Resources Committee on 4 November 2013 
be taken into account by the Committee when reaching the decision regarding 
whether to refer the decision back to the decision maker. 
 
 

8. MOTION TO RE-ADMIT THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED that the press and public be readmitted. 
 
 

9. CALL-INS  
 

Decision Item: Subject: 

6 Report of the Deputy Leader of the Council / Cabinet 
Member for Resources and Performance  

Pavilion Way HA8 Proposed Disposal (Public) 

 
Following consideration of the call-in, the Committee decided to refer the decision back 
to Cabinet Resources Committee for reconsideration. 
 
RESOLVED that the Cabinet Resources Committee decision dated 4 November 
2013 in relation to Pavilion Way HA8 Proposed Disposal be referred back to 
Cabinet Resources Committee for reconsideration for the following reasons: 
 
1. To request that the Cabinet Resources Committee address the risk of the 

restrictive covenant restricting progress of the free school scheme on the 
site. 
 

2. To allow time for a community use only bid to be developed and considered. 
 
 

i) Cabinet Resources Committee, 4 November 2013 
 
The Committee considered a call-in in the name of Councillor Barry Rawlings of the 
following decision of the Cabinet Resources Committee: 
 

Decision Item: Subject: 

7 Report of the Cabinet Member for Customer Access and 
Partnerships, Cabinet Member for Public Health and 
Cabinet Member for Environment  

Sport and Physical Activity Review Outline Business Case 

3



 

 

 
RESOLVED that the decision is not referred back to the Cabinet Resources 
Committee. 
 
 

10. COUNCILLOR CALLS FOR ACTION  
 
None. 
 
 

11. INTERIM UPDATE REPORT ON THE GROWTH AND REGENERATION 
PROGRAMME  
 
RESOLVED that the Interim Update Report on the Growth and Regeneration 
Programme be deferred until the next meeting of the Committee on 6 January 
2014. 
 
 

12. DRAFT EQUALITIES POLICY AND ‘COMMUNITIES TOGETHER’ ACTION PLAN  
 
The Committee welcomed the Leader of the Council, the Cabinet Member for Safety and 
Resident Engagement and the Strategic Director for Communities who were in 
attendance to present the Council’s draft Equalities Policy and ‘Communities Together’ 
Action Plan. 
 
Members were informed that the Equalities Policy was being refreshed as part of the 
development of the updated Corporate Plan to enable the development of strategic 
equalities objectives.   
 
In relation to the Communities Together Action Plan, the Committee were advised that a 
Communities Together Network had been developed (a sub-group of the Safer 
Communities Partnership Board) which was aimed at improving the coordinated 
response of public agencies to local incidents such as the Muswell Hill Mosque arson 
attack.  
 
The Committee expressed their support for the Equalities Policy and ‘Communities 
Together’ Action Plan and requested that the Equalities Policy be reported to Council to 
raise awareness. 
 
RESOLVED that:- 

 
1. The Committee endorse the Equalities Policy and ‘Communities Together’ 

Action Plan 
 

2. The Committee recommend that final version of the Equalities Policy be 
reported to full Council to raise awareness. 
  

3. Officers be requested to provide a detailed breakdown of the data supporting 
the statistic that ‘47% of residents feel the council doesn’t do enough for 
people like me analysed by protected characteristics’.  

 
 
 

4



 

 

 
13. BUSINESS MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 

PROGRAMME  
 
RESOLVED that:- 
 
1. The Committee note the Forward Work Programme. 
 
2. Officers be requested to develop proposals for scrutiny of the North London 

Waste Authority 
 
 

14. ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
At the request of the Committee, Officers reported that a written update on the Walksafe 
N14 Petition would be circulated to Members via e-mail outside of the meeting. 
 
Members also requested that a written update on the progress of the Task and Finish 
Groups approved to proceed by the Committee on 7 October 2013 be circulated.   
 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 10.00 pm 
 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 6 January 2014 

Subject Interim Update Report on the Growth 
and Regeneration Programme 

Report of Leader of the Council 

Summary of Report The report seeks to update Committee on the 
progress being made towards delivering the 
Borough’s regeneration schemes and skills and 
enterprise activities, including key achievements and 
successes in the last twelve months as well as 
expected activities to end March 2014. 

 

 
Officer Contributors Tony Westbrook, Head of Regeneration 

Susan Curran, Interim Regeneration Programme 
Manager 

Sandra Perez, Regeneration Programme 
Management Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected Colindale, Burnt Oak, West Hendon, Edgware, 
Golders Green, Childs Hill 
 

Function of Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Enclosures Appendix One – Interim update report on the Growth 
and Regeneration Programme 

 
Contact for Further 
Information: 

 
Tony Westbrook, Head of Regeneration Tel: 020 
8359 7381 

 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

7



 

1. RECOMMENDATION  
 
1.1 That Committee consider the attached interim update report (Appendix 

One – Interim update report on the Growth and Regeneration 
Programme) and note that the annual report on the Growth and 
Regeneration Programme will be submitted to Cabinet Resources 
Committee in February 2014. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 

Cricklewood and Brent Cross Regeneration Scheme 
 

2.1 Cabinet, 26 April 2004 (decision item 8) –adoption of the Cricklewood, Brent 
Cross and West Hendon Development Framework as Supplementary 
Planning Guidance. 

 
2.2 Cabinet, 29 March 2005 (decision item 5) – approval of the terms of 

Cricklewood and Brent Cross Collaboration Agreement. 
 
2.3 Cabinet Resources Committee, 18th April 2013 – the Committee noted that 

the Development Partners intend to submit a planning application to vary the 
existing planning permission to allow re-phasing in November 2013, and agree 
that the Director for Place begin preparations to enable the Council to procure 
a development partner to deliver the regeneration of the southern parts of 
Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration Area. 

 
2.4 Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 2 May 2013, 

resolution amongst other items, that the Committee receive an annual report 
on the Brent Cross / Cricklewood Scheme to update the Committee on the 
progress.  

 
Dollis Valley Estate Regeneration Scheme  
 

2.5 Cabinet Resources Committee, 7 November 2011 (Decision 5) – authorised 
the entering into of a Principal Development Agreement for the regeneration of 
Dollis Valley, subject to the Deputy Chief Executive being satisfied as to the 
terms of such agreements and the Assistant Director-Legal, or authorised 
delegate, being satisfied as to the form of such agreements. 

 
2.6 Cabinet Resources Committee, 24th September 2013 (Decision 8) – 

authorised, amongst other items, that a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) 
be made pursuant to the powers contained in Section 226 (1) (a) of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 in respect of all non-Council owned property and other 
proprietary interests in the Dollis Valley Regeneration Area. 

 
 Colindale and Grahame Park Estate Regeneration Scheme 
 

2.7 Cabinet, 24 July 2006 (Decision item 5) – authorised entering into a Principal 
Development Agreement for the regeneration of the Grahame Park area. 

 
 
 
 

8



 

 Granville Road Estate Improvement Scheme 
 

2.8  Cabinet Resources Committee, 18 October 2012 (Decision Item 7) – 
authorised the appointment of Mulalley/One Housing Consortium comprising 
of Mulalley & Co Limited, CHA Ventures Limited and, as guarantor with CHA 
Ventures Limited, Sherrygreen Limited (Bidder B) as the Council's preferred 
development partner to take forward their Option 1 for the Granville Road, 
NW2, New Housing Development Scheme. 

 
Mill Hill East Regeneration Scheme 
 

2.9 Cabinet, 29 November 2010 (Decision item 14) – approved the Council 
entering into a Limited Liability Partnership and Co-operation Agreement 
(instead of a landowners agreement) on Mill Hill East subject to a number of 
conditions. 

 
 Stonegrove and Spur Road Estates Regeneration Scheme 
 

2.10 Cabinet, 18 June 2007 (Decision Item 6) – approved the final terms of the 
Principal Development Agreement and legal arrangements for the 
regeneration of the Stonegrove and Spur Road estates and resolved to make 
a Compulsory Purchase Order. 

 
 West Hendon Estate Regeneration Scheme  
 

2.11 Cabinet, 30 August 2005 (Decision Item 5) – authorised the entering into a 
Principal Development Agreement for the regeneration of the West Hendon 
area.  

 
2.12 Cabinet Resources Committee, 18th April 2013 (Decision item 15) – agreed, 

amongst other items, the Heads of Terms for the Deed of Variation to the 
West Hendon Principal Development Agreement. 

 
 Skills and Enterprise Activities 
 

2.13 Delegated Powers Report, 23 September 2011 (number 1,443) – the Interim 
Director for Planning, Housing and Regeneration authorised the Council to 
enter into an agreement with the Greater London Authority which will provide 
the Council with a grant of up to £416,685 to fund a range of physical 
improvements and capability building initiatives for local traders, aimed at 
delivering economic uplift to Chipping Barnet Town Centre. 

 
2.14 Delegated Powers Report, 7 November 2011 (number 1,467) - the Interim 

Director for Planning, Housing and Regeneration authorised for the London 
Borough of Barnet to enter into a Tripartite Agreement with London Councils 
and Greater London Enterprise Ltd, relating to all aspects of the two year 
funding and delivery of an European Social Fund Match Funded Employment 
Project, towards an extension of the WorkFinder job brokerage pilot. 
Authorisation also given to release £180,000 of Section 106 and £25,000 of 
London Borough of Barnet monies, as match funding towards this European 
Social Fund Employment Project and the two year WorkFinder. 

  
2.15 Cabinet, 20 June 2012 (Decision Item 6) - approval of The Barnet Skills, 

Employment and Enterprise Action Plan; and the NEET Platforms package of 
support to help young people into employment, including support to local 
businesses. 

9



 

 
2.16 Delegated Powers Report, 30 August 2012 (number 1,773) – the Leader of 

the Council authorised for the Council to enter into an agreement with the 
Greater London Authority which will provide the Council with a grant of up to 
£1,074,060 for North Finchley town centre and £1,676,625 for Cricklewood 
town centre to fund a range of physical improvements to the public realm and 
its de-cluttering as well as broader initiatives to support the area, aimed at 
delivering economic uplift. Round two must be delivered by 31st March 2014. 

 
 General 
 

2.17 Cabinet, 14th September 2011 (Decision item 7) – approved the Regeneration 
Strategy, which provides an overview of current regeneration in the borough 
and sets out the strategic objectives for the successful future delivery of the 
regeneration schemes. 

 
2.18 Cabinet Resources Committee, 28 February 2012 (Decision Item 17) – agreed 

the findings of the Regeneration Review and the proposed next steps (as set 
out in the detailed Action Plan attached as Appendix A to the report).  

 
2.19 Cabinet Resources Committee, 17th December 2012 (Decision item 11) - 

endorsed the general progress being made towards delivering the Borough’s 
regeneration schemes and skills and enterprise activities, including key wins, 
achievements and successes in the last twelve months as well as current 
challenges and expected activities in 2013. 

 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The regeneration of the Council’s regeneration estates and skills and 

enterprise activities contribute to the delivery of the Corporate Plan 2013-2016 
outcome ‘to maintain the right environment for a strong and diverse local 
economy’.  The four priorities under this outcome are: regenerating priority 
areas; improving skills and employment opportunities; engaging with 
businesses; and providing infrastructure to support growth. 

 
3.2 The estate regeneration programmes and skills and enterprise activities also 

support the ‘A Sustainable Community Strategy for Barnet 2010–2020’ 
through the following objectives:  

1. A new relationship with citizens - the new developments will offer more 
choice and promote independence by providing a number of different 
housing options such as shared ownership to residents and those in the 
wider community. The skills and enterprise agenda focuses on equipping 
residents and businesses with the tools and support to prosper and grow in 
Barnet. 

2. A one-public-sector approach - the Council is working together with other 
public sector partners to ensure the delivery of the programmes. 

3. A relentless drive for efficiency - the Council is working with development 
partners to ensure that the programmes are delivered in the most cost 
effective way.   

 

10



 

3.3 The regeneration schemes and skills and enterprise activities also comply with 
strategic objectives in the Council’s Housing Strategy 2010-2025 which 
include: 

1. Increasing housing supply, including family sized homes, to improve the 
range of housing choices and opportunities available to residents; and 

2. Promoting mixed communities and maximising opportunities available for 
those wishing to own their home. 

3. Supporting residents into employment. 
 
3.4 Furthermore, the regeneration schemes and skills and enterprise activities 

also comply with the strategic objectives in the Council’s Regeneration 
Strategy (September 2011), including: 

1. Enhance Barnet as a Successful London Suburb through delivery of 
quality new places and neighbourhoods in the areas of the borough in 
greatest need of investment and renewal  

2. Deliver sustainable housing growth and infrastructure, and improve the 
condition and sustainability of the existing housing stock 

3. Ensure residents in all areas of the borough can share in Barnet’s success 
while taking responsibility for the well-being of their families and their 
communities 

4. Promote economic growth by encouraging new business growth while 
supporting local businesses and town centres 

5. Help residents to access the right skills to meet employer needs and take 
advantage of new job opportunities  

 
3.5 Finally, the regeneration schemes and skills and enterprise activities are a key 

component of ‘A Growth Strategy for Barnet’. The strategy sets out the 
Council’s commitment to mitigating the impact of continued austerity by 
creating the environment for growth in the local economy. The regeneration 
and enterprise activities are key drivers for growth as they bring significant 
investment in infrastructure, create new jobs and homes, support residents 
into work, reinvigorate communities, improve living standards and support 
local town centres. 

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Despite the challenging economic climate over the past five years, the Council 

has continued to progress the physical regeneration schemes. 
 
4.2 The viability of each of the physical regeneration projects is substantially 

dependent on the performance of the housing market over the lifetime of the 
developments. The recent poor economic climate and the slow recovery in the 
housing and finance markets added risks on the estate regeneration schemes’ 
ability to progress in the timescales originally envisaged. The risk attached to 
this is that the Housing Revenue Account may have to maintain properties on 
the estates for longer than originally envisaged and costs to be recovered will 
be delayed. Principal Development Agreements are in place on Grahame 
Park, West Hendon, Stonegrove and Spur Road and Dollis Valley 

11



 

regeneration estates. Economic sensitivity review mechanisms have been 
included in the Principal Development Agreements. 

 
4.3 In July 2001 the department for transport, local government and the regions 

issued guidance to local authorities on meeting ‘decent homes’ standards. The 
Council was advised that on the basis of the known data the homes on the 
priority regeneration estates would fail to meet the required standard. In 
response to the need to address heating, condensation and general structural 
repairs problems and the modernisation requirements for the homes on these 
estates, the Council decided to embark on programmes to regenerate these 
estates to provide well designed, quality and efficient homes. If the estate 
regeneration schemes do not proceed and complete the Council will be 
required to bring the remaining properties up to Decent Homes Standard for 
which there is no current financial provision.  

 
4.4 The Council’s development partners are currently responsible for a substantial 

proportion of Council costs in delivering regeneration schemes. The Principal 
Development Agreements set out the framework for these costs being 
recovered at later stages of the regeneration projects. These costs include, but 
are not limited to, the legal costs associated with setting up the Principal 
Development Agreements, the costs of making and implementing Compulsory 
Purchase Orders, statutory Home Loss and Disturbance payments to secure 
tenants required to move, Resident Independent Advisors and cost 
consultancy advice. If the developer defaults on these payments or the 
projects do not proceed to stages specified within the Principal Development 
Agreements, then the Council will not be able to recover the costs already 
incurred. It is not possible to mitigate against this risk. 

 
4.5 The Council also has obligations under the Principal Development 

Agreements; if the Council fails to fulfil these obligations for each scheme, it 
may be liable for damages and other financial liabilities given the investment in 
the regeneration schemes by the Council’s developer partners. Thus, the 
Council will need to ensure that it puts in place, appropriate structures and 
resources to enable its obligations within the Principal Development 
Agreements to be met.   

 
4.6 The Outer London Funded Town Centre projects required the Council to take 

on a level of financial risk by undertaking a grant agreement and the 
subsequent delivery of the works included in the project. The Council is 
obliged to fund the costs of delivering the project objectives in the first 
instance, prior to being reimbursed by the GLA by the end of 2013/14.  

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the Council has a legislative duty 

to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; 
advancing equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without; and promoting good relations between those 
with protracted characteristics and those without.  The ‘protected 
characteristics’ are ages, race, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy 
and maternity, religion or belief and sexual orientation.  The ‘protected 

12



 

characteristics’ also include marriage and civil partnership, with regard to 
eliminating discrimination. 

 
5.2 The Council is committed to improving the quality of life and wider participation 

for all the economic, educational, cultural, and social and community life in the 
Borough.  This is achieved by pursuing successful regeneration of the 
Borough’s regeneration areas.  This will benefit all sections of society and the 
Borough’s diverse communities who are seeking housing and contribute to 
addressing the shortage of housing in the Borough across all tenures. 

 
5.3 The regeneration schemes, not including Mill Hill East and Colindale, will 

deliver a mix of approximately 14,000 affordable, intermediate and private sale 
flats and houses. The developments will also provide new community facilities 
and commercial units for business to rent or lease. The council will have 100 
per cent nomination rights to the new affordable housing on the housing estate 
regeneration schemes and re-housing offers will be made to all the existing 
secure tenants on the existing housing estates who live in a property to be 
demolished. Thus the regeneration schemes will provide new areas of mixed 
tenure housing that will make these parts of the borough better place to live 
and contributing to improved community cohesion in areas with highly diverse 
populations. 

 
5.4 The Equalities Impact Assessments for each scheme are being reviewed to 

ensure a consistent approach is implemented across the Regeneration 
Programme. This will be agreed and included in the annual report on the 
Growth and Regeneration Programme will be submitted to Cabinet Resources 
Committee in February 2014. 

 
5.5 The Skills, Employment and Enterprise Action Plan has the main aim of 

addressing unemployment and deprivation through specific initiatives to 
support our most vulnerable residents. It also aims to support business and 
employment growth.  

 
5.6 Also included in the Skills, Employment and Enterprise programme is our work 

on town centres.  The Outer London Funded town centre projects support 
Barnet’s aspiration to create the right environment for vibrant and viable town 
centres in the borough. Integral to this is the need to respect the diversity of 
the town centre network and to take into account the different requirements of 
each town centre, and the different needs and preferences of those who use 
them. The actions aim to deliver economic uplift to the area, the benefits of 
which can be shared by all those who live, work and use the North Finchley 
and Cricklewood town centres. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 Finance 
 
6.1.1 The Council’s development partners are currently responsible for a substantial 

amount of the Council’s costs to bring these schemes to fruition. The Principal 
Development Agreements allow the Council to recover its costs at certain 
stages of the regeneration projects  

 

13



 

6.1.2 On each scheme, the Council’s costs are budgeted and recorded on a 
quarterly basis, and are invoiced either quarterly or towards the end of each 
financial year, depending on the terms of the agreement with the development 
partner. 

 
6.1.3 In order to receive the Outer London Funding for Cricklewood and North 

Finchley, the Council was required to provide an element of match funding. 
Details of this were set out in the Delegated Powers Report, 30 August 2012 
(number 1,773). 

   
6.2 Performance and Value for Money 
 
6.2.1 The Council and its development partners have obligations within the 

respective Principal Development Agreements to maintain a transparent and 
open book approach to the management and monitoring of each development. 
The Council has the right to access management accounts and other relevant 
documentation to ensure that information being provided in connection with 
financial matters is accurate and accords with ‘Value for Money’ criteria.  

 
6.3 Property 
 
6.3.1 The Principal Development Agreements for each of the estate regeneration 

schemes commit the Council, subject to certain pre-conditions, to the phased 
disposal of all land and property owned by the Council within the area for 
redevelopment to its respective developer partners, as and when certain pre-
conditions and processes are satisfied, and subject to appropriate consent 
from the Secretary of State. In general the land will be disposed of at nil value. 
Where the land/property has been specifically acquired by the Council to 
enable the regeneration schemes to proceed (for example, properties 
acquired because of hardship, or pursuant to Compulsory Purchase Orders), 
then all costs incurred by the Council in these acquisitions will be reimbursed 
as project costs. If the regeneration schemes yield profits above agreed 
thresholds, the Council will generally receive a share of the eventual profits 
known as overage.   

 
6.4 Procurement, Staffing, IT and Sustainability 
 
6.4.1 There are no issues to report around Procurement, Staffing, IT and 

Sustainability.  
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 All of the Council’s regeneration schemes are regulated and governed by 

Development Agreements. Each of these Development Agreements are long 
term, legally binding agreements, under which, all parties, usually made up of 
the Council, a Private Sector Limited Company and a Registered Provider as 
well as any Special Purpose Vehicles or subsidiaries of the development 
partners required for the delivery of the schemes, have obligations and 
responsibilities which in the event they are not fulfilled could give rise to legal 
liabilities.  

 
7.2 Most of the Development Agreements and ancillary documents have were 

made pursuant to the now defunct , “well being power” under Section 2 of the 

14



 

Local Government Act 2000, whilst the more recent ones have been or are 
being entered into pursuant to the general power of competence  provisions of  
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
7.3 The Outer London Funded projects in Cricklewood and North Finchley 

required the Council to enter into legally binding agreements with the Greater 
London Authority for the period of the two-year Grant.  

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 Council Constitution, Part 3, Responsibility for Functions – Section 3.6 details 

the functions of the Cabinet Resources Committee which includes all matters 
relating to land and buildings owned, rented or proposed to be acquired or 
disposed of by the Council. 

 
8.2 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 

2, Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.3 The Terms of Reference of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are set out 

in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution). 
 
8.4 Item 8 of the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms 

of Reference states that its role is: 
 
 “To have responsibility for the review of the policy framework and 

development of policy and strategy not within the remit of other overview and 
scrutiny committees”. 

 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 An external review of the Council’s Regeneration Service was undertaken in 

2011. At its meeting on 28 February 2012, Cabinet Resources Committee 
agreed the findings of the Regeneration Review and the proposed next steps 
which included a recommendation for reporting on the regeneration schemes 
and skills and enterprise activities by way of an annual progress report. The 
rationale for an annual report was to provide momentum and an opportunity to 
report success, rather than the minutiae of delivery.   

 
9.2 The first annual Regeneration Report was considered by Cabinet Resources 

Committee on 17th December 2012.  The Committee endorsed the general 
progress being made towards delivering the Borough’s regeneration schemes 
and skills and enterprise activities, including key wins, achievements and 
successes in the last twelve months as well as current challenges and 
expected activities in 2013. 

 
9.3 From 1st October 2013, the Council’s Regeneration Service was outsourced, 

as part of the development and regulatory services, to Re, the joint venture 
between Capita and the Council. The intention is to alter the timing of the 
Regeneration Annual Report to match the contractual cycle.   

 

15



 

9.4 The report attached in Appendix One, provides an interim update to the 
Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the progress 
being made towards delivering the Borough’s regeneration schemes and skills 
and enterprise activities, including key achievements and successes in the last 
twelve months as well as expected activities to end March 2014. 

 
9.5 A further briefing on the Growth & Regeneration Programme will presented to 

Members at the Member Development Forum on 28th November 2013. 
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) AD 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) MA/AK 

 

16



G
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

In
te

ri
m

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

2
0

1
2

–
2

0
1

3

17



In
d
e
x
 o

f 
M

u
lt
ip

le
 D

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
, 
2
0
1
0

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
O

N
S

 L
S

O
A

K
e

y
 F

a
c

ts

      

B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
s 

lo
w

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
s,

 b
u

t 

b
e

ca
u

se
 i

t 
is

 a
 l

a
rg

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 a
b

so
lu

te
 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 a
re

 r
e

la
ti

v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

  

  T
h

e
 e

co
n

o
m

y
 i

s 
d

o
m

in
a

te
d

 b
y

 

m
ic

ro
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s,
 m

a
in

ly
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 t

o
 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

th
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 t
o

 c
o

n
su

m
e

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
is

 g
ro

w
in

g
. 

   T
h

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i

s 
h

ig
h

ly
 s

k
il

le
d

 w
it

h
 a

 h
ig

h
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

ls
 

8
.7

%
U

N
E

M
P

LO
Y

M
E

N
T

R
A

T
E

8
9

.9
%

P
R

O
P

O
R

T
IO

N
 O

F

M
IC

R
O

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
E

S

4
9

.9
%

A
D

U
LT

S
 Q

U
A

LI
F

IE
D

T
O

 L
E

V
E

L 
4 

O
R

 H
IG

H
E

R

b
u

t 

lu
te

 

n
e

sss
 t

o
 

o
f 

o
w

inn
g

.

h
ig

hh

B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 a

n
 a

ff
lu

e
n

t 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

b
u

t 
th

is
 c

a
n

 m
a

sk
 t

h
e

 p
o

ck
e

ts
 o

f 
d

e
p

ri
va

ti
o

n
 l

o
ca

te
d

 

m
o

st
ly

 a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 w

e
st

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
E

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

st
a

in
a

b
le

 r
e

n
e

w
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
se

 a
re

a
s 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 
g

ro
w

th
 

is
 

th
e

 
fo

cu
s 

o
f 

o
u

r 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 
n

e
w

ly
 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 
R

e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
il

l 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
w

a
rd

 t
h

is
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 t

ra
n

sf
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

18



R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

!
E

n
h
a
n
c
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
s
 a

 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 S

u
b
u
rb

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 d

e
li

v
e
ry

 o
f 

q
u

a
li

ty
 n

e
w

 

p
la

c
e
s
 a

n
d

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
n
e
e
d
 o

f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l.

!
D

e
liv

e
r 

s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 i
n

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
.

!
E

n
s
u
re

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

ll 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 c

a
n
 s

h
a
re

 i
n

 B
a
rn

e
t’

s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s

w
h
ile

 

ta
k
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

!
P

ro
m

o
te

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 b
y
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 n

e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 w

h
ile

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
.

!
H

e
lp

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h

t 
s
k
il

ls
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
k
e
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 j
o
b
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
.

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

H
E

A
LT

H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 

W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

19



H
o

u
s

in
g

 &
 G

ro
w

th
 

(R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

n
ly

)

•
T

h
e

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
s
 w

a
s
 4

0
4

 u
n

it
s
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
. 
B

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

a
s
 4

6
9

 u
n

it
s
, 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 2

1
2

 w
e

re
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

. 

•
T

h
e

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 3
9

 p
ri
v
a

te
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 a

n
d

 0
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
, 
p

lu
s
 2

4
 u

n
it
s
 

o
f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

t 
M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t.
 

•
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 w

ill
 s

e
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
.

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 E

s
ta

te
s
 –

H
o

u
s
in

g
d

e
li
v
e
ry

 i
n

 2
0
1
2
/1

3

Q
tr

 1
 

Q
tr

 2
Q

tr
 3

Q
tr

 4
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 T

o
ta

ls

P
ri

v
a
te

 
1
2
9

2
0

0
1
0
8

2
5
7

In
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
3

3
0

2
8

3
4

R
e
n
te

d
3
6

5
0

1
3
7

1
7
8

T
o

ta
l

1
6
8

2
8

0
2
7
3

4
6
9

 -

 2
0
0

 4
0
0

 6
0
0

 8
0
0

 1
,0

0
0

 1
,2

0
0

 1
,4

0
0

A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

P
ri
v
a
te

20



R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

2
3

,5
0

0
+

N
E

W
 &

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T

 H
O

M
E

S
 IN

 T
H

E
 

R
E

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
IO

N
 E

S
TA

T
E

S
,

C
O

LI
N

D
A

LE
 A

R
E

A
 A

N
D

 

M
IL

L 
H

IL
L 

E
A

S
T

4
5

0
N

E
W

 J
O

B
S

 IN

N
E

X
T

 5
 Y

E
A

R
S

+
9

1
,5

0
9

S
Q

M
 O

F
 R

E
TA

IL
 &

 C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
S

P
A

C
E

 

D
E

LI
V

E
R

E
D

 IN
 B

R
E

N
T

 C
R

O
S

S
 S

H
O

P
P

IN
G

 C
E

N
T

R
E

1
0

S
C

H
O

O
LS

 A
C

R
O

S
S

P
R

IM
A

R
Y,

 S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y
 &

H
IG

H
E

R
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 L

E
V

E
LS

c
£

2
5

m
+

N
E

W
 H

O
M

E
S

 B
O

N
U

S

21



P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 H

ig
h

li
g

h
ts

!
B

re
n

t 
C

ro
s

s
 -

s
e

c
ti
o

n
 7

3
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 o

n
 1

1
th

O
c
to

b
e

r 

!
D

o
ll
is

 V
a

ll
e

y
–

S
1

0
6

 s
ig

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
s
e

n
t 
fo

r 
p

h
a

s
e

 1
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 (

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

!
G

ra
n

v
il
le

 R
o

a
d

-
R

e
v
is

e
d

 m
a

s
te

r 
p

la
n

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
n

 3
1

s
t
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3

!
S

to
n

e
g

ro
v
e

 S
p

u
r 

R
o

a
d

–
A

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 G

o
ld

 i
n

 Q
1

7
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
D

e
s
ig

n
 A

w
a

rd
 2

0
1

3

!
S

to
n

e
g

ro
v
e

 S
p

u
r 

R
o

a
d

–
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
d

 o
n

 p
h

a
s
e

 5
 (

A
c
a

d
e

m
y
 L

a
n

e
) 

a
n

d
 P

h
a

s
e

 6
B

 

(K
in

g
s
 M

e
w

s
) 

h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e
d

 (
e

n
d

 A
u

g
/S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

3
)

!
W

e
s

t 
H

e
n

d
o

n
–

P
&

E
 m

a
d

e
 r

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
ra

n
t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 -

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3

!
C

ri
c

k
le

w
o

o
d

 O
L

F
 -

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 O
u

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

F
u

n
d

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 M

o
b

ile
 T

o
w

n
 S

q
u

a
re

 a
n

d
 P

h
o

to
g

ra
p

h
y
 e

x
h

ib
it
io

n
.

!
N

o
rt

h
 F

in
c

h
le

y
 O

L
F

 -
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 w

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 M

a
y
o

r 
o

f 
L

o
n

d
o

n
’s

 D
e

s
ig

n
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 o
n

 

2
5

th
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r.

!
S

E
E

-
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 L

e
a

d
e

rs
 B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 
o

n
 1

7
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

-
7

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 
w

h
ile

 5
0

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

.

!
S

E
E

-
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 N

e
e

d
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 s

e
n

t 
o

u
t 
6

th
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
to

 2
,2

0
0

 S
M

E
s

22



B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s

 C
ri

c
k

le
w

o
o

d

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

5
0

 a
cr

e
s 

 

to
 c

re
a

te
 a

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
m

ix
e

d
 u

se
 a

n
d

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

  

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
; 

a
 k

e
y

 p
la

n
k

 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

  

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
th

 s
tr

a
te

g
y.

 

 D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
 

H
a

m
m

e
rs

o
n

 U
K

 P
LC

; 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 L

if
e

 I
n

ve
st

m
e

n
ts

; 

C
ri

ck
le

w
o

o
d

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 L
im

it
e

d
 

 K
E

Y
 D

E
LI

V
E

R
A

B
LE

S
 –

 N
e

x
t 

1
0

 y
e

a
rs

 
•

D
o

u
b

li
n

g
 B

re
n

t 
C

ro
ss

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
9

1
,5

0
9

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

sq
m

 o
f 

re
ta

il
 

a
n

d
 l

e
is

u
re

 s
p

a
ce

) 
•

C
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
, 

sp
a

n
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 C

ir
cu

la
r 

R
o

a
d

 
•

1
3

0
0

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s 

 
•

N
e

w
 l

a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
d

 p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 b
ri

d
g

e
 c

o
n

n
e

ct
in

g
 B

X
 a

n
d

 C
ri

ck
le

w
o

o
d

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
•

N
e

w
 b

u
s 

st
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

ve
d

 l
in

k
 t

o
 B

X
 T

u
b

e
 s

ta
ti

o
n

  
•

M
a

jo
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y

 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 e

.g
. 

M
1

 
•

N
e

w
 C

la
re

m
o

n
t 

S
ch

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

ve
d

 C
li

tt
e

rh
o

u
se

 P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

s 
 

•
3

,0
0

0
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 j

o
b

s 
 

•
2

,5
0

0
 -

 3
,0

0
0

  
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
jo

b
s 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 7
50

0 
ne

w
 

ho
m

es
 o

ve
r

sc
he

m
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

(P
ha

se
 1

,

co
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
69

8 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l u

ni
ts

, 
pl

us
 

62
 s

oc
ia

l r
en

t d
ec

an
t 

un
its

)

N
ew

 C
la

re
m

on
t 

P
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

C
lit

te
rh

ou
se

 P
la

yi
ng

 

fie
ld

s;
 R

ep
la

ce
 

W
hi

te
fie

ld
s 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 a

nd
 

M
ap

le
do

w
n 

S
ch

oo
ls

N
ew

 b
us

 s
ta

tio
n 

at
 

B
X

 s
ho

pp
in

g 
ce

nt
re

Im
pr

ov
ed

 li
nk

ag
es

 t
o 

B
re

nt
 C

ro
ss

 t
ub

e 

st
at

io
n

N
ew

 T
ha

m
es

lin
k 

st
at

io
n

D
ou

bl
e 

B
re

nt
 C

ro
ss

 

sh
op

pi
ng

 c
en

tr
e

U
p 

to
 2

7,
00

0 
ne

w
 

jo
bs

N
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

R
e-

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 

C
la

re
m

on
t P

ar
k

N
ew

 h
ea

lth
ca

re

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

N
ew

 w
as

te
 h

an
dl

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
y

C
om

bi
ne

d 
he

at
 a

nd
 

po
w

er
 p

la
nt

N
ew

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 

N
ew

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
ed

 

pu
bl

ic
 s

pa
ce

s

N
ew

 la
nd

sc
ap

ed
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
br

id
ge

7
,5

0
0

S
ch

e
m

e
 d

u
ra

ti
o

n
: 

2
0

-3
0

 y
e

a
rs

 

23



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

o
d

if
y

 t
h

e
 e

xi
st

in
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
 w

a
s 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 i
n

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
  
W

il
l 

b
e

 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 f

o
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y

 2
0

1
4

. 
 T

h
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

rs
 a

re
 a

im
in

g
 t

o
 

st
a

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e

 i
n

 2
0

1
7

, 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n

se
n

t.
 

•
 U

p
d

a
te

 w
il

l 
b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 o
n

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

s 
to

 p
ro

cu
re

 a
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

to
 d

e
li

ve
r 

th
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
o

u
th

e
rn

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 i
n

 J
a

n
 2

0
1

4
  

•
A

p
p

ro
va

l 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

ke
 a

 C
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

 P
u

rc
h

a
se

 O
rd

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
ir

st
 p

h
a

se
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 b
e

fo
re

 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

1
4

. 

 K
E

Y
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

•
S

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
a

 S
.7

3
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

o
d

if
y

 t
h

e
 e

xi
st

in
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
 i

n
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 

 K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

 
•

F
o

rm
a

li
se

d
 g

o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s.

  

•
R

e
p

o
rt

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

in
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
 o

n
 s

ch
e

m
e

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

B
re

n
t 

C
ro

s
s

 C
ri

c
k

le
w

o
o

d

O
U

T
P

U
T

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
 (

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
IF

E
T

IM
E

) 
•

In
 2

0
1

0
, 

a
n

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 B

re
n

t 
C

ro
ss

 h
e

a
d

 l
e

a
se

 h
a

s 
h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

g
u

la
ri

se
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
 r

e
n

t 
re

ce
iv

e
d

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 s
h

o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 

•
O

u
tl

in
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
se

n
t 

w
a

s 
g

ra
n

te
d

 i
n

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

N
/A

 –
P

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e

24



C
o

li
n

d
a

le

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

10
,1

70
  n

ew
 h

om
es

 

ac
ro

ss
va

rio
us

 s
ite

s

1,
20

0 
un

its
 a

t S
tu

de
nt

 

V
ill

ag
e

P
rim

ar
y,

 S
ec

on
da

ry
, 

H
ig

he
r 

an
d 

F
ur

th
er

 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

ch
oo

ls

M
id

dl
es

ex
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 

st
ud

en
t 

vi
lla

ge

A
A

P
 P

ha
se

 1
 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
pa

ck
ag

e

C
ol

lin
da

le
 tu

be
 

st
at

io
n;

 Im
pr

. 
P

ee
l 

C
en

tr
e 

Li
nk

 R
oa

d

N
ew

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n/

 c
yc

le
 

br
id

ge
 to

 th
e 

H
os

pi
ta

l 

si
te

N
ew

 r
et

ai
l, 

in
c.

 a
 

su
pe

rm
ar

ke
t, 

on

G
ra

ha
m

e 
P

ar
k

N
ew

 r
et

ai
l, 

pu
b 

&
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
en

tr
e 

at
 

B
ea

uf
or

t P
ar

k

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 li

br
ar

y 

an
d 

C
IL

 in
 B

ar
ne

t 

C
ol

le
ge

 B
ui

ld
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
tr

e,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

ac
tiv

ity
 

ce
nt

re
, 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

m
ee

tin
g 

ro
om

s 
an

d 

D
ay

 c
en

tr
e

H
ea

lth
 c

en
tr

e 
re

-

pr
ov

is
io

n 
at

 G
ra

ha
m

e 

P
ar

k.

A
he

al
th

 c
en

tr
e 

co
ul

d 

po
ss

ib
ly

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 

on
 th

e 
B

rit
is

h 
Li

br
ar

y 

(F
ai

rv
ie

w
) 

si
te

.

E
ne

rg
y 

C
en

tr
e

C
ol

in
da

le
, M

on
tr

os
e 

an
d 

S
ilk

st
re

am
 p

ar
ks

P
ub

lic
 r

ea
lm

 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t 

C
ol

in
da

le
 A

ve
 a

nd
 

G
ra

ha
m

e 
P

ar
k 

W
ay

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

2
0
0

6
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

8
2

0
0

9
2

0
1

0
2

0
1

1
2

0
1

2
2

0
1

3
2

0
1

4
2

0
1

5
2

0
1

6
2

0
1

7
2

0
1

8
2

0
1

9
2

0
2

0
2

0
2

1
2

0
2

2
2

0
2

3
2

0
2

4
2

0
2

5
2

0
2

6
2

0
2

7
2

0
2

8
2

0
2

9

1
0

,1
7

0

T
h

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 i
s 

ta
sk

e
d

 w
it

h
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

  

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

li
n

d
a

le
 A

A
P,

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
  

v
a

ri
o

u
s 

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

, 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 K
E

Y
 D

E
LI

V
E

R
A

B
LE

S
 

1
0

,1
7

0
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s 
&

 1
,2

0
0

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

u
n

it
s 

N
e

w
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 (
p

ri
m

a
ry

, 
se

co
n

d
a

ry
, 

h
ig

h
e

r 
&

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
) 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 &
 p

u
b

li
c 

re
a

lm
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 &
 h

e
a

lt
h

 f
a

ci
li

ti
e

s  

K
E

Y
 S

IT
E

S
 

•
Fa

ir
v
ie

w
 ‘

P
u

ls
e

’ 
/ 

‘R
h

y
th

m
’ 

•
B

ri
ti

sh
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

it
e

 

•
N

e
w

 H
e

n
d

o
n

 V
il

la
g

e
 

•
B

e
a

u
fo

rt
 P

a
rk

 

•
M

id
d

le
se

x 
U

n
i 

S
it

e
 

•
P

e
e

l 
C

e
n

tr
e

 S
it

e
 

•
B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

ll
e

g
e

 S
it

e
 

25



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 &

 m
a

jo
r 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 u
n

d
e

rw
a

y
 (

c7
0

0
 u

n
it

s 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 o

n
 s

it
e

) 

•
T

h
e

 M
e

tr
o

p
o

li
ta

n
 P

o
li

ce
 h

a
ve

 a
n

n
o

u
n

ce
d

 R
e

d
ro

w
 a

s 
th

e
ir

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

P
e

e
l 

C
e

n
tr

e
 s

it
e

 

 K
E

Y
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

•
C

A
A

P
 u

p
d

a
te

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
d

 

•
A

5
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
s 

st
u

d
y

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
d

 

•
C

o
li

n
d

a
le

 A
v.

 v
is

u
a

li
sa

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

d
 

 K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

 

•
P

e
e

l 
ce

n
tr

e
 p

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
a

g
re

e
d

 

•
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

ce
s 

st
ra

te
g

y
 

•
C

o
m

m
e

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

si
g

n
a

g
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

•
B

e
a

u
fo

rt
 P

a
rk

 S
1

0
6

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

c7
00

 u
ni

ts
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 

on
 s

ite
Ma

jor 
infr

ast
ruc

ture
 

inp
lan

nin
g s

tag
es

A5 
jun

ctio
ns 

stu
dy 

com
mis

sion
ed

Col
ind

ale
 Av

 
visu

alis
atio

n 
com

mis
sion

ed

Com
me

nce
me

nt o
f 

sign
age

pro
gra

mm
e

O
pe

n
sp

ac
es

 s
tr

at
eg

y

O
U

T
P

U
T

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
 (

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
IF

E
T

IM
E

) 

C
o

li
n

d
a

le

26



D
o

ll
is

 V
a

ll
e

y

D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
 

C
o

u
n

tr
ys

id
e

 P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s 
U

K
; 

L&
Q

 

 K
E

Y
 D

E
LI

V
E

R
A

B
LE

S
 

N
e

w
 s

u
b

u
rb

a
n

 a
re

a
 –

 5
0

%
 h

o
u

se
s 

/ 
5

0
%

 a
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 

6
1

6
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s 

A
p

p
re

n
ti

ce
sh

ip
s 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

N
e

w
 n

u
rs

e
ry

 &
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

p
a

ce
 

 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

61
6 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 

A
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 p
ar

ki
ng

 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 n

ew
 

ho
m

e 
pl

us
 v

is
ito

r 

pa
rk

in
g 

A
 n

ew
 e

xt
en

de
d 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r 

D
ol

lis
 V

al
le

y 

an
d 

 th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

ar
ea

s

P
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

ps
, 

w
or

k 

ta
st

er
s,

 p
la

ce
m

en
t 

da
ys

, 
no

n-
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

, E
S

O
L 

cl
as

se
s.

10
ap

pr
en

tic
es

hi
ps

 o
ve

r 

th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 

sc
he

m
e.

  
   

   
   

   
   

N
ew

 n
ur

se
ry

 (
25

 

nu
rs

er
y 

pl
ac

es
 f

or
 u

nd
er

 

5s
).

N
ew

 m
ul

ti-
pu

rp
os

e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

pa
ce

.

6
0
%

3
7
%

3
%

P
ri

v
a

te
 s

a
le

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le

S
h

a
re

d
 o

w
n
e

rs
h

ip

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

2
0
0

6
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

8
2

0
0

9
2

0
1

0
2

0
1

1
2

0
1

2
2

0
1

3
2

0
1

4
2

0
1

5
2

0
1

6
2

0
1

7
2

0
1

8
2

0
1

9
2

0
2

0
2

0
2

1
2

0
2

2
2

0
2

3
2

0
2

4
2

0
2

5
2

0
2

6
2

0
2

7
2

0
2

8
2

0
2

9

6
1

6

27



D
o

ll
is

 V
a

ll
e

y

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
O

n
 s

it
e

: 
P

h
a

se
 0

 E
xt

e
n

si
o

n
: 

3
9

 h
o

m
e

s;
 P

h
a

se
 1

b
(i

):
 1

4
3

 h
o

m
e

s 

•
P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y
 P

&
E

 o
n

 1
7

th
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

3
 

•
S

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
si

g
n

e
d

 

•
D

e
m

o
li

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ci

n
g

 e
n

d
-N

o
ve

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

•
C

o
m

m
e

n
ce

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 w
o

rk
s 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
  

 K
E

Y
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

•
S

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
si

g
n

e
d

 O
ct

 2
0

1
3

 

•
V

a
ca

n
t 

p
o

ss
e

ss
io

n
 o

f 
P

h
a

se
 1

 s
e

cu
re

d
 

•
C

P
O

 a
p

p
ro

va
l 
re

ce
iv

e
d

 f
ro

m
 L

B
B

 C
R

C
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

3
. 

 

•
P

re
p

a
ra

to
ry

 s
it

e
 w

o
rk

s 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

 

 K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

  

O
u

tp
u

ts
 f

ro
m

 P
h

a
se

 1
 w

il
l 

in
cl

u
d

e
: 

•
1

0
8

 u
n

it
s 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 

•
4

0
 u

n
it

s 
–

 s
o

ci
a

l 

•
6

8
 u

n
it

s 
p

ri
va

te
 s

a
le

 

O
U

T
P

U
T

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
 (

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
IF

E
T

IM
E

) 

N
/A

 –
P

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

28



G
ra

h
a

m
e

 P
a

rk

D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
 

G
e

n
e

si
s 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

  

 K
E

Y
 D

E
LI

V
E

R
A

B
LE

S
 

3
,4

4
0

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s 

B
a

rn
e

t 
co

ll
e

g
e

 r
e

-l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 

M
a

jo
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
ys

 a
n

d
 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 w

o
rk

s 

R
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
li

b
ra

ry
 &

 C
IL

 

 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

3,
44

0 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 

ho
m

es
, 

10
00

 n
ew

 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
, 2

00
0 

ne
w

 

pr
iv

at
e 

sa
le

B
ar

ne
t C

ol
le

ge
 to

 b
e 

re
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 P
lo

t A
8

M
aj

or
 h

ig
hw

ay
s 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

or
ks

 

re
qu

ire
d

S
om

e 
re

ta
il

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
Li

br
ar

y 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

ce
nt

re

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

A
ct

iv
ity

 

C
en

tr
e 

(G
re

en
to

p 

C
en

tr
e)

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e 
to

 b
e 

re
-p

ro
vi

de
d

H
ey

bo
ur

ne
 P

ar
k 

al
re

ad
y 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 

Ju
ly

 2
01

1

0

5
0

1
0
0

1
5
0

2
0
0

2
5
0

3
0
0

3
5
0

4
0
0

4
5
0

2
0
0

6
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

8
2

0
0

9
2

0
1

0
2

0
1

1
2

0
1

2
2

0
1

3
2

0
1

4
2

0
1

5
2

0
1

6
2

0
1

7
2

0
1

8
2

0
1

9
2

0
2

0
2

0
2

1
2

0
2

2
2

0
2

3
2

0
2

4
2

0
2

5
2

0
2

6
2

0
2

7
2

0
2

8
2

0
2

9

6
7

%

3
3

%
P

ri
v
a

te

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le

3
,4

4
0

29



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
O

n
 s

it
e

: 
P

h
a

se
 0

 E
xt

e
n

si
o

n
: 

3
9

 h
o

m
e

s;
 P

h
a

se
 1

b
(i

):
 1

4
3

 h
o

m
e

s 

•
F

in
a

l 
n

e
g

o
ti

a
ti

o
n

s 
to

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ce
 L

a
n

a
cr

e
 A

v.
 s

h
if

t 
a

n
d

 s
it

e
 A

8
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 

•
La

n
d

 s
w

a
p

 d
e

a
l 

o
n

 G
P

W
 s

ch
o

o
l 
si

te
 a

b
o

u
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

•
S

u
b

 –
p

h
a

se
 B

 (
ii

) 
a

n
d

 (
ii

i)
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

 K
E

Y
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
)  

•
S

ta
rt

 o
n

 s
it

e
 s

u
b

 p
h

a
se

 B
(i

) 

•
S

ta
rt

 o
n

 s
it

e
 p

h
a

se
 0

 e
xt

e
n

si
o

n
 

•
La

u
n

ch
 o

f 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n

d
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

st
ra

te
g

y
 

 K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

 

•
P

h
a

se
 B

(i
) 

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

a
rl

y
 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 

•
P

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
si

o
n

 g
ra

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

1
6

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
a

n
d

o
s 

Lo
d

g
e

 s
it

e
 

•
A

g
re

e
d

 H
e

a
d

s 
o

f 
Te

rm
s 

w
it

h
 C

o
ll

e
g

e
 f

o
r 

C
o

ll
e

g
e

 r
e

lo
ca

ti
o

n
 

•
S

ta
g

e
 B

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

35
1 

ho
m

es
 c

om
pl

et
ed

to
 d

at
e,

 o
f w

hi
ch

 x
 a

re
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
. 

On
 site

: 39
 ho

me
s to

 
be 

com
ple

ted
 Ma

rch
 

201
4;1

43 
hom

es 
to 

be 
com

ple
ted

 De
c 

201
3.

P
ha

se
 B

(i)
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 

of
 e

ar
ly

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

G
ra

h
a

m
e

 P
a

rk

O
U

T
P

U
T

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
 (

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
IF

E
T

IM
E

) 

30



G
ra

n
v

il
le

 R
o

a
d

D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
 

M
u

la
ll

e
y

; 
O

n
e

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

  

 K
E

Y
 D

E
LI

V
E

R
A

B
LE

S
 

1
4

9
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 j

o
b

s 

P
u

b
li

c 
re

a
lm

 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 

 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

14
9 

ne
w

 h
om

es
(3

0%
 

sh
ar

ed
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p)

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 b
lo

ck
.

C
re

at
io

n 
of

 jo
bs

 

du
rin

g 
th

e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

(n
o.

 to
 

be
 a

gr
ee

d)

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

w
ith

 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ub

lic
 r

ea
lm

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
8

2
0

2
9

7
0
%

3
0
%

P
ri

v
a

te

S
h

a
re

d
 O

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

1
4

9

31



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

; 

•
R

e
v
is

e
d

 M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

; 

•
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
 i
n

 N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 

•
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
s 

o
n

 s
u

b
m

is
si

o
n

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 
 K

E
Y

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 (

2
0

1
2

-1
3

) 

•
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

o
k

 p
la

ce
 w

it
h

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 l

iv
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 e
st

a
te

 a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 a
re

a
. 

•
F

ir
st

 G
ra

n
v
il

le
 R

o
a

d
 R

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 t
o

o
k

 p
la

ce
 o

n
 8

th
 A

u
g

u
st

. 

 K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

•
S

e
le

ct
io

n
 o

f 
D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
r 

 G
ra

n
v

il
le

 R
o

a
d

O
U

T
P

U
T

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
 (

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
IF

E
T

IM
E

) 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

N
/A

 –
P

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e

32



0

5
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

2
0

0

2
5

0

3
0

0

2
0
0

6
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

8
2

0
0

9
2

0
1

0
2

0
1

1
2

0
1

2
2

0
1

3
2

0
1

4
2

0
1

5
2

0
1

6
2

0
1

7
2

0
1

8
2

0
1

9
2

0
2

0
2

0
2

1
2

0
2

2
2

0
2

3
2

0
2

4
2

0
2

5
2

0
2

6
2

0
2

7
2

0
2

8
2

0
2

9

M
il

l 
H

il
l 
E

a
s

t

D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
 

In
g

li
s 

C
o

n
so

rt
iu

m
 L

LP
  

 K
E

Y
 D

E
LI

V
E

R
A

B
LE

S
 

2
,1

7
4

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s 

N
e

w
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt

h
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

U
p

g
ra

d
e

s 
to

 t
u

b
e

 s
ta

ti
o

n
 &

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 E
a

st
 W

e
st

 L
in

k
 r

o
u

te
 

N
e

w
 e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

sp
a

ce
, 

p
a

rk
s 

a
n

d
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
s,

 i
n

c.
 a

 “
P

a
n

o
ra

m
ic

 P
a

rk
” 

 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

2,
17

4 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 

(1
85

0 
pr

iv
at

e 
sa

le
, 

32
4 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
)

A
 n

ew
 t

hr
ee

-f
or

m
 

en
tr

y 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

U
pg

ra
de

s 
to

 M
ill

 H
ill

 

E
as

t 
tu

be
 s

ta
tio

n 
&

 

en
ha

nc
ed

 b
us

 

se
rv

ic
es

E
as

t-
W

es
t 

st
ra

te
gi

c 

lin
k 

ro
ut

e 
&

 F
rit

h 
La

ne

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
or

ks

A
cc

es
s 

ro
ad

 f
or

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol

3,
47

0 
sq

m
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t; 

1,
10

0 

sq
m

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 r
et

ai
l

C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 th

e 

hi
st

or
ic

 f
or

m
er

 

of
fic

er
s’

 m
es

s 
bu

ild
in

g 

to
 m

ix
ed

 u
se

s.

C
re

at
io

n 
of

 5
00

 jo
bs

N
ew

 h
ea

lth
 fa

ci
lit

y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

53
0s

qm
 

G
P

 s
ur

ge
ry

.

N
ew

 e
ne

rg
y 

ce
nt

re
 o

f 

63
0s

qm
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

U
rb

an
 D

ra
in

ag
e

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
D

ep
ot

 a
nd

 

R
ec

yc
lin

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

N
ew

 p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 

“P
an

or
am

ic
 P

ar
k”

 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 

vi
ew

s 
ac

ro
ss

 L
on

do
n.

A
ne

w
 p

ub
lic

 p
ia

zz
a 

op
po

si
te

 th
e 

st
at

io
n

8
5

%

1
5

%

P
ri

v
a

te

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le

2
,1

7
4

33



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
E

a
st

-W
e

st
 L

in
k

 r
o

a
d

 c
o

m
p

le
te

; 

•
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

l 
h

a
s 

co
m

m
e

n
ce

d
 a

s 
o

f 
Ju

n
e

 2
0

1
3

; 

•
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fr

e
e

 l
a

n
d

 s
a

le
s;

  

•
c£

1
.9

m
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
sa

le
s 

re
ce

ip
t 

to
 d

a
te

 

 K
E

Y
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

•
T

h
e

 I
n

g
li

s 
C

o
n

so
rt

iu
m

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

ll
y

 e
xc

h
a

n
g

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

s 
o

n
 P

h
a

se
 3

 t
o

 L
in

d
e

n
 H

o
m

e
s;

 t
o

 d
a

te
, 

3
 p

a
rc

e
ls

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

h
a

ve
 e

it
h

e
r 

b
e

e
n

 s
o

ld
 o

r 
e

xc
h

a
n

g
e

d
. 

•
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 P
&

E
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
 3

-f
o

rm
 e

n
tr

y
 s

ch
o

o
l 

•
O

ff
ic

e
r’

s 
m

e
ss

 a
n

d
 g

a
rd

e
n

s 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

ll
 1

0
 u

n
it

s 
so

ld
 i

n
 t

h
e

 f
ir

st
 t

w
o

 d
a

ys
 o

f 
la

u
n

ch
 

 K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

 
•

O
ff

ic
e

r’
s 

m
e

ss
: 

1
0

 u
n

it
s 

o
f 

h
o

u
si

n
g

. 
•

E
a

st
-W

e
st

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 L

in
k

 R
o

a
d

 

 M
il

l 
H

il
l 
E

a
s

t

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

24 
uni

ts o
fho

usin
g o

n 
site

.
Con

stru
ctio

n o
f 

prim
ary

 sch
ool

on-
goi

ng
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 

P
rim

ar
y 

lin
k

ro
ad

O
U

T
P

U
T

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
 (

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
IF

E
T

IM
E

) 

34



S
to

n
e

g
ro

v
e

 S
p

u
r 

R
o

a
d

D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
 

B
a

rr
a

tt
s 

E
vo

lu
ti

o
n

 L
im

it
e

d
; 

Fa
m

il
y

 M
o

sa
ic

 

 K
E

Y
 D

E
LI

V
E

R
A

B
LE

S
 

9
3

7
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

sc
h

o
o

l 
&

 s
p

o
rt

 f
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
(f

in
is

h
e

d
 –

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ca

d
e

m
y

) 

N
e

w
 r

o
a

d
s 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 

Jo
in

t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
/c

h
u

rc
h

 r
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
fa

ci
li

ty
 

N
e

w
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
s 

 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

93
7 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 (

41
7 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
, 5

20
 

pr
iv

at
e 

sa
le

 (
an

 

ad
di

tio
na

l 6
2 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 u

ni
ts

 w
er

e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 P

ha
se

 0
 –

P
en

ni
w

el
l C

lo
se

)

R
e-

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 

sc
ho

ol
 a

nd
 s

po
rt

s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
(L

on
do

n 

A
ca

de
m

y)
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 

ph
as

e 
0 

(p
rio

r 
to

 

P
D

A
).

N
ew

 r
oa

ds
 a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 

S
pu

r 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

G
re

en
 

La
ne

s,
 S

pu
r 

R
oa

d 

an
d 

S
to

ne
gr

ov
e

S
ki

lls
 a

nd
 jo

b 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s

R
e-

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 

ch
ur

ch
 a

nd
 a

nc
ill

ar
y 

bu
ild

in
gs

C
om

m
un

ity
 h

al
l

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

of
 

ex
is

tin
g 

pl
ay

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 

an
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0
0

1
2
0

1
4
0

1
6
0

1
8
0

2
0
0

6
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

8
2

0
0

9
2

0
1

0
2

0
1

1
2

0
1

2
2

0
1

3
2

0
1

4
2

0
1

5
2

0
1

6
2

0
1

7
2

0
1

8
2

0
1

9
2

0
2

0
2

0
2

1
2

0
2

2
2

0
2

3
2

0
2

4
2

0
2

5
2

0
2

6
2

0
2

7
2

0
2

8
2

0
2

9

5
5
%

4
5
%

P
ri

v
a

te

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le

9
3

7

35



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
P

h
a

se
 5

 (
A

ca
d

e
m

y
 L

a
n

e
),

 a
n

d
 P

h
a

se
s 

6
a

/6
b

 (
K

in
g

s 
La

n
e

 M
e

w
s)

 h
a

ve
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 o
n

 s
it

e
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
d

e
li

ve
r 

1
9

8
 u

n
it

s 
o

f 

h
o

u
si

n
g

. 

 K
E

Y
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

•
S

ch
e

m
e

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 ‘
G

o
ld

’ 
in

 Q
1

7
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
D

e
si

g
n

 A
w

a
rd

s 
2

0
1

2
  

•
S

h
a

d
o

w
 S

G
S

R
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 T

ru
st

 B
o

a
rd

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 

•
D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

re
e

d
 a

 ‘
D

e
e

d
 o

f 
V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

’ 
w

h
ic

h
 n

o
w

 c
o

m
m

it
s 

th
e

m
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
re

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

 K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

 

•
In

 t
o

ta
l 

3
8

8
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s 
(4

1
%

 o
f 

sc
h

e
m

e
) 

h
a

ve
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

- 
2

4
7

 s
o

ci
a

l 

- 
1

3
9

 p
ri

va
te

 s
a

le
 

S
to

n
e

g
ro

v
e

 S
p

u
r 

R
o

a
d

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

38
8 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 o

f w
hi

ch
 

24
7 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 1

39
 

w
er

e 
fo

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
sa

le

Lo
nd

on
 A

ca
de

m
y 

op
en

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

O
U

T
P

U
T

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
 (

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
IF

E
T

IM
E

) 

36



W
e

s
t 

H
e

n
d

o
n

D
E

LI
V

E
R

Y
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
 

B
a

rr
a

tt
 M

e
tr

o
p

o
li

ta
n

 L
im

it
e

d
 L

ia
b

il
it

y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
  

 K
E

Y
 D

E
LI

V
E

R
A

B
LE

S
 

2
,0

0
0

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s;

 1
,6

0
0

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

 s
p

a
ce

s 

A
 n

e
w

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 &

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

h
u

b
 

2
 n

e
w

 b
ri

d
g

e
s 

&
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 v
is

ta
 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 W
e

ls
h

 H
a

rp
 R

e
se

rv
o

ir
 

Tw
o

-f
o

rm
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

ch
o

o
l 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

U
p

to
 2

,0
00

 n
ew

 

ho
m

es
 

(2
5%

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
)

Tw
o-

fo
rm

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

sc
ho

ol
 f

or
 a

ro
un

d 
40

0 

pu
pi

ls

2 
ne

w
 b

rid
ge

s

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
lo

ng
 

th
e 

A
5 

an
d 

S
ta

tio
n 

R
oa

d 
&

 r
em

ov
al

 o
f 

th
e 

gy
ra

to
ry

 s
ys

te
m

Im
pr

ov
ed

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
lin

ks

A
 n

ew
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 

an
d 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 h
ub

 

w
ith

 n
ew

 s
ho

ps
 a

nd
 

re
st

au
ra

nt
s.

10
00

fu
ll 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

jo
bs

.

12
6 

no
n-

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

fu
ll 

tim
e 

jo
bs

C
om

m
un

ity
 u

se
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

Y
or

k 

P
ar

k

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 

W
el

sh
 H

ar
p 

R
es

er
vo

ir

0

5
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

2
0

0

2
5

0

3
0

0

3
5

0

4
0

0

4
5

0

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
8

2
0

2
9

7
5
%

2
5
%

P
ri

v
a

te

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le

2
,0

0
0

37



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
P

re
-c

o
m

m
e

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
b

e
in

g
 r

e
so

lv
e

d
 (

c£
1

8
m

 S
1

0
6

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t)

 

•
S

ta
rt

 o
n

 s
it

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r  
2

0
1

3
 

 K
E

Y
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

•
A

p
p

ro
va

l 
o

f 
H

e
a

d
s 

o
f 

Te
rm

s 
a

t 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 1
8

th
 o

f 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
 

•
A

p
p

ro
va

l 
o

f 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 a

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 o

n
 2

3
rd

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
. 

•
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 A
p

p
ro

va
l 
fr

o
m

 G
LA

 w
a

s 
o

b
ta

in
e

d
 o

n
 8

th
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
0

1
3

. 
 

 

K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

 
•

D
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 a

n
d

 s
it

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 o

n
-s

it
e

. 

 W
e

s
t 

H
e

n
d

o
n

H
O

U
S

IN
G

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

S
 

&
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
H

E
A

LT
H

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 W
A

S
T

E

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

E
A

LM
 &

 

S
E

N
S

E
 O

F
 P

LA
C

E

19
4 

ho
m

es
(4

3 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
) 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 to

 d
at

e

O
U

T
P

U
T

S
 T

O
 D

A
T

E
 (

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
IF

E
T

IM
E

) 

38



S
k

il
ls

 &
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S

!
B

e
tt
e

r 
c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n

!
B

e
tt
e

r 
c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
n

 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
in

 w
h

ic
h

 

s
m

a
ll 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 c

a
n

 f
lo

u
ri

s
h

!
E

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

to
w

n
 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
ir
 p

ro
s
p

e
ri
ty

!
A

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 N
o

t 
in

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
T

ra
in

in
g

 

(N
E

E
T

)

!
E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 a
t 
B

re
n

t 

C
ro

s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 C

o
lin

d
a

le
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y,

 a
n

d
 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

th
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 a
b

le
 

to
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 j
o

b
s
 c

re
a

te
d

!
E

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

b
y
 e

x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 i
n

w
a

rd
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

S

"
N

E
E

T
s
 P

la
tf
o

rm
s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

"
A

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t

"
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

"
J
o

b
s
 B

ro
k
e

ra
g

e
, 
w

e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 &

 w
o

rk
le

s
s
n
e

s
s

"
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
1

0
6

 f
o

r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 o
u

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
e

s
ta

te
s

"
T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
u

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 F
u

n
d

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 

c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
v
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
b

u
ilt

 o
n

 a
n

 e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
ri
a

l 
c
u

lt
u

re
 w

it
h

 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 q
u

a
lit

y
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n

ts

39



T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s

 &
 O

L
F

C
h

ip
p

in
g

 B
a
rn

e
t 

O
u

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

F
u

n
d

 P
ro

je
c

t

•
Im

p
ro

v
e

 C
h

ip
p

in
g

 B
a

rn
e

t 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 p
u

b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 a
n

d
 t
ra

d
in

g
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

•
F

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 r

e
-l

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 g

re
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

 a
t 
J
o

h
n

 t
h

e
 B

a
p

ti
s
t 
C

h
u

rc
h

B
a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il;

 G
re

a
te

r 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

; 
H

ig
h

 

B
a
rn

e
t 
T
o

w
n
 T

e
a
m

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1

 –

J
u
n

e
 2

0
1

2

C
ri

c
k

le
w

o
o

d
 

O
u

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

F
u

n
d

 P
ro

je
c

t

•
B

ri
n

g
 a

 c
o

h
e

s
iv

e
 l
o

o
k
 a

n
d

 f
e

e
l 
to

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
u

b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

•
D

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
a

 

lo
c
a

l 
g

ro
u

p
 m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
.

B
a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il;

 B
re

n
t 

C
o
u

n
c
il;

 C
a

m
d

e
n
 

C
o
u

n
c
il;

 G
re

a
te

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

; 
C

ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

A
p
ri
l 
2
0

1
2

 –
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1

4

N
o

rt
h

 F
in

c
h

le
y
 

O
u

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

F
u

n
d

 P
ro

je
c

t

•
M

a
k
e

 N
o

rt
h

 F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

 d
e

s
ti
n

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 r

ig
h

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 p
u

b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

•
F

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 a

 n
e

w
 C

u
lt
u

ra
l 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
a

ro
u

n
d

 a
rt

s
 d

e
p

o
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 G

ra
n

d
 A

rc
a

d
e

.

B
a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il;

 G
re

a
te

r 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

; 

a
rt

s
d

e
p
o

t;
 N

o
rt

h
 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 T

o
w

n
 T

e
a
m

A
p
ri
l 
2
0

1
2

 –
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1

4

P
o

rt
a
s

 T
o

w
n

 

T
e

a
m

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

(E
d

g
w

a
re

 T
o

w
n

 

C
e
n

tr
e

)

•
R

e
v
a

m
p

 E
d

g
w

a
re

’s
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 F

o
ru

m
  
to

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 o
n

e
 o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 

3
0

0
 ‘
T
o

w
n

 T
e

a
m

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

’ n
a

ti
o

n
w

id
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 
fr

o
m

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

 

p
a

c
k
a

g
e

 o
f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.

•
T

h
e

 a
im

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f
a

c
e

d
 b

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

a
n

d
 t
o

 r
e

v
iv

e
 E

d
g

w
a

re
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
's

 p
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
it
s
 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
.

B
a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il;

 E
d

g
w

a
re

 

T
o

w
n

 T
e
a

m
; 
B

ro
a

d
w

a
lk

 

C
e
n

tr
e
; 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n
 f
o

r 

T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e

 

M
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t

F
ro

m
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2

G
re

a
te

r 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E

40



C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 S

TA
G

E
 

•
P

u
b

li
c 

re
a

lm
 w

o
rk

s 
o

n
-g

o
in

g
 in

 C
ri

ck
le

w
o

o
d

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

•
P

ro
cu

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
co

n
tr

a
ct

o
rs

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

li
c 

re
a

lm
 w

o
rk

s 
in

 N
o

rt
h

 F
in

ch
le

y
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

 K
E

Y
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

•
M

a
yo

r’
s 

D
e

si
g

n
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 (
M

D
A

G
) 

h
a

ve
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 f

o
r 

N
o

rt
h

 F
in

ch
le

y
 a

n
d

 C
ri

ck
le

w
o

o
d

 T
o

w
n

 

C
e

n
tr

e
s 

•
D

e
li

ve
ry

 o
f 

a
 s

e
ri

e
s 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
l 

e
ve

n
ts

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 C

ri
ck

le
w

o
o

d
 O

u
te

r 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 F
u

n
d

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 M

o
b

il
e

 T
o

w
n

 

S
q

u
a

re
, 

S
il

k
 R

o
a

d
 F

e
st

iv
a

l 
a

n
d

 P
h

o
to

g
ra

p
h

y
 e

xh
ib

it
io

n
. 

•
N

o
rt

h
 F

in
ch

le
y

 O
LF

 -
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 w

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 M

a
yo

r 
o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

’s
 D

e
si

g
n

 A
d

v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 o
n

 2
5

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

 

•
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 L

e
a

d
e

rs
 B

re
a

k
fa

st
 o

n
 1

7
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

- 
7

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
ve

n
t 

w
h

il
e

 5
0

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
. 

 

•
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 N

e
e

d
s 

S
u

rv
e

y
 s

e
n

t 
o

u
t 

6
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

to
 2

,2
0

0
 S

M
E

s 

 K
E

Y
 O

U
T

P
U

T
S

 (
2

0
1

2
-1

3
) 

 

•
C

h
ip

p
in

g
 B

a
rn

e
t 

O
LF

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i

n
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

2
 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
s

 &
 O

L
F

41



K
e

y
 U

p
c

o
m

in
g

 M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s

!
D

o
ll
is

 V
a

ll
e

y
 –

S
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e

 (
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

!
W

e
s

t 
H

e
n

d
o

n
 -

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 
S

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 C

P
O

, 
G

ro
u

n
d

 1
0

A
 &

 d
e

c
a

n
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 (

O
c
to

b
e

r 

2
0

1
3

)

!
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 –
R

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

4
th

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3

!
S

E
E

–
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 N

e
e

d
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 d

u
e

 (
e

n
d

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
)

!
G

ra
n

v
il
le

 R
o

a
d

 –
S

ig
n

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
(N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

!
W

e
s

t 
H

e
n

d
o

n
 –

S
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e

 P
h

a
s
e

 3
a

 (
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

!
S

E
E

-
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 E

x
p

o
 (

1
s
t 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r)

!
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 –
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
 

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

!
G

ra
h

a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 –
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

h
a

s
e

 1
b

(i
)

–
1

4
3

 n
e

w
 

h
o

m
e

s
 (

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 

!
B

re
n

t 
C

ro
s

s
 –

S
7

3
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

)

!
S

E
E

–
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
 F

in
c
h

le
y
 a

n
d

 C
ri
c
k
le

w
o

o
d

 

O
L

F
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 (
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
)

42



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 6 January 2014 

Subject Updating of Barnet Housing Strategy 

Report of Cabinet Member for Housing 

Summary of Report This report provides details on the preparation of a 
new housing strategy for the borough with a view to 
implementing a final strategy in September 2014. 

 

 
Officer Contributors Pam Wharfe, Director for Place 

Declan Hoare, Lead Commissioner (Housing and 
Environment) 

Paul Shipway, Head of Strategy and Performance, 
Regional Enterprise Ltd 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected All 

Key Decision N/A 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

N/A 

Function of Business Management Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Enclosures 
 

Appendix 1- draft evidence base for housing strategy 
 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

 

Chloe Horner, Strategy and Business Improvement 
Manager, Regional Enterprise Ltd, 
chloe.horner@barnet.gov.uk, 020 8359 4775 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

43



 

1. RECOMMENDATION  
 
1.1 That the Committee notes and comments on plans for developing a new 

Housing Strategy. 
 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet approved the existing Housing Strategy on 12 April 2010, Agenda 

Item 8. 
 
2.3 Cabinet approved Barnet’s approach to social housing reforms and how they 

relate to the existing Housing Strategy on 14 September 2011, Agenda Item 6. 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Housing Strategy supports the Corporate Plan 2013 to 2016 priority “To 

maintain the right environment for a strong and diverse local economy” and 
the strategic objective under this priority is to sustain Barnet by “promoting 
growth, development and success across the borough. This will be done 
through the delivery of seven major regeneration schemes across the 
borough, which will create more than 3,000 new homes over the next 5 years. 
It will ensure that the borough is best placed to address the housing needs 
and aspirations of all residents, for example through reducing the length of 
time households spend in emergency accommodation. 

 
3.2 The spatial expression of the Housing Strategy is provided by the Local Plan 

which sets out our approach to securing affordable housing and growth whilst 
ensuring that we get the right homes in the right places for sustainable vibrant 
mixed communities 

 
3.3 The Housing Strategy will have to be in “general conformity” with the London 

Housing Strategy. A draft revised London Housing Strategy is currently 
subject to a public consultation until 28 February 2014. The council will have 
the opportunity to inform the final iteration of the London strategy at the same 
time as developing the Barnet strategy. 

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The existing strategy was last updated fully in 2010 and since then there has 

been a change in government and a number of key housing reforms. There is 
a risk that it does not take account of changes that have occurred and 
additional evidence that has emerged since then and therefore could not be fit 
for purpose and underpin other strategic housing decisions. 

 
4.2 There is a risk that the existing strategy will not be in general conformity with 

the London Mayor’s Housing strategy, which could lead to loss of support from 
the Mayor in respect of delivering the capital’s housing objectives. This could 
lead to potential difficulties in obtaining funding for the boroughs housing 
plans. 

 
 

44



 

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the council has a legislative duty 

To have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; 
advancing equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without; and promoting good relations between those 
with protracted characteristics and those without. The ‘protected 
characteristics’ are ages, race, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy 
and maternity, religion or belief and sexual orientation. The ‘protected 
characteristics’ also include marriage and civil partnership, with regard to 
eliminating discrimination. 

 
5.2 A full equalities impacts assessment will be produced as part of the 

development of the new strategy and will be reported to Committee. 
 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 There are no direct resources implications in terms of the development of the 

housing strategy as this will be contained within existing budgets. 
 
6.2 A national Housing Revenue Account (HRA) subsidy system ended in April 

2012 and was replaced with self-financing. The move to self-financing in the 
HRA was achieved by the council making a payment of £103m to the 
Treasury; the payment of negative subsidy being replaced with the cost of 
servicing this additional debt. The HRA settlement also included the 
calculation of a notional debt figure that was higher than the actual HRA debt 
held by Barnet, which generated the capacity for additional borrowing 
headroom of £39m. The council has developed an investment model to make 
decisions about how to spend the headroom and the housing strategy will be a 
key document to shape and support these decisions. 

 
6.3 The introduction of the overall benefit cap (as part of the Government’s reform 

of welfare) from August 2013 means that some households will not be able to 
afford the rents charged in Barnet and other parts of London for temporary 
accommodation and private rented sector homes even where these fall within 
local housing allowance levels.  The housing strategy will have to take 
account of these issues in providing a fair approach in terms of procuring 
quality accommodation in affordable locations.  

 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The council, as a local housing authority, is required by section 87 of the Local 

Government Act 2003 to have a strategy in respect of such matters relating to 
housing.  A requirement to consider the housing needs of gypsies and 
travellers was added in 2004. 

 
7.2 The Greater London Authority Act 2002, section 28, requires borough housing 

(and related) strategies to be in general conformity to the London Housing 
Strategy. 

 

45



 

7.3  The new housing strategy will incorporate the council’s statutory 
Homelessness Strategy. 

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 Council Constitution, Part 3, Responsibility for Functions – Section 3.6 details 

the functions of the Cabinet Resources Committee. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are set out 

in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution). 
 

8.3  Item 8 of the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms 
of Reference states that its role is: 
“To have responsibility for the review of the policy framework and 
development of policy and strategy not within the remit of other overview and 
scrutiny committees”. 
 

9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
 Existing housing strategy 
 
9.1 The council’s existing housing strategy was agreed by Cabinet in April 2010 

with the following key housing objectives: 
 

o Increasing housing supply to improve the range of housing choices and 
opportunities available to residents 

o Improving the condition and sustainability of the existing housing stock 
o Promoting mixed communities 
o Maximising opportunities available for those wishing to own their home 
o Providing housing related support options that maximise the 

independence of residents 
o Providing excellent value services that exceed residents’ expectations. 

 
9.2 The strategy was reviewed in September 2011 in response to changes in 

national housing policy, including housing revenue account self-financing, 
welfare reform, flexible tenancies and housing allocations reform. The council 
has taken a proactive approach on many of these issues. For example, in July 
2012 the council introduced flexible 2 and 5 year tenancies for new council 
tenants as permitted under the Localism Act 2011.   

 
9.3 The council has also implemented major reforms to housing allocations to 

ensure that a limited supply of housing is used to assist households in the 
highest housing need who are contributing to the community by working, 
volunteering, training, foster caring or as former service personnel.  

 
 Changes in the housing sector 
 
9.4 There have been further significant changes in the housing sector since this 

time and it is now necessary to review the entire housing strategy. Key issues 
that a new housing strategy will need to take account of include: 

 

46



 

• Investment decisions in the housing revenue account in terms of delivering 
new housing growth, supporting regeneration and achieving general fund 
savings 

• The increasing difficulty in procuring affordable accommodation in the 
borough and the need to access a supply of homes in more affordable 
areas 

• Changes in the housing market including the increasing role of the private 
rented sector and a reduction in homeownership  

• The latest census information including data on population growth and 
diversity and the impact of this on the future housing needs of the borough 

• Progress with improving the thermal efficiency of homes. 
 

Evidence base for new housing strategy 
 

9.5  A key step in developing a new housing strategy is to develop an evidence 
base of key data that gives a picture of the housing market in Barnet set within 
the context of the local economy and demographic. Work has already 
commenced on preparing this evidence base and a draft is attached at 
appendix 1. Key points emerging from this include: 

 

• The population has increased by 55,000 since 2001 and has become 
more diverse with increasing numbers of older people and children. 
Further growth of 46,000 is expected by 2022 

• The borough is relatively prosperous with a high percentage  of self-
employed residents; in common with the rest of the country median 
incomes fell in 2012 

• Private renting has increased significantly since 2001, largely at the 
expense of owner occupation which has decreased 

• House prices have recovered since 2008, but sales volumes remain low  

• Private rented sector rents have risen faster than elsewhere and are now 
the highest in Outer London 

• The supply of private rented homes available to working people on lower 
incomes  has reduced significantly  

• Homeless applications have increased along with acceptances and 
admissions to temporary accommodation 

• 2289 households could have their housing benefit reduced as a 
consequence of welfare reforms  

• Barnet experienced the largest increase in Local Housing Allowance 
claims between 2011 and 2012 compared to other London boroughs 

• Barnet has a higher number of vacant dwellings compared to other 
London  boroughs 

• Barnet has a higher capacity for new homes 1than other north London 
boroughs.  

 
9.6 An evidence base review group has been established to review the evidence 

base and assist the development of the wider strategy. The group consists of 
senior officers of the council, Barnet Homes, registered housing providers as 
well as a board member of Barnet Homes. The evidence base review group 
has met twice already, including a site visit to Beaufort Park to focus on 
regeneration and a session dedicated to reviewing the data in appendix 1.  
Further meetings are planned for January 2014. 

                                            
1
 26,000 new homes by 2025/6 

47



 

 
9.7 Following on from the review group a final draft housing strategy will be 

developed to be considered by the Greater London Authority for comments on 
general conformity. The draft strategy will then by subject to a wide public 
consultation to include focus groups and an online survey before being 
submitted to Committee for final approval and implementation in autumn 2014. 

 
Draft timetable 
 
9.8 A summary of the timetable is shown below. 
 

Date Activity 

January  2014 Evidence base review group to include 
visit to Kings Cross and Pocket Homes 
development  

February 2014 Production of first draft housing strategy 

March 2014 Evidence base review group review of 
draft housing strategy 

April 2014 Consultation with Greater London 
Authority 

May 2014 Equalities impact assessment 

July to September 2014 Public consultation with residents and 
other stakeholders 

Autumn 2014 Committee approval 

 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) BH 

 

48



H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

B
a
s
e

A
u

tu
m

n
 2

0
1

3

49



2
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

a
rk

in
g

2

C
o

n
te

n
t

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 
S

li
d

e

1
.

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

3

2
.

T
h

e
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 

1
1

3
. 

T
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t

1
6

4
.

W
e

lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
s

2
5

5
.

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

3
0

6
.

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
3

5

7
. 

S
to

c
k
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
/E

m
p

ty
 H

o
m

e
s

4
4

8
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 D

e
m

a
n

d
5

1

50



3
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

a
rk

in
g

3

1
. 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

51



4
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

a
rk

in
g

4

B
a
rn

e
t’

s
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
s
 g

ro
w

in
g

!
In

 2
0

1
3

 B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
s
 a

t 
3

6
2

,0
6

0

!
B

y
 2

0
4

1
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 
4

4
5

,4
2

2
.

!
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 s

iz
e

 o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

t.
 A

lb
a

n
s
.

3
4
0
,
0
0
0

3
6
0
,
0
0
0

3
8
0
,
0
0
0

4
0
0
,
0
0
0

4
2
0
,
0
0
0

4
4
0
,
0
0
0

4
6
0
,
0
0
0 20

11

20
13

20
15

20
17

20
19

20
21

20
23

20
25

20
27

20
29

20
31

20
33

20
35

20
37

20
39

20
41

S
o

u
rc

e
:

2
0
1
3
 G

L
A

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s

52



5
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

a
rk

in
g

5

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
g

ro
w

 a
c

ro
s

s
 m

o
s

t 
a

g
e

 r
a

n
g

e
s

!
T

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 o
ld

e
r 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

r 
7

0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t
o

 n
e

a
rl
y
 d

o
u

b
le

 b
y
 2

0
4

1
, 
fr

o
m

 3
4

,0
0

0
 t
o

 

6
7

,4
0

0
.

!
T

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l-
a

g
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 (

5
 t
o

 1
8

 y
e

a
r-

o
ld

) 
is

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t
o

 g
ro

w
 b

y
 

1
2

,0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
y
 2

0
2

6
, 
fr

o
m

 6
1

,0
0

0
 t
o

 7
3

,0
0

0
 (

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 
n

e
a

rl
y
 

2
0

%
).

0

2
0
,
0
0
0

4
0
,
0
0
0

6
0
,
0
0
0

8
0
,
0
0
0

1
0
0
,
0
0
0

1
2
0
,
0
0
0

20
11

20
13

20
15

20
17

20
19

20
21

20
23

20
25

20
27

20
29

20
31

20
33

20
35

20
37

20
39

20
41

0
 
t
o
 
1
9

2
0
 
t
o
 
3
4

3
5
 
t
o
 
4
9

5
0
 
t
o
 
6
4

6
5
 
t
o
 
7
9

8
0
+

S
o

u
rc

e
:

2
0
1
3
 G

L
A

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s

53



6
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

a
rk

in
g

6

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 G
ro

w
th

 h
ig

h
e
s
t 

in
 W

e
s
t 

o
f 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

T
o
p
 5

 w
a
rd

s
 b

y
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 2

0
1
1

C
h
ild

s
 H

ill
2
0
,0

4
9

G
o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n

1
8
,8

1
8

H
e
n
d
o
n

1
8
,4

7
2

M
ill

 H
ill

1
8
,4

5
1

B
u

rn
t 
O

a
k

1
8

,2
5

7

T
o
p
 5

 w
a
rd

s
 b

y
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 2

0
0
1

C
h
ild

s
 H

ill
1
7
,2

6
1

G
o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n

1
6
,2

4
8

U
n
d
e
rh

ill
1
5
,7

2
1

H
a
le

1
5
,6

6
3

W
o
o
d
h
o
u
s
e

1
5
,5

3
3

S
o

u
rc

e
:

C
e
n
s
u
s
 D

a
ta

54



7
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

a
rk

in
g

7W
a
rd

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

s
 

b
y

 2
0

4
1

•T
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

g
ro

w
th

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 C
o

li
n

d
a
le

a
n

d
 G

o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n

w
h

e
re

 

th
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

•M
il
l 

H
il
l

a
n

d
 W

e
s
t 

H
e
n

d
o

n
 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t
o

 s
e

e
 

re
la

ti
v
e

ly
 l
a

rg
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 i
n

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
.

W
a

rd
2

0
1

1
2

0
2

1
2

0
3

1
2

0
4

1
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e

C
o

lin
d

a
le

1
7

,1
4

7
2

9
,1

9
7

3
7

,5
5

0
3

9
,1

7
6

1
2

8
%

G
o

ld
e

rs
 G

re
e

n
1

8
,8

7
2

2
5

,3
6

9
3

5
,6

5
2

3
7

,2
8

5
9

8
%

M
ill

 H
ill

1
8

,5
1

7
2

4
,0

5
1

2
5

,0
5

6
2

6
,1

8
6

4
1

%

W
e

s
t 
H

e
n

d
o

n
1

7
,4

4
8

2
0

,5
0

2
2

2
,8

8
9

2
3

,9
4

0
3

7
%

E
d

g
w

a
re

1
6

,7
8

1
1

8
,2

7
4

1
9

,5
0

3
2

0
,4

8
0

2
2

%

C
h

ild
s
 H

ill
2

0
,1

0
5

2
1

,4
2

2
2

2
,9

8
6

2
4

,1
2

7
2

0
%

F
in

c
h

le
y
 C

h
u

rc
h

 E
n

d
1

5
,7

7
4

1
6

,7
4

5
1

7
,2

5
3

1
8

,0
8

0
1

5
%

T
o

tt
e

ri
d

g
e

1
5

,2
1

2
1

5
,9

5
2

1
6

,6
9

5
1

7
,4

9
5

1
5

%

W
e

s
t 
F

in
c
h

le
y

1
6

,5
8

8
1

7
,1

5
7

1
8

,0
7

1
1

8
,9

7
1

1
4

%

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 P

a
rk

1
6

,4
4

9
1

6
,8

5
7

1
7

,7
7

5
1

8
,6

3
4

1
3

%

E
a

s
t 
B

a
rn

e
t

1
6

,1
9

1
1

6
,5

5
0

1
7

,1
2

4
1

7
,8

9
5

1
1

%

H
e

n
d

o
n

1
8

,5
1

8
1

9
,1

5
7

1
9

,5
9

2
2

0
,5

4
4

1
1

%

W
o

o
d

h
o

u
s
e

1
7

,6
3

3
1

8
,2

4
6

1
8

,7
2

7
1

9
,5

7
8

1
1

%

H
ig

h
 B

a
rn

e
t

1
5

,3
6

0
1

5
,7

6
1

1
6

,1
7

6
1

6
,9

6
0

1
0

%

O
a

k
le

ig
h

1
5

,8
6

6
1

5
,9

5
3

1
6

,7
1

0
1

7
,5

1
1

1
0

%

G
a

rd
e

n
 S

u
b

u
rb

1
5

,9
8

5
1

6
,0

5
4

1
6

,5
6

2
1

7
,4

2
2

9
%

B
u

rn
t 
O

a
k

1
8

,2
7

3
1

8
,2

7
4

1
8

,9
8

1
1

9
,7

4
8

8
%

E
a

s
t 
F

in
c
h

le
y

1
6

,0
4

4
1

6
,2

3
8

1
6

,6
4

5
1

7
,4

0
4

8
%

U
n

d
e

rh
ill

1
5

,9
7

4
1

6
,1

2
3

1
6

,4
9

0
1

7
,2

0
7

8
%

H
a

le
1

7
,4

9
5

1
7

,3
1

5
1

7
,7

7
2

1
8

,6
2

9
6

%

C
o

p
p

e
tt

s
1

7
,3

0
5

1
7

,0
8

0
1

7
,3

6
3

1
8

,1
4

8
5

%

A
ll

3
5

7
,5

3
7

3
9

2
,2

7
7

4
2

5
,5

7
2

4
4

5
,4

2
0

2
5

%

S
o

u
rc

e
:

2
0
1
3
 G

L
A

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s

55



8
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

a
rk

in
g

8

B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
s

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 m
o

re
 d

iv
e

rs
e

0
%

2
0

%

4
0

%

6
0

%

8
0

%C
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 e

th
n

ic
it

y
 2

0
0
1
 v

s
 2

0
1
1
 c

e
n

s
u

s

2
0

0
1

2
0

1
1

2
0

0
1

7
4

%
3

%
1

2
%

6
.0

0
%

5
%

2
0

1
1

6
4

.1
0

%
4

.9
0

%
1

8
.4

0
%

7
.7

0
%

4
.9

0
%

W
h

it
e

M
ix

e
d

A
s

ia
n

B
la

c
k

O
th

e
r

•B
a
rn

e
t 

is
 g

e
tt
in

g
 m

o
re

 d
iv

e
rs

e
, 

d
ri
v
e
n
 b

y
 b

o
th

 

m
o
re

 b
ir
th

s
 a

m
o
n
g
 B

A
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
m

ig
ra

n
ts

.

•T
h
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
e
n
s
u
s
 2

0
1
1
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

1
4
3
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

la
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 a

p
a
rt

 f
ro

m
 E

n
g
lis

h
 w

e
re

 

s
p
o
k
e
n
 b

y
 p

u
p
ils

 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

-
2
0
.0

-
1
5
.0

-
1
0
.0

-
5
.0

0
.0

5
.0

1
0
.0

1
5
.0

Brunswick Park

Burnt Oak

Childs Hill

Colindale

Coppetts

East Barnet

East Finchley

Edgware

Finchley Church

End

Garden Suburb

Golders Green

Hale

Hendon

High Barnet

Mill Hill

Oakleigh

Totteridge

Underhill

West Finchley

West Hendon

Woodhouse

Change in percentage of ward population between 2001 and 2011

W
h

it
e

M
ix

e
d

A
s
ia

n
 o

r
 A

s
ia

n
 B

r
it

is
h

B
la

c
k
 o

r
 B

la
c
k
 B

r
it

is
h

O
th

e
r

•E
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

s
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
w

a
rd

s

•W
h
it
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

s
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 f

a
lli

n
g
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
w

a
rd

s
.

S
o

u
rc

e
:

C
e
n
s
u
s
 D

a
ta

56



9
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

a
rk

in
g

9

H
ig

h
e
r 

c
o

n
c
e
n

tr
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

B
A

M
E

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

 s
o

c
ia

l 

h
o

u
s
in

g

Te
nu

re
To

ta
l

W
hi

te
M

ix
ed

 e
th

ni
c 

gr
ou

p
A

si
an

B
la

ck
O

th
er

O
w

ne
d 

ou
tri

gh
t

82
,0

08
74

.5
%

2.
5%

18
.1

%
2.

2%
2.

7%

O
w

ne
d 

w
ith

 a
 m

or
tg

ag
e 

or
 

lo
an

 o
r s

ha
re

d 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p

12
4,

05
8

66
.5

%
4.

6%
20

.1
%

5.
0%

3.
7%

A
ll 

ow
ne

d
20

6,
06

6
69

.7
%

3.
8%

19
.3

%
3.

9%
3.

3%

R
en

te
d 

fro
m

 B
ar

ne
t H

om
es

28
,7

52
53

.4
%

7.
7%

12
.6

%
19

.8
%

6.
5%

O
th

er
 S

oc
ia

l R
en

te
d

18
,5

08
49

.9
%

8.
5%

13
.5

%
22

.2
%

5.
9%

A
ll 

S
oc

ia
l R

en
te

d
47

,2
60

52
.0

%
8.

0%
12

.9
%

20
.7

%
6.

3%

P
ri

va
te

 R
en

te
d

99
,2

71
57

.8
%

5.
6%

19
.8

%
9.

4%
7.

5%

A
ll 

ca
te

go
ri

es
35

2,
59

7
64

.0
%

4.
8%

18
.6

%
7.

7%
4.

9%

A
 d

is
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

ly
 h

ig
h

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 s
o

c
ia

lly
 r

e
n

te
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

re
 

fr
o

m
 B

A
M

E
 e

th
n

ic
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
B

la
c
k
 e

th
n

ic
it
ie

s
; 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 2
0

%
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

s
 b

la
c
k
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 s
o

c
ia

lly
 r

e
n

te
d

 h
o

u
s
in

g
, 
w

h
ile

 o
n

ly
 4

%
 o

f 

b
la

c
k
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 o
w

n
e

r-
o

c
c
u

p
ie

rs
.

S
o

u
rc

e
:

C
e
n
s
u
s
 D

a
ta

57



1
0

T
h

e
 w

a
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

e
 i

s
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 t

o
o

1
0

T
h

er
e 

a
re

 1
3

5
,9

0
0

h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

in
 B

a
rn

et
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
v

er
a

g
e 

o
f 

2
.6

 
p

eo
p

le
 p

er
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 (
a
n
d

fa
ll
in
g
)

O
n

e 
in

 t
h

re
e 

h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

re
si

d
es

 i
n

 a
 f
la
t

m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
es

e 
th

e 
m

o
st

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 t
y

p
e 

o
f 

d
w

el
li

n
g

M
o

v
em

en
t 

to
w

a
rd

s 
sm

a
ll

er
, 

si
n

g
le

 p
er

so
n

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s;

 
8

1
,0

0
0

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 l

iv
in

g
 

a
lo

n
e.

L
o

n
e 

p
a

re
n

t 
h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s 
ex

p
ec

te
d

 t
o

 i
n

cr
ea

se
 b

y
  
8

2
%

S
o

u
rc

e
:

C
e

n
s
u

s
 2

0
1
1

58



1
1

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

1

2
. 
T

h
e
 E

c
o

n
o

m
y

59



1
2

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

2

A
 p

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
…

0
%

2
%

4
%

6
%

8
%

1
0
%

1
2
%

1
4
%

1
6
%

0-
5k

5-
10

k
10

-1
5k

15
-2

0k
20

-2
5k

25
-3

0k
30

-3
5k

35
-4

0k
40

-4
5k

45
-5

0k
50

-5
5k

55
-6

0k
60

-6
5k

65
-7

0k
70

-7
5k

75
-8

0k
80

-8
5k

85
-9

0k
90

-9
5k

95
-1

00
k

10
0k

 +

B
a
rn

e
t

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

L
o
n
d
o
n

G
re

a
t 
B

ri
ta

in

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 m
e

d
ia

n
 i
n

c
o

m
e

s
 2

0
0

7
 -

2
0

1
2

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

%
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

2
0

0
7
-2

0
1
2

B
a
rn

e
t

£
3
0
,7

7
9

£
3
1
,4

5
4

£
3
1
,5

5
4

£
3
2
,1

2
9

£
3
6
,2

1
5

£
3
3
,5

7
9

9
.1

%

In
n

e
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

£
3
1
,5

6
4

£
3
1
,8

5
2

£
3
0
,7

6
6

£
3
1
,3

7
9

£
3
2
,5

8
8

£
3
1
,0

5
6

-
1

.6
1
%

O
u

te
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

£
2
9
,7

3
4

£
2
9
,6

6
5

£
2
9
,7

9
7

£
3
0
,5

0
7

£
3
4
,0

3
6

£
3
1
,8

3
9

7
.0

8
%

L
o

n
d

o
n

£
3
0
,4

5
6

£
3
0
,5

0
9

£
3
0
,1

6
8

£
3
0
,1

6
8

£
3
3
,4

4
1

£
3
1
,5

2
2

3
.5

%

G
re

a
t 

B
ri

ta
in

£
2
6
,1

0
0

£
2
5
,4

8
6

£
2
6
,5

1
8

£
2
6
,5

1
8

£
2
8
,4

4
5

£
2
7
,5

8
0

5
.6

7
%

S
o

u
rc

e
:

C
A

C
I 

E
q

u
a
li
s
e
d

 P
a
y
c
h

e
c
k

2
0

1
2

B
a

rn
e

t 
h

a
s

 a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
h

ig
h

e
r 

in
c

o
m

e
s

 t
h

a
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s

t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y

M
e

d
ia

n
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 i
n

 

B
a

rn
e

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s

t 
o

f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

ll
y
, 
b

u
t 

fe
ll

 i
n

 

2
0

1
2

M
e
d

ia
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

H
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 i
n

c
o

m
e
s
 2

0
1
2

60



1
3

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

3E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
E

m
p

l
o

y
m

e
n

t
 
r
a

t
e

 
(
1
6
-
6
4
)

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

O
c
t
 
2
0
0
7
-
S

e
p

2
0
0
8

O
c
t
 
2
0
0
8
-S

e
p

2
0
0
9

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
-
S

e
p

2
0
1
0

O
c
t
 2

0
1
0
-
S

e
p

2
0
1
1

O
c
t
 
2
0
1
1
-
S

e
p

2
0
1
2

P
e
r
c
e
n
ta

g
e

B
a

r
n

e
t

L
o

n
d

o
n

E
n

g
la

n
d

S
o
u
r
c
e
: 
N

o
m

is
, 
O

f
f
ic

e
 f

o
r
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

5
2
.
0

5
4
.
0

5
6
.
0

5
8
.
0

6
0
.
0

6
2
.
0

6
4
.
0

6
6
.
0

6
8
.
0

7
0
.
0

7
2
.
0

Employment rate (%)

•E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 a
 d

ip
 

in
 2

0
0
8

•E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 d

ip
p
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 (

la
te

s
t 

d
a
ta

 r
e
le

a
s
e
)

B
ig

 d
is

p
a
ri
ty

 b
/w

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 o

f 

w
a
rd

s
 –

e
.g

. 
E

a
s
t 

F
in

c
h
le

y
 (

7
0
%

);
 

C
o
lin

d
a
le

 (
5
9
%

)

S
o

u
rc

e
:

O
N

S
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3

61



1
4

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

4E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

L
o

c
a
l 
u

n
it

s
 i
n

 V
A

T
 a

n
d

/o
r 

P
A

Y
E

 b
a
s
e

d
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

s
, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

0
-4

5
-9

1
0
-1

9
2
0
-4

9
5
0
-9

9
1
0
0
+

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

O
ffi

c
e
 f
o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

B
a
rn

e
t

L
o
n
d

o
n

E
n

g
la

n
d

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 i

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
w

h
o

 a
re

 s
e

lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 (

1
6
-6

4
),

 O
c
t 

2
0
1
1
-S

e
p

 2
0
1
2

2
4
.3

1
3

.8

0
.0

1
7
.3

0
.0

5
.0

1
0
.0

1
5
.0

2
0
.0

2
5
.0

3
0
.0

3
5
.0

B
a
rn

e
t

L
o
n
d
o
n

E
n
g
la

n
d

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

B
a

rn
e

t
L

o
n

d
o

n
E

n
g

la
n

d

S
o
u

rc
e
: 

N
o
m

is
, 
O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
ra

te
 o

f 
s
e
lf
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

in
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 &

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 a

s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r

3
%

2
4
.5

0
%

8
.6

0
%

2
7
.6

0
%

9
.5

0
%

1
6
%

8
.6

0
%

M
a

n
u

a
fa

c
tu

ri
n

g

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti
o

n

H
o

te
ls

/R
e

s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
/C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s

B
a

n
k
in

g
/F

in
a

n
c
e

/I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

P
u

b
li
c
 S

e
c
to

r,
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

H
e

a
lt
h

O
th

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
 h

ig
h
 %

 o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 i
n
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 

(i
n
c
. 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 H
e
a
lt
h
)

S
o

u
rc

e
:

O
N

S
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3

62



1
5

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

5U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

C
la

im
an

t c
o

un
t 

ra
te

s 
(1

6-
64

)

0.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

3.
0

3.
5

4.
0

4.
5

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8

M
ar

ch
 2

00
9

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

%
 o

f r
es

id
en

t w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
es

tim
at

es
 

B
ar

ne
t

Lo
nd

on
E

ng
la

nd

S
ou

rc
e:

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 W

or
k 

an
d 

Pe
ns

io
ns

, v
ia

 N
om

is
, O

ff
ic

e 
fo

r 
N

at
io

na
l S

ta
tis

tic
s

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
r
a

te
 (

1
6

+
)

02468

1
0

1
2

O
c
t 

2
0
0
7
-S

e
p

2
0
0
8

O
c
t 

2
0
0
8
-S

e
p

2
0
0
9

O
c
t 

2
0
0
9
-S

e
p

2
0
1
0

O
c
t 

2
0
1
0
-S

e
p

2
0
1
1

O
c
t 

2
0
1
1
-S

e
p

2
0
1
2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

B
a

rn
e

t
L

o
n

d
o

n
E

n
g

la
n

d

S
o
u
r
c
e
: 
F
ig

u
r
e
s
 f

o
r
 r

e
g
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

r
e
 f

r
o
m

 N
o
m

is
, 
O

f
f
ic

e
 f

o
r
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
; 
a
n
d
 f

ig
u
r
e
s
 f

o
r
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
r
it
ie

s
 a

r
e
 f

r
o
m

 O
f
f
ic

e
 f

o
r
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s

B
a
rn

e
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

e
s
c
a
p
e
d
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
. 

In
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
2
, 

8
.6

%
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 

b
e
lie

v
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 –

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 (

9
.2

%
) 

b
u
t 

u
p
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
, 

w
h
e
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

s
to

o
d
 a

t 
4
.8

%
 

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t r

at
e 

by
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

, O
ct

 2
01

1-
S

ep
 2

01
2

010203040506070

16
-1

9 
ye

ar
s

20
-2

4 
ye

ar
s

25
-3

4 
ye

ar
s

35
-4

9 
ye

ar
s

50
+ 

ye
ar

s

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

Ba
rn

et
Lo

nd
on

En
gl

an
d

So
ur

ce
: N

om
is

, O
ff

ic
e 

fo
r N

at
io

na
l S

ta
tis

tic
s

U
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

2
5
 

g
ro

u
p
s

S
o

u
rc

e
:

O
N

S
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3

63



1
6

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

6

3
. 
T

h
e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t

64



1
7

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

7P
ri

v
a
te

 R
e
n

ti
n

g
 u

p
, 
H

o
m

e
 O

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 d
o

w
n

T
e
n
u
re

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
- 

C
e
n
s
u
s
 1

1

0
%

1
0

%
2

0
%

3
0

%
4

0
%

5
0

%
6

0
%

7
0

%

E
n
fie

ld
H

a
rr

o
w

B
re

n
t

W
a
lt
h
a
m

F
o
re

s
t

O
u
te

r

L
o
n
d
o
n

B
a
rn

e
t

O
w

n
e
r-

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

S
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
t

P
ri
va

te
 r

e
n
ti
n
g

0
%

1
0

%

2
0

%

3
0

%

4
0

%

O
w

ne
d 

ou
tri

ght O
w

ne
d 

m
or

tg
ag

e
Sha

re
d o

w
ne

rs
hi

p
C

ou
nc

l r
en

te
d

O
th

er
 s

oc
ia

l r
en

te
d

Priv
at

e 
re

nt
ed

Li
vi

ng
 re

nt
 fr

ee

2
0
0
1

2
0
1
1

0
1

0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

B
ru

nsw
ic

k 
P

ar
k O

ak
le

ig
h H

ig
h 

B
ar

ne
t

E
as

t B
arn

et

H
ale Tot

te
rid

ge

G
ar

de
n 

S
ub

urb
M

ill 
H

ill C
hur

ch
 E

nd E
dg

w
ar

e U
nde

rh
ill

W
ood

ho
us

e C
opp

et
ts

W
est

 F
in

ch
le

y
E

as
t F

in
ch

le
y

G
ol

der
s 

G
re

en
H

end
on

W
est

 H
en

do
n C

hild
s 

H
ill B

ur
nt O

ak
C

olin
da

le

S
o

u
rc

e
:

C
e

n
s
u

s
 2

0
0

1
 2

0
1

1

65



1
8

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

8H
o

u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
 i

n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
o

v
e
re

d
 b

u
t 

s
a
le

s
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t…

..

T
o
p
 5

 w
a
rd

s
 m

e
a
n
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
 2

0
1
2

G
a
rd

e
n
 S

u
b
u
rb

£
1
,0

7
0
,4

0
7

C
h
ild

s
 H

ill
£
8
2
9
,2

3
6

T
o
tt
e
ri
d
g
e

£
6
2
0
,5

0
2

G
o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n

£
5
3
6
,5

5
8

F
in

c
h
le

y
 C

h
u
rc

h
 E

n
d

£
5
0
9
,3

2
2

B
o
tt
o
m

 5
 w

a
rd

s
 m

e
a
n
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

ri
c
e
s
 2

0
1
2

W
e
s
t 

H
e
n
d
o
n

£
3
4
2
,5

4
0

C
o
p
p
e
tt
s

£
3
4
1
,3

5
7

E
a
s
t 

B
a
rn

e
t

£
3
3
5
,2

0
8

C
o
lin

d
a
le

£
2
6
6
,5

5
1

B
u
rn

t 
O

a
k

£
2
3
2
,4

2
5

L
a

n
d

 R
e

g
is

tr
y
 f

o
r 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 &
 W

a
le

s

S
o

u
rc

e
:

L
a

n
d

 R
e

g
is

tr
y

66



1
9

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
1

9H
o

u
s

e
 p

ri
c

e
 t

o
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 r

a
ti

o
s

 –
o

u
te

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n

0
.0

0

2
.0

0

4
.0

0

6
.0

0

8
.0

0

1
0
.0

0

1
2
.0

0

1
4
.0

0

1
6
.0

0

1
9
9

7
1

9
9

8
1

9
9

9
2

0
0

0
2

0
0

1
2

0
0

2
2

0
0

3
2

0
0

4
2

0
0

5
2

0
0

6
2

0
0

7
2

0
0

8
2

0
0

9
2

0
1

0
2

0
1

1
2

0
1

2

B
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d
 D

a
g
e

n
h
a

m

B
a
rn

e
t

B
e
x
le

y

B
re

n
t

B
ro

m
le

y

C
ro

y
d
o
n

E
a
lin

g

E
n
fi
e
ld

G
re

e
n
w

ic
h

H
a
rr

o
w

H
a
v
e
ri

n
g

H
ill

in
g
d
o
n

H
o

u
n
s
lo

w

K
in

g
s
to

n
 u

p
o
n
 T

h
a
m

e
s

M
e
rt

o
n

R
e

d
b
ri
d

g
e

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 u

p
o

n
 T

h
a

m
e
s

S
u
tt

o
n

W
a
lt
h
a
m

 F
o
re

s
t

S
o

u
rc

e
:

D
C

L
G

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

T
h

e 
m

ed
ia

n
 B

a
rn

et
 h

o
u

se
 p

ri
ce

 i
n

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
13

 w
a

s 
£

3
7

6
,8

0
0

 -
1
1
 x

th
e

m
ed

ia
n

 i
n

co
m

e.

67



2
0

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

0A
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

ri
c
e
 ‘
d

ip
’ 
a
n

d
 s

u
b

s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
‘r

e
c
o

v
e
ry

’ 
re

fl
e
c
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 s

iz
e
s
..

S
o

u
rc

e
:

L
a

n
d

 R
e

g
is

tr
y

68



2
1

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

1P
ri

v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
re

n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 f
a
s
te

r 
in

 B
a
rn

e
t

!
B

a
rn

e
t 
lo

w
e

r 
q

u
a

rt
ile

 p
ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 £

3
0

4
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0

1
1

 a
n

d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
. 
 B

a
rn

e
t 
w

a
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 f
o

r 
O

u
te

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 t
h

e
 m

o
s

t 
e

x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
o

u
te

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h S
o

u
rc

e
:

V
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
 A

g
e
n
c
y

69



2
2

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

2R
e

n
ts

•C
o

u
n

c
il 

re
n

ts
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 3

0
%

 o
f 

m
e

d
ia

n
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 

re
n

ts

•M
e

d
ia

n
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
re

n
ts

 a
re

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

a
llo

w
a

n
c
e

 r
a

te
s
 i
n

 m
o

s
t 

a
re

a
s

S
o

u
rc

e
:

V
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
 A

g
e
n
c
y

70



2
3

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

3L
a
n

d
lo

rd
 p

o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
 c

la
im

s
 s

im
il
a
r 

to
 O

u
te

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n

L
a
n

d
lo

rd
 p

o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
 c

la
im

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

0
.0

0

1
.0

0

2
.0

0

3
.0

0

4
.0

0

5
.0

0

6
.0

0
Qtr1
Qtr2
Qtr3
Qtr4
Qtr1
Qtr2
Qtr3
Qtr4
Qtr1
Qtr2
Qtr3
Qtr4
Qtr1
Qtr2
Qtr3
Qtr4
Qtr1
Qtr2
Qtr3
Qtr4
Qtr1
Qtr2
Qtr3
Qtr4
Qtr1
Qtr2
Qtr3
Qtr4
Qtr1
Qtr2
Qtr3
Qtr4
Qtr1
Qtr2 
Qtr3
Qtr4

Qtr1(r)
Qtr2(p

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n

O
u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n

B
a
rn

e
t

B
re

n
t

E
n
fi
e
ld

H
a
rr

o
w

W
a
lt
h
a
m

 F
o
re

s
t

S
o

u
rc

e
:

M
in

is
tr

y
 o

f 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 –

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

71



2
4

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

4M
o

rt
g

a
g

e
 p

o
s

s
e

s
s

io
n

 r
a

te
s

 h
a

v
e

 f
a

ll
e

n

S
o

u
rc

e
:

M
in

is
tr

y
 o

f 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 –

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

72



2
5

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

5

4
. 

W
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
s

73



2
6

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

6L
H

A
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
…

..

•
G

re
a

te
s
t 
s
h

o
rt

fa
lls

 i
n

 L
H

A
 r

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
a

c
tu

a
l 
re

n
t 
is

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 

in
 o

u
te

r 
N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
(e

.g
. 
H

e
n

d
o

n
 a

n
d

 F
in

c
h

le
y
) 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

t 
In

n
e

r 
N

o
rt

h
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 w

a
rd

s
 (

e
.g

. 
G

o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n

).

S
o

u
rc

e
:

L
B

B
/D

W
P

74



2
7

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

7H
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

C
a

p

1
,0

7
8

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

re
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 c

a
p

 (
M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
 D

W
P

 d
a

ta
 )

. 

4
1

%
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 f
a

c
e

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

s
s
 t
h

a
n

 £
5

0
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 w

e
e

k
ly

 i
n

c
o

m
e

. 

5
8

%
 f
a

c
e

 a
 w

e
e

k
ly

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 
£

1
0

0
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o

n
e

 

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
c
h

ild

S
o

u
rc

e
:

L
B

B
/D

W
P

75



2
8

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

8N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o

m
e
s
 u

n
d

e
r-

o
c
c
u

p
a
n

c
y
 c

h
a
rg

e
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
 

in
 a

rr
e
a
rs

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 7

0
5

 B
a

rn
e

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

te
n

a
n

t 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
r-

o
c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rg
e

. 
4

4
9

 a
re

 i
n

 a
rr

e
a

rs
. 

S
o

u
rc

e
:

B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s

76



2
9

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
2

9A
v

e
ra

g
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

a
rr

e
a

rs

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
a

rr
e

a
rs

 f
o

r 
u

n
d

e
r-

o
c
c
u

p
y
in

g
 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 h
a

s
 g

ra
d

u
a

lly
 b

e
e

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

S
o

u
rc

e
:

B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s

77



3
0

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

0

5
. 

H
o

m
e
le

s
s

n
e

s
s

78



3
1

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

1H
o

m
e

le
s

s
 h

a
s

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
d

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t

B
a
rn

e
t 
h
a
s
 g

o
n
e
 f
ro

m
 r

a
n
k
 1

1
 o

u
t 

o
f 
1

9
 O

u
te

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 i
n

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 r
a

n
k
 7

 b
y
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 
A

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

h
a

v
e

 r
is

e
n

 f
ro

m
 1

.7
 t
o

 3
 p

e
r 

th
o

u
s
a

n
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

1
0

. 

H
o

m
e

le
s

s
 a

c
c

e
p

ta
n

c
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

S
o

u
rc

e
:

C
L
G

  
R

e
tu

rn
s
 

79



3
2

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

2In
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 r
o

u
g

h
 s

le
e

p
e

rs

S
o

u
rc

e
:

C
H

A
IN

 (
A

u
g
 2

0
1
3
)

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0
1

0
/1

1
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 2

0
1
2

/1
3

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
li

e
n

ts
 s

e
e

n
 r

o
u

g
h

 s
le

e
p

in
g

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l

a
s

t 
fo

u
r 

y
e

a
rs

7
0

 m
o

re
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
 

s
e

e
n

 s
le

e
p

in
g

 r
o

u
g

h
 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t 
in

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

th
a

n
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

.

S
p

ik
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 

la
rg

e
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 

R
o

m
a

n
ia

n
s
 s

e
e

n
 

s
le

e
p

in
g

 r
o

u
g

h
 o

n
 

tw
o

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 n
ig

h
ts

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 S
e

p
t 
2

0
1

2
 

a
n

d
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
.

80



3
3

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

3H
o

u
s

in
g

 s
u

p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

h
o

m
e

le
s

s
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c

e
d

0

1
0

0

2
0

0

3
0

0

4
0

0

5
0

0

6
0

0

7
0

0

8
0

0

2
0

0
8

/9
2

0
0

9
/1

0
2

0
1

0
/1

1
2

0
1

1
/1

2
2

0
1

2
/1

3

C
o

u
n
c
il

H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

P
ri
v
a
te

 R
e
n

te
d
 S

e
c
to

r

0

2
0
0

4
0
0

6
0
0

8
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
2
0
0

2
0
0
8
/9

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3

P
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s

A
c
c
e
p
ta

n
ce

s
T

A
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

lo
n

g
 

w
it
h

 a
c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

s
 

a
n

d
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n

T
h

e
 s

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

p
ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 

h
o

m
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

to
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
 h

a
s
 

re
d

u
c
e

d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 

S
o

u
rc

e
:

L
B

B

81



3
4

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

4

T
h

is
 m

e
a
n

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
s
 r

is
in

g

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

40
0

45
0

A
pr

-
12

M
ay

-
12

Ju
n

-
12

Ju
l-

12
A

ug
-

12
S

ep
-

12
O

ct
-

12
N

ov
-

12
D

ec
-

12
Ja

n
-

13
F

eb
-

13
M

ar
-

13

N
um

be
r 

of
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

U
ni

ts
 P

ro
cu

re
d 

ab
ov

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 

B
en

ef
it 

S
ub

si
dy

 C
ap

£
0

£
2
0
0
,0

0
0

£
4
0
0
,0

0
0

£
6
0
0
,0

0
0

£
8
0
0
,0

0
0

£
1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

£
1
,2

0
0
,0

0
0

A
p
r-

1
2

M
a

y-
1
2

J
u
n
-

1
2

J
u
l-

1
2

A
u
g

-
1
2

S
e
p

-
1
2

O
c
t-

1
2

N
o
v
-

1
2

D
e
c
-

1
2

J
a
n
-

1
3

F
e

b
-

1
3

M
a

r-
1
3

A
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
la

s
t 

y
e

a
r

 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 h

a
d

 s
p

e
n

t 

m
o

r
e

 t
h

a
n

£
1
m

a
b

o
v

e
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
s

id
y

 
le

v
e

l 
li

m
it

H
ig

h
e

r
 p

r
iv

a
te

 r
e

n
ts

 
m

e
a

n
s

 i
t 

c
o

s
ts

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 

m
o

r
e

 t
o

 p
r

o
c

u
r

e
 

te
m

p
o

r
a

r
y

a
c

c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r
 

h
o

m
e

le
s

s
 f

a
m

il
ie

s

82



3
5

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

5

6
. 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

83



3
6

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

6G
ro

w
in

g
 o

ld
e
r 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

•T
h

e
 o

v
e

r 
6

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

6
4

,6
9

0
 a

n
d

 i
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 

to
 b

e
 1

0
9

,8
4

9
 b

y
 2

0
4

1
-

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

4
1

%
.

•T
h

e
 o

v
e

r 
9

0
s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

is
 s

e
t 

to
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 

u
n

d
e

r 
3

,0
0

0
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

 t
o

 

a
lm

o
s
t 
1

2
,0

0
0

 i
n

 2
0

4
1

.

•
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
re

 

o
v
e

r 
9

0
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 t
h

a
n

 

8
5

-8
9

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 f
ro

m
 

2
0

3
5

.

S
o

u
rc

e
:

G
L
A

 P
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
 

84



3
7

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

7W
h

e
re

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s

 a
re

 l
o

c
a

te
d

A
c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 M

o
s
a

ic
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
p

ro
fi
lin

g
 t
o

o
l 
tw

o
 

a
re

a
s
 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 h
ig

h
 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 

a
re

 T
o

tt
e

ri
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
e

n
tr

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 n

e
a

r 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 C

h
u

rc
h

 E
n

d
 a

n
d

 

M
ill

 H
ill

.

S
o

u
rc

e
:

M
O

S
A

IC

85



3
8

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

8T
O

W
N

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 F
O

O
T

F
A

L
L

B
y
 A

g
e

 (
%

)

0
-2

0
2

1
-3

0
3

1
-4

0
4

1
-5

0
5

1
-6

0
o

v
e

r 
6

0

B
re

n
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
3
.9

2
8
.6

2
0
.8

1
6
.4

1
2
.9

1
7
.4

B
u

rn
t 

O
a

k
5
.4

2
1
.1

2
1
.3

1
8
.6

1
3
.5

2
0

C
h

ip
p

in
g

 B
a

rn
e

t
4
.3

1
8
.4

1
7
.6

1
9
.8

1
6
.1

2
3
.7

C
o

li
n

d
a
le

4
.4

2
4
.9

2
2
.4

1
8
.1

1
3
.2

1
7
.1

C
ri

c
k

le
w

o
o

d
3
.6

2
5
.9

2
3
.1

1
7
.6

1
2
.9

1
6
.8

E
a
s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y

2
.3

2
2
.6

2
2
.3

1
8
.4

1
3
.6

2
0
.8

E
d

g
w

a
re

5
.4

2
2

2
1
.3

1
8
.6

1
3
.6

1
9
.1

F
in

c
h

le
y
 C

h
u

rc
h

 E
n

d
2
.8

2
1
.4

2
2
.5

1
8
.7

1
3
.6

2
1
.1

G
o

ld
e

rs
 G

re
e
n

3
.4

2
7
.4

2
2
.4

1
6
.2

1
2
.9

1
7
.7

H
e

n
d

o
n

 C
e

n
tr

a
l

4
.2

3
0
.5

2
2
.7

1
6
.3

1
1
.9

1
4
.3

M
il
l 
H

il
l

4
.6

1
8
.1

2
0
.3

1
9
.3

1
4
.7

2
3

N
e
w

 B
a

rn
e
t

2
.3

2
1
.6

2
0
.9

2
0
.7

1
5
.3

1
9
.2

N
o

rt
h

 F
in

c
h

le
y

3
.5

1
8
.9

2
0
.1

1
9
.8

1
4
.9

2
2
.7

D
a

ta
 o

n
 m

o
b

ile
 

p
h

o
n

e
 u

s
a

g
e

 f
ro

m
 

T
e

le
fo

n
ic

a
  

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 a
re

a
s
 i
n

 

th
e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 h
a

v
e

 v
is

it
s
 

fr
o

m
 a

 h
ig

h
e

r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
o

ld
e

r 

p
e

o
p

le
.

S
o

u
rc

e
:

T
e

le
fo

n
ic

a

86



3
9

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
3

9G
ro

w
th

 o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 b

y
 w

a
rd •I

n
 2

0
1
1

 t
h

e
 w

a
rd

 w
it
h

 

th
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
6

5
 w

a
s
 

O
a

k
le

ig
h

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 C

h
u

rc
h

 a
n

d
 

G
a

rd
e

n
 S

u
b

u
rb

•A
ll 

w
a

rd
s
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

to
 s

e
e
 a

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

.

•
In

 2
0

4
1

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

p
o

p
u

lo
u

s
 w

a
rd

 f
o

r 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

v
e

r 
6

5
 w

ill
 b

e
 

M
ill

 H
ill

, 
th

e
n

 G
o

ld
e

rs
 

G
re

e
n

 a
n

d
 B

ru
n

s
w

ic
k
 

P
a

rk
.

S
o

u
rc

e
:

G
L
A

 P
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
 

87



4
0

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

0O
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g

 a
lo

n
e

 a
n

d
 t

e
n

u
re

M
o
re

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 l
iv

in
g
 

a
lo

n
e
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rn

 l
im

it
e
d
 

ill
n

e
s
s
.

T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
w

n
 

th
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
 b

u
t 
1
2
%

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
r 

7
5

s
 l
iv

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

te
d

 s
e

c
to

r.

S
o

u
rc

e
:

G
L

A
 P

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
s
/C

e
n
s
u

s
 

88



4
1

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

1C
h

ro
n

ic
 a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 o

f 
o

v
e

r 
6

5
s

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
5

2
0

2
0

%
 I

n
c

re
a
s
e

W
it
h

 a
 l
im

it
in

g
 l
o

n
g

-t
e
rm

 i
lln

e
s
s
  

2
0

,3
5
9

2
2

,5
9
3

2
4

,5
8
3

2
1

%

W
it
h
 l
o
n
g
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
tr

o
k
e
  

1
,1

0
1

1
,2

1
9

1
,3

4
5

2
2
%

W
it
h
 l
o
n
g
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

 h
e
a
rt

 a
tt
a
c
k
  

2
,3

2
9

2
,5

7
6

2
,8

3
1

2
2
%

W
it
h
 d

ia
b
e
te

s
  

5
,8

6
1

6
,5

1
4

7
,1

4
4

2
2
%

W
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
  

3
,7

7
8

4
,1

8
5

4
,7

4
3

2
6
%

W
it
h

 d
e

p
re

s
s
io

n
  

4
,1

7
9

4
,6

2
4

5
,0

2
5

2
0

%

U
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

 m
o
b
ili

ty
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

n
 o

w
n
  

9
,4

6
6

1
0
,4

0
9

1
1
,6

1
7

2
3
%

U
n

a
b
le

 t
o

 m
a

n
a
g
e
 a

 s
e

lf
-c

a
re

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

n
 o

w
n

  
1

6
,9

4
3

1
8

,6
0
8

2
0

,6
1
8

2
2

%

U
n

a
b
le

 t
o

 m
a

n
a
g
e
 a

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 t
a

s
k
 o

n
 o

w
n

  
2

0
,6

4
4

2
2

,6
7
9

2
5

,1
5
9

2
2

%

B
y
 2

0
2

0
, 
m

a
n

y
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 a
n

d
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 i
lln

e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 

m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 2
0

%
. 
O

v
e

r 
6

5
s
 l
iv

in
g

 w
it
h

 d
e

m
e

n
ti
a

 w
ill

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 2

6
%

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

D
e
p
t.
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h

89



4
2

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

2O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 f
a
ll
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 h
o

m
e
..

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
  

A
s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

th
o

s
e
 

fa
ll

in
g

 e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

 

fa
ll 

e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r 

1
8

,0
8

3
-

fa
ll 

tw
ic

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 
7

,8
1

7
4

3
%

a
tt
e
n
d
 A

/E
 

2
,5

6
7

1
4

%

c
a

ll 
a

n
 a

m
b

u
la

n
c
e

 
2

,5
6

7
1

4
%

s
u

s
ta

in
 a

 f
ra

c
tu

re
 

1
,2

8
3

7
%

s
u

s
ta

in
 f
ra

c
tu

re
 t
o

 h
ip

 
4

2
0

2
%

U
s
in

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 o
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
fa

lls
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 f
o

r 
a

 t
y
p

ic
a

l 
P

C
T
, 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 

e
x
tr

a
p

o
la

te
d

 f
o

r 
B

a
rn

e
t.

 B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
3

4
3

,0
8

8
 a

n
d

 a
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 6

5
+

 o
f 

4
7

,2
5

3

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

G
L
A

 P
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
 

90



4
3

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

3G
ro

w
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

c
a
re

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 a

g
e
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

•I
n

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 r
o

u
g

h
ly

 t
w

o
-t

h
ir

d
s
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t’
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 

c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 a

re
 a

g
e

d
 6

5
 o

r 
o

v
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
 t
h

ir
d

 a
re

 

a
g

e
d

 8
5

 o
r 

o
v
e

r.

•T
h

e
s
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
s
 m

a
y
 w

e
ll 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 a
s
 o

v
e

r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 
fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 4
,4

5
9

 m
o

re
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

g
e

d
 6

5
 o

r 
o

v
e

r 
(a

 9
.2

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

) 
a

n
d

 

1
,4

2
4

 m
o

re
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

g
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
8

5
 (

a
 1

7
.7

%
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

),
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
o

n
ly

 

8
.1

%
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

s
 a

 

w
h

o
le

.

S
e
rv

ic
e

U
s
e
rs

 i
n

 2
0
1
2

B
y
 2

0
1
7

B
y
 2

0
2
2

B
y
 2

0
2
7

A
ll 

U
s
e
rs

7
5
2
5

+
7
3
2

+
1
4
6
4

+
2
2
9
8

1
8
-6

4
2
6
6
3

+
1
9
0

+
2
7
0

+
3
5
2

6
5
-7

4
8
1
3

+
1
0
5

+
1
2
4

+
1
7
8

7
5
-8

4
1
6
3
6

+
1
0

+
2
2
0

+
4
1
4

8
5
+

2
4
1
3

+
4
2
7

+
8
5
0

+
1
3
5
4

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a

l
1
0
7
8

+
1
1
1

+
2
3
0

+
3
6
2

1
8
-6

4
3
5
4

+
2
5

+
3
9

+
5
1

6
5
-7

4
8
8

+
1
1

+
1
3

+
1
9

7
5
-8

4
2
1
1

+
1

+
2
8

+
5
3

8
5
+

4
2
5

+
7
5

+
1
5
0

+
2
3
9

N
u
rs

in
g

3
6
3

+
4
2

+
9
3

+
1
4
8

1
8
-6

4
2
8

+
2

+
4

+
5

6
5
-7

4
3
8

+
5

+
6

+
8

7
5
-8

4
1
0
2

+
1

+
1
4

+
2
6

8
5
+

1
9
5

+
3
4

+
6
9

+
1
0
9

91



4
4

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

4

7
. 
S

to
c

k
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

/E
m

p
ty

 

H
o

m
e

s

92



4
5

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

5N
o

n
 d

e
c

e
n

t 
h

o
m

e
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v

a
te

 s
e

c
to

r

B
R

E
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 m

o
d

e
ls

 

u
p

d
a

te
 2

0
0

9

S
o

u
rc

e
:

B
R

E

93



4
6

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

6In
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 t
h

e
rm

a
l 
c

o
m

fo
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v

a
te

 s
e

c
to

r

B
R

E
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 m

o
d

e
ls

 

u
p

d
a

te
 2

0
0

9

S
o

u
rc

e
:

B
R

E

94



4
7

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

7E
n

e
rg

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 C
e

rt
if

ic
a

te
s

S
o

u
rc

e
:

L
a

n
d
m

a
rk

 2
0

1
3

6062646668707274767880

EPC rating

EP
C 

rat
ing

s 
by

 P
os

tco
de

 D
ist

ric
ts 

in 
LB

 B
arn

et

EN
ER

GY
_R

AT
IN

G_
CU

RR
EN

T
EN

ER
GY

_R
AT

IN
G_

PO
TE

NT
IA

L

•
T

h
e
 E

P
C

 d
a
ta

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 m
o
s
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
re

 w
it
h
in

 1
0
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 f

u
ll 

e
n
e
rg

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l.
 

•
T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

c
it
e
d
 E

P
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 c
a
v
it
y
 w

a
ll 

in
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
m

 t
h
e
rm

o
s
ta

ti
c
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
.

P
o

s
t 
C

o
d

e
N

1
0

E
N

4
N

2
0

N
W

2
N

W
7

H
A

8
E

N
5

N
W

9
N

1
1

N
3

N
2

N
W

4
N

1
2

N
W

1
1

N
o
 o

f 
E

P
C

 

ra
te

d
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

1
3

2
3

3
4

3
1

7
3

4
7

4
6

1
6

5
4

7
8

1
5

5
3

4
3

5
5

8
7

4
9

6
7

2
3

8
0

6
6

3
0

95



4
8

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

8F
u

e
l 

p
o

v
e

rt
y

 &
 e

x
c

e
s

s
 w

in
te

r 
d

e
a

th
s

02468101214161820

20
06

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

Percentage households in fuel poverty

B
ar

ne
t

En
gl

an
d

In
 2

0
1
1
 1

0
.6

%
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t’
s
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
, 
o
r 

1
3
,6

2
8
 h

o
m

e
s
, 

w
e
re

 

fu
e
l 
p
o
o
r.

T
h
is

 i
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,
 s

ti
ll 

4
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f

o
r 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

.

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

90-…

91-…

92-…

93-…

94-…

95-…

96-…

97-…

98-…

99-…

00-…

01-…

02-…

03-…

04-…

05-…

06-…

07-…

08-…

09-…

10-…

EWD in Barnet

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 c

o
ld

 

h
a
z
a
rd

s
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 

g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t.
 

O
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 1
2
5
  

E
W

D
 e

v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r 

in
 B

a
rn

e
t 
o
v
e
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 2

0
0
1
 –

2
0
1
1

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 O
b

s
e

rv
a

to
ry

 d
a

ta

D
E

C
C

 F
u

e
l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s

S
o

u
rc

e
:

D
E

C
C

96



4
9

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
4

9M
o

re
 v

a
c
a
n

t 
d

w
e
ll
in

g
s
 t

h
a
n

 i
n

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s

A
ll
 v

a
c

a
n

t 
d

w
e

ll
in

g
s

, 
2

0
0

7
 t

o
 2

0
1

1

0

5
0
0

1
,0

0
0

1
,5

0
0

2
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
0

3
,0

0
0

3
,5

0
0

4
,0

0
0

4
,5

0
0 2

0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

C
o
u
n
t

B
a
rn

e
t

B
re

n
t

E
n
fi
e
ld

H
a
rr

o
w

W
a
lth

a
m

 F
o
re

s
t

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,
 f

ro
m

 L
a
n
d
 R

e
g
is

tr
y

S
o

u
rc

e
:

D
C

L
G

/L
a
n
d
 R

e
g

is
tr

y

97



5
0

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
5

0L
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 e

m
p

ty
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 s

u
rv

e
y

 2
0

1
2

O
c
c
u

p
a
n

c
y
 S

ta
tu

s
N

u
m

b
e
r

%

B
e

in
g

 D
e

m
o

lis
h

e
d

2
0

.1
6

%

O
c
c
u

p
ie

d
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 a

d
v
ic

e
 f
ro

m
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

4
8

4
%

R
e

o
c
c
u

p
ie

d
 

2
0

5
1

6
%

S
e

c
o

n
d

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y

1
0

.0
8

%

O
c
c
u

p
ie

d
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 n
o

ti
c
e

 b
y
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

1
0

.0
8

%

O
th

e
r 

re
a

s
o

n
1

0
.0

8
%

S
ti
ll 

e
m

p
ty

 (
a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
)

9
8

5
7

9
%

T
o

ta
l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 i
n

s
p

e
c
te

d
1

,2
4

3

S
o

u
rc

e
:

L
B

B
 

98



5
1

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
5

1

8
. 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 

D
e
m

a
n

d

99



5
2

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
5

2R
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 m
o

d
e
s
t 

d
e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 h
o

m
e
s
 

In
-m

ig
ra

ti
o
n

8
8
1
2

O
u
t 

-
m

ig
ra

ti
o
n

9
4
0
9

N
e
t 

M
ig

ra
ti
o
n

-5
9
7

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 f
o
rm

a
ti
o
n

2
2
7
7

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 d
is

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

1
0
3
7

N
e
t

+
1
2
4
0

N
e
t 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t

+
6
4
3

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
O

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 2

0
0
9

B
a
rn

e
t 

–
H

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 F
o

rm
a
ti

o
n

/D
is

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

100



5
3

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
5

3D
e

li
v

e
ry

-
h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
it

y
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
n

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s

D
e
li
v
e
ry

L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
la

n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

n
e
w

 h
o

m
e
s

%
 o

f 
L

P

T
a
rg

e
t

%
 o

f

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

B
a
rn

e
t 

1
0
,6

3
5

3
1
.5

1
%

1
8
.2

0
%

C
a
m

d
e
n

 
2
,5

0
0

7
.4

1
%

1
3
.2

0
%

E
n

fi
e
ld

 
2
,7

6
0

8
.1

8
%

1
6
.0

0
%

H
a
c
k
n

e
y
 

5
,7

7
5

1
7
.1

1
%

1
2
.7

0
%

H
a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

4
,1

0
0

1
2
.1

5
%

1
3
.2

0
%

Is
li
n

g
to

n
 

4
,6

1
0

1
3
.6

6
%

1
2
.2

0
%

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te

r 
3
,3

7
5

1
0
.0

0
%

1
4
.6

0
%

S
o

u
rc

e
:

N
L
H

P
 S

H
M

A
 2

0
1
0

101



5
4

S
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
a

rk
in

g
5

4B
a

rn
e

t 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 t

ra
je

c
to

ri
e

s M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 3

,9
0

0
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s

in
g

 

b
y
 2

0
2

0
/0

1

B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 T

ra
je

c
to

ry
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 -

 2
0
2
5
/2

6
 

0

1
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

4
0

0
0

5
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

7
0

0
0

2000/01
2001/02
2002/03
2003/04
2004/05
2005/06
2006/072007/08
2008/09
2009/10
2010/11
2011/12
2012/132013/14
2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/202020/20212021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
2025/26

Dwellings

P
a
s
t 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s

M
A

N
A

G
E

 -
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

ta
k
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t

o
f 
p
a
s
t/

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s

P
L
A

N
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 (

a
n
n
u
a
lis

e
d
)

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s

 2
0

0
4

 -
2

0
1

2
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
rs

 –
b

re
a
k
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 t

y
p

e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
e
d

ro
o

m
s

U
n

it
 T

y
p

e
1

%
2

%
3

%
4

%
5
+

%
T
o
ta

l
%

F
la

ts
2
2
6
7

3
3

3
8
1
3

5
6

7
1
2

1
0

4
4

1
7

0
6
8
4
3

8
3

H
o
u
s
e
s

1
1
0

8
1
7
1

1
2

5
6
6

4
1

3
8
2

2
8

1
6
0

1
1

1
3
8
9

1
7

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
n

it
s

2
3
7
7

2
9

3
9
8
4

4
8

1
2
7
8

1
6

4
2
6

5
1
6
7

2
8
2
3
2

1
0
0

B
a
rn

e
t'

s
 A

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 T

ra
je

c
to

ry
 -

 2
0
1
1
/1

2

2
4
4

1
0
4

2
4
5

2
7
0

3
1
2

2
1
7

9
1

1
1
9

5
1
2

3
0
8

7
6
8

2
9
3

3
1
9

5
9
6

5
1
1

4
5
0

3
7
5

3
7
5

4
8
5

5
4
7

6
2
4

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

20
00

/0
120

01
/0

220
02

/0
320

03
/0

420
04

/0
520

05
/0

620
06

/0
720

07
/0

820
08

/0
920

09
/1

020
10

/1
120

11
/1

220
12

/1
320

13
/1

420
14

/1
520

15
/1

620
16

/1
720

17
/1

820
18

/1
920

19
/2

020
20

/2
1

Y
e

a
r

Dwellings

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
P

a
s
t 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

A
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
s

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
P

ro
je

c
te

d
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s

C
a

p
a

c
it

y
 f

o
r 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 2

6
,0

0
0

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

h
o

u
s

in
g

 b
y
 2

0
2

5
/0

6

S
o

u
rc

e
:

L
B

B
 A

M
R

102



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 6 January 2014 

Subject Parking Policy Task and Finish 
Group 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary of Report The Committee are requested to make a decision as 
to whether or not the Parking Policy Task and Finish 
Group should proceed taking into account the current 
projected timetable for the internal Parking 
Improvement Project (which includes the 
development of a borough-wide Parking Policy)  

 

 
Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood, Overview and Scrutiny Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected All 

Key Decision N/A 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

N/A 

Function of Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Enclosures None 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Andrew Charlwood, Overview and Scrutiny Manager, 
020 8359 2014, andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 10

103



 

1. RECOMMENDATION  
 
1.1 That the Committee consider the information set out in the report and 

decide whether or not to proceed with the Task and Finish Group on 
Parking Policy given the current projected timetable for the Parking 
Improvement Project. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 7 October 2013, 

Members’ Item – Parking Policy (Councillor Alan Schneiderman) – the 
Committee RESOLVED that a Task and Finish Group be established (to 
commence when resources become available in the Scrutiny Office) to review 
the costs and benefits of reintroducing cash meters in Barnet high streets and 
car parks, with the review to take evidence from residents, traders and local 
businesses, and other Councils where cash meters have been maintained and 
removed. 

 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees must ensure that the work of Scrutiny 

is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 
3.2 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2013 – 2016 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the 
borough. 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, 
learning and well-being. 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None in the context of this report.  Any risk implications would be addressed in 

the context of the Task and Finish Group review should the Committee decide 
to proceed with the review. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Equality and diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in decision-

making by the council pursuant to the Equality Act 2010. This means the 
council and all other organisations acting on its behalf must have due regard 
to the equality duties when exercising a public function. The broad purpose of 
this duty is to integrate considerations of equality and good relations into day 
to day business requiring equality considerations to be reflected into the 
design of policies and the delivery of services and for these to be kept under 
review. 

 

104



 

5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as 
relating to matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the 
Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment 
and retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff 
development, equalities and health and safety. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 Any use of resources implications would be addressed in the context of the 

Task and Finish Group should the Committee reaffirm their decision to 
proceed with a review.  Gathering evidence from residents, traders and local 
businesses via a public consultation or a call for evidence is expected to have 
financial implications.  In order to resource this potential cost, the Governance 
Service would need to redirect costs currently within the existing service 
budget to support this activity.  
 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None. This report seeks a Committee decision as to whether to proceed with a 

Task and Finish Group review. 
 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 

2, Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution.  
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the 

 Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution).  
 The Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee has within its 
terms of reference responsibility: 

 

i) To have overall responsibility for monitoring and coordinating overview 
and scrutiny work across the authority. 

ii) To appoint scrutiny panels and task and finish groups needed to facilitate 
the overview and scrutiny function. 

iii) To coordinate and monitor the work of scrutiny panels and task and finish 
groups, including considering reports and recommendations and referring 
to the relevant decision-making body 

 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 In October 2013, Councillor Alan Schneiderman presented a Members’ Item to 

the Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee in relation to 
commissioning a scrutiny review into Parking Policy in the borough.  
Councillor Schneiderman submitted the following information with his request: 

105



 

 

• To ask the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny committee to 
consider setting up a quick fire Task and Finish Group to look into the 
costs and benefits of reintroducing cash meters in Barnet High Streets 
and Car Parks. 
 

• The TFG should take evidence from residents, traders and local 
businesses and other Boroughs/Councils where cash meters have both 
been maintained and removed.  

 
9.2 The Committee agreed to this request and in accordance with established 

practice, the Scrutiny Office have liaised with the relevant Delivery Unit 
Director and Lead Commissioner with a view to developing a Feasibility Study 
to enable the Members appointed to he Task and Finish Group to make an 
informed decision regarding the value of proceeding with an in-depth review at 
this time.   

 
9.3 In conducting investigations into this issue, the Scrutiny Office have been 

made aware that an internal Parking Improvement Project has been initiated 
which will be considering: 

 

• Parking Services – including signs and lines, enforcement, contract 
management and moving traffic violations; 
 

• Parking Policy – including developing a borough wide policy informed by 
focus groups; 

 

• Customer Experience – including end to end parking procedures and 
processes, traffic management orders and online transactions; and  

 

• Communications – including a Barnet Guide to Parking, web content, 
review of customer communications, focus groups, communications plan 
and public consultation 

 
9.4 The review commenced in mid-October and is currently on-going with the bulk 

of project activity taking place between November 2013 and January 2014.  
Cabinet are expected to approve the Final Draft Parking Policy in February 
2014 prior to a period of public consultation.  The Parking Improvement 
Project will be fully implemented by May/June 2014. 

 
9.5 As set out in paragraphs 2.1 and 9.1 above, the Committee approved that a 

standalone Task and Finish Group be commissioned to consider the cost and 
benefits of reintroducing cash meters into Barnet High Streets.  The on-going 
Parking Improvement Project includes: 

 

• The development of a borough-wide Parking Policy (which will include 
consideration of payment options); and  
 

• Consultation with residents, traders and local businesses 
 
9.6 Task and Finish Group reviews normally take a minimum of three months to 

complete; the timing of reviews varies based on the complexity of the subject 
matter and the extent to which consultation is required.   At the time of writing, 
some Member nominations are outstanding meaning that the first meeting of 
the Task and Finish Group is unlikely to take place until mid-January 2014.  As 

106



 

such, the timing of the Task and Finish Group is unlikely to dovetail effectively 
with the Parking Improvement Project.  

 
9.7 On the basis set out above, the Committee are requested to consider whether 

a Task and Finish Group would be the most appropriate framework for non-
Executive Member involvement in this Project.  There are other alternative 
options which may provide an opportunity for Scrutiny Members to input 
directly into a wider ranging, more strategic policy which is in development, in 
addition to considering the specific issue of cash meters as agreed by the 
Committee.  Alternative approaches include: 

 

• Holding a deliberative forum for non-Executive Members at an 
appropriate time in the Project to enable input to the Parking Policy; 
 

• Scrutiny of the Parking Policy via existing mechanisms (e.g. via a call-in 
to the Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee or via a 
committee report to the Budget & Performance Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee); or 

 

• Another method as proposed and agreed by the Business Management 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee, the commissioning body for the Task 
and Finish Group.   

 
9.8 The Committee’s instructions on whether to proceed with a Task and Finish 

Group review into Parking Policy are requested.   
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) KH 

 

107



108

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 6 January 2014  

Subject Task and Finish Groups – 
Recommendation Tracking 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report provides the Committee with an update on 
the implementation of recommendations made by 
Overview & Scrutiny Task & Finish Groups accepted by 
Cabinet. 

 

Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood, Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix A – Contract Monitoring and Community 
Benefit Task and Finish Group 

Appendix B – Early Intervention and Prevention Task 
and Finish Group 

Appendix C – Supply of Secondary School Places Task 
and Finish Group   

For decision by Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Contact for further information:  

Andrew Charlwood, Overview & Scrutiny Manager, Assurance Group – 0208 359 2014 

andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk  

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 11

109



  

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider and comment on the progress made in   

implementing Task & Finish Group recommendations accepted by 
Cabinet as set out in the Appendices. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet Resources Committee, 4 April 2012, Contract Monitoring and 

Community Benefit Task and Finish Group 
 
2.2 Cabinet, 4 April 2012, Early Intervention and Prevention Task and Finish 

Group 
 
2.3 Cabinet, 20 February 2012, Supply of Secondary School Places Overview 

and Scrutiny Panel 
 
 
3.      CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels and Task and Finish Groups 

must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 

3.2   The three key priorities set out in the 2013-16 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Supporting families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, 
learning and wellbeing,  

 

• Improving the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study,  

 

• Promoting responsible growth, development and success across the 
borough.  

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Failure to monitor the progress made in implementing recommendations 

made by Task & Finish Groups and Overview & Scrutiny Panels which have 
been accepted by Cabinet carries a reputational risk to the authority through a 
failure to demonstrate the outcomes from Overview and Scrutiny work. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the council has a legislative duty 

to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; 
advancing equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without; and promoting good relations between those 

110



  

with protected characteristics and those without.  The ‘protected 
characteristics’ are age, race, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy, and 
maternity, religion or belief and sexual orientation.  The ‘protected 
characteristics’ also include marriage and civil partnership, with regard to 
eliminating discrimination. 

 
5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as 

relating to matters within its remit, the responsibility of the Committee is to 
perform the Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role with respect to diversity and inclusiveness; 
and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment 
and retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff 
development, equalities and health and safety. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 Task and Finish Group reviews have the scope to consider value for money 

issues which identify how well the Council is managing and using its 
resources to deliver value for money and better and more sustainable 
outcomes for local people.   

 
6.2 Where there are financial implications linked to recommendations, these are 

worked through using Delivery Unit existing budgets, as identified by the Task 
and Finish Group or Scrutiny Panel for Cabinet to consider alongside 
recommendations. 

 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1 Under Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s executive 

arrangements are required to include provision for appointment of an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with specified powers, including the power 
to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive with 
respect to the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the 
executive. 

 
 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees are set out in 

the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution).   
 

111



  

8.3 Item 8 of Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee Terms of 
Reference states that its role is:   

 
“To coordinate and monitor the work of scrutiny panels and task and finish 
groups, including considering reports and recommendations and referring to 
the relevant decision-making body.”   
 
 

9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1    As stated at paragraph 7 above, under Section 21 of the Local Government 

Act 2000, the Council’s executive arrangements are required to include 
provision for appointment of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
specified powers, including the power to make reports or recommendations to 
the authority or the executive with respect to the discharge of any functions 
which are the responsibility of the executive.  In respect of the exercise of the 
Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s powers to 
coordinate and monitor the work of overview and scrutiny task and finish 
groups / scrutiny panels, it is good practice to monitor the progress and 
impact of recommendations made. 

 
9.2  In May 2009, the council adopted a ‘Task and Finish Group’ approach to 

some of their Overview and Scrutiny work.  Council agreed that Task and 
Finish Groups would be time-limited to ensure that recommendations were 
made to the relevant decision-making body in a timely manner.  On the whole, 
Task and Finish Groups have completed their work over a three-month 
period.  However, this timescale is flexible where circumstances mean that a 
review should be run over a shorter or extended period. 

 
9.3 Since May 2009, a total of 19 Task and Finish groups and scrutiny panels 

have concluded their work on the following topics:- 
 

• Enterprise in the Borough (3rd February 2010) 

• School Places Planning (3rd February 2010) 

• Advice Provision in the Borough (22nd February 2010) 

• Homelessness and Young People (12th April 2010) 

• Road Resurfacing (12th April 2010)  

• Recycling and Waste Minimisation (6th September 2010)  

• Remodelling Older People’s Housing with Support (20th October 2010) 

• Council’s Response to Cold Weather (20th October 2010) 

• Housing Allocations Overview and Scrutiny Panel (10th January 2011) 

• Domestic Violence (7th March 2011) 

• Fostering Recruitment (14th September 2011) 

• Secondary School Places Overview and Scrutiny Panel (9th January 
2012) 

• Health and Social Care Integration (4th April 2012) 

• Early Intervention and Prevention Services (Children’s Services) (4th April 
2012) 

• Contract Monitoring and Community Benefit (4th April 2012) 

112



  

• Carbon Footprint (4th April 2012) 

• Education Strategy Overview and Scrutiny Panel (18th June 2013)  

• Your Choice Barnet (27th November 2013) 
 

9.4 In order for the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
have an effective oversight of the work of Task and Finish groups, it is 
important for council delivery units (or external agencies) to evidence the 
extent to which recommendations accepted by the Cabinet (or external 
agency) have been implemented.  To this end, the Scrutiny Office requested 
that Delivery Units provide an update on the implementation of accepted 
recommendations at six-monthly intervals (from the date of reporting to 
Cabinet or external agency). 

 
9.5 Updates are now due in relation to the following task and finish groups and 

overview and scrutiny panels: 
 

• Contract Monitoring and Community Benefit Task and Finish Group 

• Early Intervention and Prevention Task and Finish Group 

• Supply of Secondary School Places Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
9.6 An update from delivery units in relation to the scrutiny panels/task and finish 

groups (referred to at 9.5 above) are set out in Appendices A to C. The 
Committee are requested to comment on information provided in the update 
report.  

 
9.7 Information contained within this report will also be circulated to Members that 

served on the relevant Task and Finish Group or Panel.   Those Members will 
be requested to feed back any comments that they have on the updates 
provided by delivery units to the Business Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Chairman and Scrutiny Office.  Any comments will be 
reported to the Committee to enable appropriate action to be taken. 

 

10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance JH 

Cleared by Legal  SW 

  
. 
 

113



114

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

  C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 O

n
e
 

C
o

m
p

le
x
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g
 /

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
  

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
: 

 
�

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
(w

it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
y
in

g
 a

n
d
  

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

);
  
 

�
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 &
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
(w

it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 /
  

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

/ 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
  

o
n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
tu

a
l 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 

v
e
n
d
o
rs

);
 a

n
d
  

�
 C

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 

lin
k
a
g
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 e
x
is

t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 n

o
m

in
a
te

d
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 &
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

4
 x

 I
n
te

ri
m

 S
u
p
p
lie

r 
R

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 (
S

R
M

) 
–
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

 
(P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

) 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
p
lo

y
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n
it
s
. 

F
o
rw

a
rd

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
la

n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

R
C

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 p

la
n
 f
u
tu

re
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

th
e
 s

o
u
rc

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
. 
  

 A
 c

e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 e

S
o
u
rc

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
is

 u
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
s
u
re

s
  

 A
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 
C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re

g
is

te
r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
lla

te
d
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
 (
D

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

).
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 e

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
tr
a
in

in
g
 t
o
o
l.
 A

ll 
n
a
m

e
d
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
e
 t
e
s
t 
a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 m

a
te

ri
a
l.
 A

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

o
lk

it
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

re
e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
. 
T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

o
th

e
r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 m

o
n
th

s
. 

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 
s
p
e
c
if
y
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

s
 n

e
e
d
s
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 l
a
rg

e
, 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

115



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

 O
ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

in
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
 

It
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 &
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
in

 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 
s
m

o
o
th

 p
h
a
s
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
 n

e
w

 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu

a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

. 
 

S
tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
 

s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 e

n
ti
re

 l
if
e
c
y
c
le

 a
re

 
n
o
t 
lo

s
t.
  
 

 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

m
o
re

 w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 o

n
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
in

k
a
g
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 S

R
M

 
a
n
d
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 G
re

e
n
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
p
lo

y
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n
it
s
. 
 

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a

ll 
k
e
y
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
s
p
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 r
is

k
, 

re
p
o
rt
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

. 
  

 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
C

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 D
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

lo
a
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
s
 e

it
h
e
r 
a
 

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
r 
T
a
c
ti
c
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
  
T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
d
e
p
lo

y
e
d
 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
(S

tr
a
te

g
ic

/T
a
c
ti
c
a
l)
. 

  

     

116



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

w
o
 

D
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
in

 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
 

c
e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 t
o
: 
e
n
s
u
re

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ie
s
 o

f 
s
c
a
le

; 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
tr
o
l 
fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

; 
a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 

te
a
m

 h
a
s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
k
ill

s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 /
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
  

re
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
, 
w

it
h
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 b
e
in

g
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 
th

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 f
a
lli

n
g
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
ir
 r
e
m

it
. 

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

A
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 
te

a
m

 o
f 
S

u
p
p
lie

r 
R

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 –
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

re
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 v

e
n
d
o
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 S

A
P
 

s
y
s
te

m
. 

 S
y
s
te

m
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 p

ro
c
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

n
 

a
d
 h

o
c
 m

a
n
n
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
O

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 
n
o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 r
is

e
n
 t
o
 

9
9
.9

%
 b

y
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 9

8
.8

5
%

 b
y
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r.
 

 L
in

k
a
g
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

, 
v
e
n
d
o
rs

 a
n
d
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

s
tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
. 

 A
 s

p
e
n
d
 m

a
p
 b

y
 v

e
n
d
o
r 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
/g

o
o
d
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
. 
A

 d
ra

ft
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
-1

3
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 
a
re

 b
e
in

g
 t
ra

c
k
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

. 
 A

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
la

n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 b

e
y
o
n
d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 k

e
y
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
, 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

    

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

117



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

 

U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 G
re

e
n
/A

m
b
e
r 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 w

a
s
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 b

y
 C

R
C

 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 
 

 In
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

o
l 
k
it
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll.
  

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
is

 c
e
n
tr
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 u
n
it
s
. 
  

 T
h
e
 r
e
v
is

e
d
 C

P
R

s
, 
if
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 s
tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 u
n
it
s
 a

s
 a

ll 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 
£
1
0
,0

0
0
 (
it
 i
s
 

p
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 £

2
5
,0

0
0
) 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 
te

a
m

. 
  
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 –

 A
ll 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
b
o
v
e
 £

1
0
k
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

d
v
e
rt
is

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
p
la

c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e

-t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

s
y
s
te

m
. 
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 d
e
v
o
lv

e
d
. 
 C

e
n
tr
a
l 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
to

o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
e
m

p
la

te
s
 t
o
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
 

         

118



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

 R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

h
re

e
 

E
a
c
h
 a

re
a
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a

 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

A
d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
 o

f 
n
o
t 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 s

ix
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 m

e
e
t 
fo

u
r 

ti
m

e
s
 p

e
r 
a
n
n
u
m

 t
o
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a
te

 a
n
d
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 

u
s
e
r 
w

it
h
  

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 

G
R
E
E
N
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 R
e
d
 

 P
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 w

e
 a

re
 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 
h
a
v
e
 a

 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
. 
D

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 J

u
d
ic

ia
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 w

e
 

w
ill

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
w

it
h
 C

a
p
it
a
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
1
3
  

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 w

h
ile

 w
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

a
p
it
a
 t
o
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 i
n
to

 a
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 -
 T

h
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 n

e
w

 
tr
a
n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

     

119



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 F

o
u
r 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t
o
: 

a
m

e
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

  
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 

o
u
tl
in

e
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

fr
o
m

 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 
 

�
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 
fa

c
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

H
e
lp

d
e
s
k
; 
 

�
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

‘B
u
s
in

e
s
s
’ 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
; 
  

�
 P

ro
v
id

in
g
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 t
o
 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f
o
ru

m
s
 o

n
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
  

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

4
L
o
n
d
o
n
 p

o
rt
a
l;
  

�
 I
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 n

e
w

 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

: 
 

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

A
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
ft
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
o
o
lk

it
s
, 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rf
a
c
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 w
id

e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
 

 T
o
 d

a
te

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
: 

 

•
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

m
o
re

 w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
e
m

a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 f
o
r 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t.
  

•
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
e
lp

d
e
s
k
 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
n
e
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m

. 
It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

te
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 h
e
lp

 d
e
s
k
 

w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
t 
u
p
. 

•
 

A
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,
 i
f 
fe

e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
s
 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 o

th
e
rs

 s
ill

 b
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
p
lie

r 
c
a
n
 u

s
e
 P

4
L
 t
o
 g

a
in

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

•
 

N
e
w

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

, 
w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
in

c
lu

d
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

, 
s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
u
b
-c

o
n
tr
a
c
to

rs
 –

 t
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
lis

m
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
rk

. 
 

 T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
lis

m
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 w

ill
 b

e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 

a
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 
V

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 
m

o
n
e
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
lo

c
a
lis

m
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
a
ili

n
g
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 p
ri
o
r 
to

 t
h
e
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 
n
e
w

 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

. 
 

  

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

120



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

 - 
V

e
n
d
o
rs

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
: 
lo

c
a
l 

jo
b
 o

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
  

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 B
a
rn

e
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 g

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 
w

o
rk

; 
a
n
d
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

  
tr
a
in

e
e
 o

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
; 
  

- 
A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
; 
a
n
d
  
 

- 
S

u
b
-c

o
n
tr
a
c
ti
n
g
 p

a
rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a
in

 (
w

h
e
re

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
) 
to

  
lo

c
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
  

 

U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 G
re

e
n
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
  

A
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 
 T

h
e
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 t
o
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
C

e
n
tr
a
l 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t’
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
p
la

n
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 g

a
in

 w
o
rk

 f
ro

m
 B

a
rn

e
t,
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

 g
ro

w
th

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

(C
u
s
to

m
e
r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 G

ro
u
p
) 
to

 C
a
p
it
a
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
. 
 K

e
y
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
re

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 

S
u
p
p
ly

 C
h
a
in

 C
h
a
m

p
io

n
, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 S

u
p
p
lie

r 
P

o
rt
a
l 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
. 
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 F

iv
e
 

S
te

p
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

in
s
ti
tu

te
 a

 ‘
c
u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
’ 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
  

c
o
u
n
c
il,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 
 

�
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
fr
o
m

 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 

s
te

p
s
  

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
  

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 /
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
a
n
d
 t
o
  

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

A
 w

e
e
k
ly

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
, 
w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a
s
. 
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
t 
9
9
.9

%
 b

y
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 9

8
.8

5
%

 b
y
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r.
 

 T
h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 a

 f
o
rt
n
ig

h
tl
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

c
a
lle

d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
te

e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 a

s
 i
t 
is

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 t
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

121



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

 o
u
tl
in

e
 t
h
e
 s

te
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

; 
  

�
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a

 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
 

s
ig

n
-o

ff
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu

a
l 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
; 
a
n
d
  

�
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 /
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
in

g
 s

e
t 

m
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

 

T
h
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 t
o
o
l 
fo

r 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 s

ig
n
 o

ff
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 G
re

e
n
/A

m
b
e
r 

 A
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
to

o
l 
k
it
. 
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 u
n
it
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 v

e
n
d
o
rs

 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 m

it
ig

a
te

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
b
u
ild

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
, 

th
a
t 
w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 h

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 r
e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
b
o
a
rd

. 
T
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 
 U

p
d
a
te

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 –

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 4

9
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

  
T
h
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 k
e
y
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

p
o
rt
e
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 a

s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
u
ts

o
u
rc

e
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to

 C
a
p
it
a
. 

 
        

122



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 A
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ix
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

A
P

 s
y
s
te

m
 

to
: 
 

�
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr
a
l 

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry

 f
o
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

; 
a
n
d
  

�
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
in

g
 

 

G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
: 
 

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
  
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 o

n
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

 U
p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 s
to

ri
n
g
 a

ll 
d
ig

it
is

e
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
R

e
p
o
s
it
o
ry

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 S

A
P

 h
a
s
 

th
e
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 u

p
lo

a
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
n
to

 m
e
m

o
ry

, 
th

e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 s

to
re

 a
ll 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 c
re

a
te

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

y
s
te

m
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
A

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 u

p
lo

a
d
 U

R
L
 l
in

k
a
g
e
s
 i
n
to

 S
A

P
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
. 

 A
ll 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

A
P

 a
re

 n
o
w

 b
a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 a

 S
A

P
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re

c
o
rd

. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 n
o
w

 r
o
u
ti
n
e
ly

 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 S

A
P

 r
e
p
o
rt
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
p
e
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 b

y
 v

e
n
d
o
r,
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

. 
 U

p
d
a
te

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

A
P
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 t
o
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
re

g
is

te
r 
a
n
d
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 
o
v
e
r 
£
2
5
k
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

. 
  

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re

c
o
n
c
ile

d
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr
a
c
ts

 o
v
e
r 
£
1
0
k
 a

s
 p

e
r 
th

e
 r
e
v
is

e
d
 

C
P

R
’s

, 
(r

e
v
is

e
d
 C

P
R

s
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
b
y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
 U

p
d
a
te

 O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 –

 S
A
P

 s
y
s
te

m
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 ‘
N

o
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t/
N

o
 P

O
/N

o
 P

a
y
 p

o
lic

y
’.
  
S

p
e
n
d
 a

n
a
ly

ti
c
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
k
e
y
 p

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

2
P
a
y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

w
e
e
k
ly

/m
o
n
th

ly
 a

n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
M

o
n
th

ly
 R

e
p
o
rt
. 

A
D

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 

    

123



124

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
T
a
s
k
 &
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 O
n
e
 

 F
a
m
ily
 P
ro
fi
lin
g
 a
n
d
 

fa
m
ily
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
s
 

th
e
s
e
 w
ill
 d
e
liv
e
r 
g
re
a
te
r 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il.
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
a
re
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

e
le
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
n
d
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

c
o
s
ts
/b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

      

  G
re
e
n
 

    

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

A
s
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
, 
fa
m
ily
 p
ro
fi
lin
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 i
s
 a
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
  
o
f 
o
u
r 

F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e
 a
re
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 f
a
m
ily
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 T
ro
u
b
le
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

 B
a
rn
e
t 
h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 3
2
2
 o
f 
o
u
r 
7
0
5
 t
ro
u
b
le
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 
  

 W
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
w
e
 c
a
n
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 o
u
r 
fu
ll 
c
o
h
o
rt
 i
n
 t
w
o
 r
a
th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 o
u
r 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 w
e
ll 
o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 d
o
 

th
a
t.
  
 

 W
e
 h
a
v
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 c
la
im
e
d
 f
o
r 
2
5
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 a
n
d
 h
o
p
e
 

to
 b
e
 m
a
k
in
g
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
la
im
 f
o
r 
c
2
0
0
 –
 2
5
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 J
u
ly
. 
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

F
a
m
ily
 p
ro
fi
lin
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 k
e
y
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
. 
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 (
i.
e
. 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 b
y
 o
u
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
),
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm
 c
o
s
t 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 “
tr
o
u
b
le
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
” 
a
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b
y
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t.
 

 W
e
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 r
e
d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
 o
u
r 
m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
fa
m
ily
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
iv
e
s
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
a
n
d
 l
o
w
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 
In
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 a
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 c
a
s
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
a
 s
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
1
0
9
 f
a
m
ily
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 w
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
a
s
e
s
 b
y
 

fo
c
u
s
in
g
 i
n
 o
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 w
e
 k
n
o
w
 w
e
 c
a
n
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
im
p
a
c
t.
 

   

N
ic
o
la
 

F
ra
n
c
is
/D
u
n
c
a
n
 

T
e
s
s
ie
r 
 

125



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 
S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
w
o
 

 T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 &
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 

o
f 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
y
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
re
s
s
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
ig
h
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 E
a
rl
y
 

In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

a
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

re
c
o
n
s
id
e
r.
 

 

    N
/A

 

    

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

  N
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
 

 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
h
re
e
 

 T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 N
u
rt
u
re
 

G
ro
u
p
s
 a
s
 

a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
m
e
th
o
d
 o
f 

in
te
rv
e
n
in
g
 e
a
rl
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 

        G
re
e
n
 

  

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
n
u
rt
u
ri
n
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

it
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
a
re
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 t
e
a
m
. 
W
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 F
a
m
ily
 L
in
k
’s
 N
u
rt
u
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
, 
a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p
a
re
n
ts
. 

 A
ll 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 F
a
m
ily
 L
in
k
 a
re
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 o
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 
o
n
lin
e
, 

s
o
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
’ 
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
o
 

p
a
re
n
ts
. 
P
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 r
e
fe
r 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

 It
 i
s
 a
n
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
s
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 o
f 
P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
. 
 P
a
re
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
 a
t 
a
 

N
ic
o
la
 

F
ra
n
c
is
/D
u
n
c
a
n
 

T
e
s
s
ie
r  

126



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

in
 t
h
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 

u
ti
lis
e
 t
h
e
ir
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 N
u
rt
u
re
 

G
ro
u
p
s
, 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 

b
e
in
g
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 

F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 a
t 
th
e
 

e
a
rl
ie
s
t 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 

le
v
e
l 
1
 o
r 
2
. 
 

 4
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 t
ra
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
t,
 B
ru
n
s
w
ic
k
 P
a
rk
, 
N
o
rt
h
s
id
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
, 
 D
e
a
n
s
b
ro
o
k
 J
u
n
io
r 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 M
a
n
o
rs
id
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
. 
B
ru
n
s
w
ic
k
 P
a
rk
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 h
a
v
e
 t
w
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
t 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
. 

 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
t 
fo
r 
W
o
o
d
c
ro
ft
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l.
 I
n
 M
a
y
 w
e
 

w
ill
 s
ta
rt
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
c
o
u
rs
e
 a
t 
T
u
d
o
r 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 

  3
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
s
-U
n
d
e
rh
ill
, 
W
in
g
fi
e
ld
 a
n
d
 

B
a
rn
fi
e
ld
. 
P
a
rk
fi
e
ld
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
t 
C
la
re
m
o
n
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l.
 

 S
in
c
e
 2
0
1
0
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 F
a
m
ily
 L
in
k
 N
u
rt
u
ri
n
g
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 5
 

ti
m
e
s
 t
o
 9
7
 p
a
re
n
ts
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 r
u
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
m
ily
 l
in
k
s
 n
u
rt
u
ri
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 T
w
o
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 r
a
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
te
rm
 a
n
d
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
3
 h
a
v
e
 r
u
n
 t
h
is
 t
e
rm
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
n
e
 e
v
e
n
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

F
o
u
r 

 T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 &
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 

o
f 
C
h
ild
 &
 A
d
o
le
s
c
e
n
t 

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(C
A
M
H
S
) 
in
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 &
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

    G
re
e
n
 

   

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

E
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 C
A
M
H
S
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 u
p
 t
o
 6
 w
e
e
k
s
 o
f 
e
a
rl
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 i
t.
  
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
p
a
th
w
a
y
 t
o
 T
ie
r 
3
 

C
A
M
H
s
 v
ia
 a
 C
A
F
 i
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

C
A
M
H
S
. 
 A
t 
3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
, 
8
6
 C
A
F
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ro
u
te
 i
n
to
 

T
ie
r 
3
 C
A
M
H
S
. 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 B
a
rn
e
t,
 E
n
fi
e
ld
 a
n
d
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

T
ru
s
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t.
  
O
n
 

1
8
th
 A
p
ri
l 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
 p
a
p
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
in
g
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

N
ic
o
la
 

F
ra
n
c
is
/D
u
n
c
a
n
 

T
e
s
s
ie
r 

127



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 u
rg
e
n
t 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

B
a
rn
e
t,
 E
n
fi
e
ld
 a
n
d
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

T
ru
s
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 

C
A
M
H
S
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

B
a
rn
e
t.
  

   

S
e
rv
ic
e
 f
u
tu
re
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
m
o
re
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 B
a
rn
e
t 
C
C
G
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
A
M
H
S
. 
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 
C
C
G
 a
re
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
 m
o
re
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 a
 k
e
y
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 W
e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
-2
0
1
5
. 
 T
h
e
 C
A
M
H
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
-c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
3
, 
w
it
h
 a
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
ro
m
 1
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

F
ro
m
 1

s
t  S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
, 
a
 j
o
in
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
C
lin
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

/c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 (
fo
rm
a
lis
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

‘s
e
c
ti
o
n
 7
5
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t’
- 
w
h
ic
h
 a
g
re
e
s
 a
 j
o
in
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
C
G
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il-
 a
llo
w
in
g
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 f
o
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
o
o
le
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
).
  

 T
h
e
 j
o
in
t 
te
a
m
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
 r
e
-c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
A
M
H
S
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 
o
ff
e
re
d
 b
y
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 C
C
G
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il-
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
 

jo
in
e
d
 u
p
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 F
iv
e
 

 T
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 

th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
m
m
o
n
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 (
C
A
F
) 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

(M
A
G
) 
in
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
ts
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

   G
re
e
n
 

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 M
A
G
 t
o
 i
ts
 S
L
T
 a
n
d
 n
o
 r
is
k
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 C
A
F
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 H
u
b
, 
(M
A
S
H
),
 d
u
e
 f
o
r 
la
u
n
c
h
 i
n
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 

 C
A
F

 

O
v
e
ra
ll 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
p
e
n
 C
A
F
s
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 6
6
%
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 

ti
m
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
A
F
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 m
o
re
 

e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 b
e
e
n
 a
s
s
is
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
lis
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
im
p
lif
y
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 F
o
rm
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
2
0
1
1
, 
a
n
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 

th
a
t 
th
e
 C
A
F
 i
s
 n
o
w
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 a
 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

to
o
l 
to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

N
ic
o
la
 

F
ra
n
c
is
/D
u
n
c
a
n
 

T
e
s
s
ie
r 

128



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 n
e
x
t 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
 

 

(C
A
F
s
) 
B
e
tw
e
e
n
 0
1
/1
0
/1
2
 –
 

3
1
/0
3
/1
3
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
A
F
s
 

s
te
p
p
e
d
-u
p
 t
o
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

1
5
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
A
F
s
 

c
lo
s
e
d
 a
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m
e
t 

5
1
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
A
F
s
 

s
te
p
p
e
d
-d
o
w
n
 

fr
o
m
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 t
o
 

C
A
F
 a
re
n
a
 *
 

7
2
 

 P
a
s
to
ra
l 
c
a
re
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
in
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 b
y
 f
a
r 
th
e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
C
A
F
 i
n
it
ia
to
rs
 (
3
8
8
 o
r 

5
2
%
 o
f 
a
ll 
o
p
e
n
 C
A
F
s
) 
a
n
d
 L
e
a
d
 P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 g
iv
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 a
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
re
 w
e
ll 
p
la
c
e
d
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
in
it
ia
to
rs
 

a
re
 I
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 W
o
rk
e
rs
 w
h
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
A
F
 a
s
 t
h
e
ir
 m
a
in
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

to
o
l,
 a
n
d
 t
h
ir
d
ly
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

 M
A
G
s
 

S
in
c
e
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
, 
th
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
h
re
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
M
A
G
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
. 
T
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

te
a
m
s
 w
it
h
in
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 a
im
 t
o
 t
ro
u
b
le
-s
h
o
o
t 
C
A
F
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 s
tu
c
k
, 
o
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
rs
. 

 O
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 c
a
s
e
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 t
h
e
 M
A
G
s
 s
in
c
e
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 (
a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
1
2
 

c
a
s
e
s
),
 h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
m
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

d
e
e
m
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 (
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 L
e
a
d
 P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
, 
o
r 
th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
N
E
E
T
, 
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 

s
e
e
m
 c
le
a
re
r 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 r
o
le
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
).
 

129



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 C
A
F

 

 O
v
e
ra
ll 
(a
s
 o
f 
1
s
t  N
o
v
 2
0
1
3
) 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
p
e
n
 C
A
F
 e
p
is
o
d
e
s
 s
ta
n
d
s
 a
t 

8
4
1
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 b
y
 3
7
%
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
(N
o
v
 2
0
1
2
),
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
A
F
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 m
o
re
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
. 
O
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
ro
u
n
d
 1
0
0
 n
e
w
 C
A
F
s
 i
n
it
ia
te
d
 p
e
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r.
 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 a
 m
o
c
k
 O
fs
te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
, 
6
 

C
A
F
s
 w
e
re
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
ta
il 
a
n
d
 v
e
ry
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
to
rs
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 C
A
F
s
. 
F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 

‘g
o
o
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 C
A
F
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 l
e
a
d
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
w
a
s
 w
e
ll 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
’.
 

 M
A
G
s
 

S
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
, 
th
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
v
e
n
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
M
A
G
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

te
a
m
s
 w
it
h
in
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 a
im
 t
o
 t
ro
u
b
le
-s
h
o
o
t 
C
A
F
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 s
tu
c
k
, 
o
r 
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
d
if
fe
re
n
c
e
. 
T
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
rs
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 w
e
ll 
a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
, 
a
n
d
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r,
 A
d
u
lt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
n
t 
a
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

w
h
e
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
, 
if
 a
 c
a
s
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 

h
e
lp
fu
l.
 

 O
u
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
A
F
 c
a
s
e
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 t
h
e
 M
A
G
s
 s
in
c
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 d
a
te
 (
a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 

2
2
 c
a
s
e
s
),
 1
6
 o
f 
th
e
m
, 
o
r 
7
2
%
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 t
o
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
a
s
 

th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
w
 d
e
e
m
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
(F
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 L
e
a
d
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
, 
o
r 
th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
N
E
E
T
, 
o
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 s
e
e
m
 c
le
a
re
r 
o
f 
th
e
ir
 r
o
le
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
).
  

   

130



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
ix
 

 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
h
o
w
 c
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 e
x
it
 t
h
e
 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 f
o
r 
a
g
re
e
d
 e
x
it
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 

 

  G
re
e
n
 

U
p
d
a
te
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

F
a
m
ily
 F
o
c
u
s
 p
la
n
 e
x
it
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 f
u
lly
. 
W
e
 m
a
k
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 c
o
n
ta
c
t.
 

 P
h
a
s
e
 2
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
a
c
h
e
s
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 w
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
 t
o
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
a
c
h
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
u
ld
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
s
o
m
e
 

o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
. 

 K
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
o
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 g
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
 f
o
r 
lo
n
g
e
r,
 (
e
.g
. 
w
h
e
n
 e
x
it
in
g
 f
a
m
ily
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
),
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
a
id
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
h
ils
t 
a
ls
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
llb
e
in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 p
h
a
s
e
 2
 p
ro
to
ty
p
e
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
a
c
h
e
s
 c
o
u
ld
 h
e
lp
 

p
e
o
p
le
; 
 

•
 
(r
e
)c
o
n
n
e
c
t 
w
it
h
 f
a
m
ily
, 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 m
o
re
 w
id
e
ly
, 
 

•
 
h
e
lp
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
in
d
 o
u
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

•
 
fi
n
d
 w
a
y
s
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 e
.g
. 
in
te
rg
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
 –
 

re
a
d
in
g
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
, 
te
a
c
h
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
 

•
 
re
g
a
in
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 

•
 
a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 h
o
u
s
in
g
  

 A
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 g
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
 -
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
 E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m
 y
o
u
th
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
c
o
m
p
le
x
 n
e
e
d
s
, 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r.
 

 T
h
is
 g
ro
u
p
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
h
a
s
e
 3
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
a
c
h
e
s
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 a
im
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 

N
ic
o
la
 

F
ra
n
c
is
/D
u
n
c
a
n
 

T
e
s
s
ie
r  

131



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 

 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 a
n
d
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
£
4
4
0
,0
0
0
 

 T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
a
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
t 
A
p
ri
l’s
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
.  

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 T
e
n
d
e
r 
(r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 

C
R
C
),
 H
o
m
e
 S
ta
rt
 B
a
rn
e
t 
w
e
re
 a
w
a
rd
e
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
o
a
c
h
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
ta
rt
e
d
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 ’
1
3
 w
it
h
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

fo
r 
H
o
m
e
 s
ta
rt
 t
o
 c
o
a
c
h
 6
0
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 o
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
  
  

 H
o
m
e
 s
ta
rt
 h
a
v
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
 c
le
a
r 
re
fe
rr
a
l 
ro
u
te
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 s
o
 f
a
r 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 4
2
  

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 a
n
d
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 3
6
 c
a
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 

fa
m
ily
 f
o
c
u
s
, 
B
a
rn
e
t 
h
o
m
e
s
, 
B
a
rn
e
t 
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
g
a
te
 c
o
lle
g
e
 a
n
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

 

132



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 C
 

 

S
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la
c
e
s
, 
C
a
b
in
e
t,
 2
0
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
  

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

(R
A
G
) 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

K
e

y
: 

G
re

e
n

 –
 f
u

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 

A
m

b
e

r 
–

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

R
e

d
 –

 n
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
la

y
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

O
n

e
 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 

fo
r 

s
e

c
o
n

d
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 

in
it
ia

lly
 b

y
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 t

o
 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

n
d
 

p
o

p
u

la
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 

 G
re
e
n
 

      

C
a

b
in

e
t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

A
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 t

w
o

, 
C

o
m

p
to

n
, 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 

C
o

p
th

a
ll 

a
re

, 
in

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
 t
o

 p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

tl
y
 

e
x
p

a
n

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o
l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

h
u

rc
h

 o
f 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 D
io

c
e

s
e

 o
n
 p

la
n

s
 

to
 c

lo
s
e
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 t
o

 e
x
p

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 a

n
d

 
S

t 
J
o

h
n

’s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
in

to
 a

n
 a

ll-
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l.
 A

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

in
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 c

o
n
fi
rm

s
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
e

e
k
 t
o
 p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

n
d
 p

o
p

u
la

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 w

o
rk

e
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 C

h
u

rc
h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 
D

io
c
e

s
e

 o
n

 p
la

n
s
 t
o

 c
lo

s
e

 S
t 
M

a
ry

’s
 H

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 t
o

 e
x
p

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
r 

S
t 

M
a

ry
’s

 a
n

d
 S

t 
J
o

h
n

’s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 i
n

to
 a

n
 a

ll-
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
c
h

o
o

l,
 w

h
ic

h
 

is
 s

c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 t
o

 o
p

e
n

 i
n
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

4
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
1
2

0
 p

la
c
e

s
. 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 w

e
n

t 
to

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

in
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 c
o

n
fi
rm

in
g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
e

e
k
 t
o

 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
a

n
d
 p

o
p

u
la

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 /
 

C
a

y
lin

 J
o

s
k
i-
J
e

th
i 
–

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

133



[T
y
p

e 
te

x
t]

 

  

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
c
e

s
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

t 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
T

h
e

 C
o

m
p
to

n
, 

C
h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
a

n
d

 C
o

p
th

a
ll,

 C
h

ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 h
a

s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 i
n

 S
e

p
t 
2

0
1

3
 w

h
ile

 C
o

p
th

a
ll 

is
 s

c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 p
la

c
e

s
 i
n

 S
e
p

t 
2
0

1
4

. 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

t 
T

h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
 a

n
d

 C
h

ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

. 
T

h
e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 f
o
r 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

t 
C

o
p

th
a

ll 
h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n

 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 
T

h
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 w

o
rk

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n
d

 T
h

e
 C

o
m

p
to

n
 a

n
d

 
C

h
ri
s
t 

C
o

lle
g
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
g
u

n
, 

w
it
h

 b
o

th
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t
a

k
in

g
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
 

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 (

6
0

 s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
o

ta
l)
 a

h
e

a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
. 

 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

t 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
T

h
e

 C
o

m
p
to

n
, 

C
h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
a

n
d

 C
o

p
th

a
ll,

 T
h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
 h

a
s
 t
a

k
e
n

 a
n

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 i
n

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

; 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
 h

a
s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
. 
 

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 g

ra
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 a

t 
T

h
e
 

C
o

m
p

to
n

, 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
p

th
a

ll.
  
T

h
e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 t
o
 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 C

o
p

th
a

ll 
re

s
u

lt
e
d

 i
n

 a
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 f
ro

m
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 (
T

fL
) 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

u
p

ils
 w

o
u

ld
 

tr
a

v
e

l 
to

 s
c
h

o
o

l.
  

A
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 T
fL

 a
n
d

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 g
ra

n
te

d
. 
 T

h
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
p

th
a

ll 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 a

s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

in
ta

k
e

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 t
o

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
5
 d

u
e

 
to

 t
h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

t 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
  
  

134



[T
y
p

e 
te

x
t]

 

  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

T
w

o
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
to

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
n

o
n

-
d

e
n
o

m
in

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a
n

d
 

c
o

-e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

n
d

 G
a

rd
e
n

 
S

u
b

u
rb

 a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

m
e

e
t 

th
is

 d
e
m

a
n

d
. 

T
h
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
th

e
s
e

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

a
n

e
l.
  

 G
re
e
n
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

T
h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
, 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
p

th
a

ll 
a
re

, 
in

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 p
ro

p
o

s
in

g
 t

o
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n
tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
. 
T

h
e

 a
im

 i
s
 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

tl
y
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 b

y
 3

0
 p

la
c
e

s
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a

r,
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 w

it
h

 T
h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

2
, 

C
h

ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 i
n

 2
0
1

3
 a

n
d

 C
o

p
th

a
ll 

in
 2

0
1
4

. 
T

h
e

 
(n

o
w

 e
x
p

a
n

d
e

d
) 

C
o
m

p
to

n
 h

a
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
 f
ix

e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 

n
a

m
e

d
 f
e

e
d

e
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n
 t

h
e
 N

2
 a

n
d

 N
3

 p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
 a

re
a

s
. 

C
h
ri
s
t’
s
 

C
o

lle
g
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
p

th
a

ll 
(s

in
g
le

 s
e

x
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
) 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 o
ff
e

r 
p

la
c
e

s
 t
o

 s
ib

lin
g
s
 f
ro

m
 e

a
c
h

 o
th

e
r’
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
n
o

n
-d

e
n

o
m

in
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 f
o

r 
p

u
p
ils

 o
f 
b

o
th

 s
e

x
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

re
a

. 
 A

 f
re

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

l 
fo

r 
a

 n
e

w
 n

o
n

-d
e
n

o
m

in
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

a
l 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
(t

h
e

 A
rc

h
e

r 
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
) 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 o
p

e
n
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
B

a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 
fr

e
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

lo
c
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
, 

a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

a
n

d
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

rs
 a

s
 t

h
e

y
 p

re
p

a
re

 t
o

 j
o

in
 t

h
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
fa

m
ily

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

C
h

ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 h
a

s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n
d

 C
o
p

th
a

ll 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

m
it
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
4

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
 h

a
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
 f
ix

e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 n

a
m

e
d
 

fe
e

d
e

r 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

 N
2

 a
n

d
 N

3
 p

o
s
tc

o
d

e
 a

re
a

s
. 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
a

n
d

 C
o

p
th

a
ll 

(s
in

g
le

-s
e

x
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
) 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 o
ff
e

r 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 

s
ib

lin
g
s
 f

ro
m

 e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r’
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 h
e

lp
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
n
o

n
-

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 /
 

C
a

y
lin

 J
o

s
k
i-
J
e

th
i 
–

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

135



[T
y
p

e 
te

x
t]

 

  

d
e

n
o

m
in

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 o

f 
b

o
th

 s
e

x
e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 E
a

s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

re
a

. 
 T

h
e

 A
rc

h
e

r 
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
, 

a
 n

e
w

 n
o

n
-d

e
n
o

m
in

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

-e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n
a

l 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 f
re

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l,
 h

a
s
 a

 s
it
e

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 i
n

 E
a

s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

 h
e
a

d
 t
e

a
c
h

e
r.

 T
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 3

1
4

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
S

e
p

t 
2

0
1
3

, 
w

it
h

 1
5

0
 p

la
c
e

s
 o

n
 o

ff
e

r.
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 
fr

e
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

lo
c
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
d

e
m

a
n

d
, 

a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 h
a

s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3
0

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n
d

 C
o
p

th
a

ll 
is

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 a
d

m
it
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
5

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
m

p
to

n
 h

a
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
 f
ix

e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 n

a
m

e
d
 

fe
e

d
e

r 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h
e

 N
2

 a
n

d
 N

3
 p

o
s
tc

o
d

e
 a

re
a

s
. 
C

h
ri
s
t’
s
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
a

n
d

 C
o

p
th

a
ll 

(s
in

g
le

-s
e

x
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
) 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 o
ff
e

r 
p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 

s
ib

lin
g
s
 f

ro
m

 e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r’
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 h
e

lp
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
n
o

n
-

d
e

n
o

m
in

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
p

la
c
e

s
 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 o

f 
b

o
th

 s
e

x
e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 E
a

s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
 a

re
a

. 
 T

h
e

 A
rc

h
e

r 
A

c
a
d

e
m

y
, 

a
 n

e
w

 n
o

n
-d

e
n
o

m
in

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

-e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n
a

l 
s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 f
re

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l,
 o

p
e
n

e
d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 i
n

 a
 s

it
e

 i
n
 E

a
s
t 

F
in

c
h

le
y
. 

 T
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 a

re
 B

a
rn

e
t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
is

 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 f

u
ll.

  
B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 
fr

e
e
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

lo
c
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

d
e

m
a
n

d
, 
a

 
ro

b
u

s
t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 p

ro
p
e

rt
y
. 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

T
h

re
e
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
re

m
a

in
s
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 n
e

w
 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

 G
re
e
n
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

T
o
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
h
e

a
d

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u
re

 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 /
 

C
a

y
lin

 J
o

s
k
i-
J
e

th
i 
–

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

136



[T
y
p

e 
te

x
t]

 

  

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 

d
ia

lo
g
u

e
 w

it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t’
s
 

fa
m

ily
 o

f 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 

fa
it
h

 b
o

d
ie

s
, 

e
n

a
b

lin
g
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

a
lly

 r
a

is
e

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 d
ia

lo
g
u

e
 o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 

tw
o

 g
ro

u
p

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 s

e
t 
u

p
. 

A
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
a
n

d
 P

la
c
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 t
o

 a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

ru
m

 o
n

 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t,

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
c
a

tc
h

m
e

n
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
; 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 F

o
ru

m
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t
h
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 
m

u
tu

a
l 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

h
a
re

d
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

/e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

in
 w

h
ic

h
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

c
o

lle
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 l
o

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
a

n
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 
S

c
h

o
o
l 

p
la

c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

ls
o

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

a
g
e

n
d
a

 i
te

m
 a

t 
m

e
e

ti
n
g
s
 

w
it
h

 h
e

a
d

s
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

T
h
e

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
a
n

d
 P

la
c
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 F

o
ru

m
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
u

n
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 a
n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
. 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 c

o
n

ti
n
u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

a
g
e
n

d
a

 i
te

m
 a

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 
h

e
a
d

s
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
. 
 

A
 p

ilo
t 

‘L
o

c
a

l 
H

e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 G

ro
u
p

’ 
w

a
s
 t

ri
a
lle

d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

 
o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 h

e
a

d
 t
e

a
c
h

e
rs

 i
n

 a
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 a
re

a
 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 o

n
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l.
 D

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

is
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 a

n
 a

ll-
d

a
y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
h

e
a
d

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
in

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

re
a

 g
ro

u
p

s
 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 l
o
c
a

l 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 

is
s
u

e
s
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 
T

h
e

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
a
n

d
 P

la
c
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 F

o
ru

m
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
u

n
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 a
n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
. 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 c

o
n

ti
n
u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

a
g
e
n

d
a

 i
te

m
 a

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 
h

e
a
d

s
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
. 

 F
ro

m
 t

h
e

s
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

s
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
it
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
te

m
p
o

ra
ry

/p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

t 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
. 
S

it
e

 v
is

it
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

w
a

y
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

 s
it
e

 s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o

r 
m

o
n
e

y
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 v
is

it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

 d
a

ta
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

it
e

s
 f
o

r 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

137



[T
y
p

e 
te

x
t]

 

  

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
2
0

1
4
 a

n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

ro
u
n

d
 o

f 
p
e

rm
a
n

e
n
t 

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
h

a
s
e

. 
 

 A
n

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 

‘L
o

c
a

l 
H

e
a
d

 T
e
a

c
h

e
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
s
’ 
to

o
k
 

p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

re
a

s
 o

n
 5

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

, 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
o

 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 f
a

c
e

d
 l
o

c
a

lly
 w

it
h

 b
u

lg
e

 c
la

s
s
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 b
u

lg
e

 c
la

s
s
e

s
 i
n
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

. 
F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 w

a
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
o

lu
ti
o
n

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

t 
th

is
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
d

. 
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

F
o

u
r 

 C
a

b
in

e
t 
a

re
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 

to
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
v
o

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 t

h
e

 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
in

 B
a

rn
e

t.
 

 A
m
b
e
r 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

tu
d

io
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
to

 w
id

e
n

 t
h
e

 b
re

a
d

th
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 B
a

rn
e

t.
 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 a

n
d
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 s

it
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u
g
h

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 
A

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d
 S

o
u

th
g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 D

im
e
n

s
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 

to
 a

 n
e

w
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
L

e
a
n

in
g
 D

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
. 

 M
e

a
n

w
h

ile
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 l
a
u

n
c
h
e

d
 a

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o
 o

ff
e

r 
1
6

-2
4

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

c
a

re
e

rs
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

in
te

rn
s
h

ip
s
, 
p
a

id
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

A
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d
 S

o
u

th
g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n

d
 D

im
e
n

s
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 

c
re

a
te

d
 a

 n
e

w
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 

p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
. 

 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 /
 

E
la

in
e

 R
u
n

s
w

ic
k
 –

 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

138



[T
y
p

e 
te

x
t]

 

  

In
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
2

, 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

la
u

n
c
h

e
d

 t
h

e
 ‘
P

la
tf
o
rm

s
’ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
1

6
-2

4
 

y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
c
a

re
e

rs
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

in
te

rn
s
h

ip
s
, 

p
a

id
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
. 

£
2

0
0

,0
0
0

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 

in
to

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
. 

 A
 n

e
w

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h

 s
ix

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 B
a
rn

e
t 
a

n
d
 

S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
n
o

n
 A

 L
e
v
e

l 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 w

o
u

ld
 w

a
n

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 a
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 t
o

 a
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 C
o

lle
g
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a

r 
1

2
. 

 A
n

 A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
 C

lu
b

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 i
n

 f
o

u
r 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 

p
re

p
a

re
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

o
rl
d

 o
f 

w
o

rk
. 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 b
id

 t
o
 o

p
e

n
 a

 S
tu

d
io

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 f
in

d
in

g
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o
n

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

  
 U

p
d

a
te

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 
T

h
e

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h

 B
a

rn
e

t 
a

n
d

 S
o

u
th

g
a

te
 

C
o

lle
g
e

 a
n

d
 D

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 h

a
d

 g
o

o
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
 A

 w
o
rk

s
h

o
p

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

d
 t

o
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
m

b
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 u
s
in

g
 

c
o

re
 f
u
n

d
in

g
. 

 T
h
e

 C
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 S
ix

th
 F

o
rm

 b
e

tw
e

e
n
 B

a
rn

e
t 

a
n
d

 S
o
u

th
g
a

te
 C

o
lle

g
e

 a
n
d

 
fo

u
r 

s
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 o

p
e
n

e
d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

w
it
h

 1
5

 y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 
H

e
n

d
o
n

, 
M

ill
 H

ill
, 

E
a

s
t 
B

a
rn

e
t 
a

n
d

 S
t.
 J

a
m

e
s
 S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l.
 T

h
e

 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
s
p
e

c
ia

lis
m

 a
re

 p
lu

m
b

in
g
 a

n
d

 m
e
d

ia
. 
It

 i
s
 t
h
e

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
x
te

n
d
 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
2

0
1
4

/1
5
 a

n
d

 f
iv

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

tt
e
n

d
e
d

 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r.
 

 A
 p

o
s
t-

1
6

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 e

v
e

n
t 
fo

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 p
a

re
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
fo

c
u

s
 

o
n

 A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s
h

ip
s
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r.
 A

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 F

E
 C

o
lle

g
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 

139



[T
y
p

e 
te

x
t]

 

  

a
ll 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
. 

A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

5
0

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
tt
e

n
d

e
d

. 
 

 In
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 s

u
b

m
it
 a

 b
id

 f
o

r 
a

 S
tu

d
io

 S
c
h
o

o
l 
in

 t
h

e
 E

F
A

 
M

a
y
 2

0
1

4
 b

id
d

in
g
 r

o
u
n
d

. 
W

e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
w

o
 s

e
c
o
n

d
a

ry
 h

e
a

d
s
 t
o

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
o
d

e
l 
fo

r 
B

a
rn

e
t.

 S
e

v
e

ra
l 

m
a

jo
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

re
 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 o

ff
e

r 
is

 c
o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
. 

 F
in

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

/o
r 

a
 s

it
e

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 

F
iv

e
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 
th

e
 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 
u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 

fi
n
d

in
g
 m

o
re

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

u
p

il 
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
U

n
it
. 
 

 A
m
b
e
r 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
: 

A
g
re

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 
S

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l,
 a

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 

T
h
e

 s
e
a

rc
h

 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

it
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 P
u

p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a

l 
U

n
it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e

t 
y
ie

ld
e

d
 a

n
y
 v

ia
b

le
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
e

 s
e
a

rc
h
 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g
. 

 U
p

d
a

te
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
3
 

D
fE

 h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 T

a
y
lo

r 
re

p
o

rt
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
in

g
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
h

e
a
d

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 a
b

o
u

t 
fu

tu
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
p

il 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
u

n
it
. 
 

 U
p

d
a

te
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 S
e

c
o

n
d
a

ry
 H

e
a
d

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 H
e
a

d
te

a
c
h
e

rs
 a

n
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
o

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 3

 P
R

U
’s

, 
to

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

ir
 

fo
rm

in
g
 a

n
 A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 M
u

lt
i-
A

c
a

d
e
m

y
 T

ru
s
t.
 T

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

it
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

v
ili

o
n

 S
tu

d
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 i
ts

 
s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
a

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

ly
 b

u
ilt

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
 

C
h

ri
s
 K

ie
rn

a
n

 –
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

 

140



 

 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 

Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood, Overview and Scrutiny Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Key Decision  

Enclosures 

No 

Appendix A – Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 2013/14 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

N/A 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Andrew Charlwood, Overview and Scrutiny Manager, 
020 8359 2014 andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date 6 January 2014 

Subject Business Management Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee Forward Work Programme 2013/14 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report outlines the Committee’s work programme for 2013/14 

AGENDA ITEM 12

141



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 2013/14 

work programme of the Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
(Appendix A). 

 
1.1.1 That the Committee consider the Advanced Notice of Executive Decisions 

(Appendix B).  
 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is 

reflective of the council’s priorities. 
 
3.2. The three priority outcomes set out in the 2013 – 2016 Corporate Plan are; 
 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the borough; 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, learning and 
well-being; and 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London Borough of 
Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as relating to 

matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the Overview and 
Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment and 
retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff development, equalities 
and health and safety. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 

142



 

7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
8 CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, Article 6 

of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution). 
 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme 

2013/14 indicates items of business previously considered by the Committee and 
forthcoming items. 
 

9.2 The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool, which will 
be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the inclusion of areas which 
may arise through the course of the year.  

 
9.3 The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of 

work within the programme.  
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 

143



144

This page is intentionally left blank



 

       
 

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t 
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
 –

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
  

 

 

  
 

C
o
n
ta

c
t:
 A

n
d
re

w
 C

h
a
rl
w

o
o
d
, 
0
2
0
 8

3
5
9
 2

0
1
4
, 
a
n
d
re

w
.c

h
a
rl
w

o
o
d
@

b
a
rn

e
t.
g
o
v
.u

k
   

 145



 

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

7
 

 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

3
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

C
a
ll-

in
s
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

a
ll-

in
s
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

t 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
/ 
C

a
b
in

e
t 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

4
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
: 

- 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 

- 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
; 

a
n
d
 

- 
S

a
le

 o
f 
th

e
 F

o
rm

e
r 
H

e
n
d
o
n
 F

o
o
tb

a
ll 

C
lu

b
 

S
it
e
 

 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

/ 
 

D
e
p
u
ty

 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

/ 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
n
d
 P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
 

N
/A

 

T
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
in

g
 –

 
E

a
rl
y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 U

p
d
a
te

 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n
it
s
 t
o
 R

A
G

 
ra

te
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 f
in

is
h
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 (
w

it
h
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 T

F
G

 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
3
) 
 

 

N
/A

 
F
a
m

ily
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 /
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
It
e
m

 –
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
Y

o
u
r 
C

h
o
ic

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
It
e
m

 
in

 t
h
e
 n

a
m

e
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
B

a
rr

y
 R

a
w

lin
g
s
 a

n
d
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 t
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 f
in

is
h
 g

ro
u
p
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
Y

o
u
r 
C

h
o
ic

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
A
d
u
lt
s
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

       146



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

1
6
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 I
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

P
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
o
lic

y
 

In
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
m

a
d
e
 a

t 
th

e
  

4
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
, 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

ill
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
in

d
in

g
s
, 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 P

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
P

o
lic

y
 i
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 o

f 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
ta

k
in

g
 a

 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 2

4
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
  

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 /
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

la
c
e
 

7
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

P
e
ti
ti
o
n
  

W
a
lk

S
a
fe

N
1
4
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
2
,0

0
0
 s

ig
n
a
tu

re
s
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 W

a
lk

S
a
fe

 N
1
4
 g

ro
u
p
 

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

S
a
ra

c
e
n
s
 E

v
e
n
t 
D

a
y
 C

o
n
tr
o
lle

d
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e
 U

p
d
a
te

 
  

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
f 
th

e
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

a
ra

c
e
n
s
 C

o
p
th

a
ll 

C
P

Z
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
e
a
s
o
n
. 

N
/A

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

R
e
g
u
la

to
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
It
e
m

 –
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

P
o
lic

y
 (
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 
A

la
n
 

S
c
h
n
e
id

e
rm

a
n
) 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
a
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fr
o
m

 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 
A

la
n
 S

c
h
n
e
id

e
rm

a
n
 t
o
 c

o
n
v
e
n
e
 a

 
ta

s
k
 a

n
d
 f
in

is
h
 g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
p
a
rk

in
g
 

is
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

T
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
s
 /
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
ls

 -
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
in

g
 

 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 

G
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
ls

 (
a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
ly

) 
a
t 
s
ix

-m
o
n
th

ly
 i
n
te

rv
a
ls

. 

•
 

C
a
rb

o
n
 F

o
o
tp

ri
n
t 
T
F
G
 

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

T
F
G

 

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

147



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

T
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
 

U
p
d
a
te

s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

1
8
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
a
ll-

in
 –

 P
a
v
ili

o
n
 W

a
y
 H

A
8
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 D

is
p
o
s
a
l 

T
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
a
 c

a
ll-

in
 f
ro

m
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 
A

lis
o
n
 

M
o
o
re

 i
n
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 d

is
p
o
s
e
 o

f 
P

a
v
ili

o
n
 W

a
y
 H

A
8
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

la
c
e
 /
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 L

e
a
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 
/ 
R

e
 

 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 B

re
n
t 
C

ro
s
s
 /
 

C
ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d
  

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

la
c
e
 /
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 L

e
a
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 
/ 
R

e
 

 

D
ra

ft
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

‘C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r’
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

  

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 D

ra
ft
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 ‘
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 T

o
g
e
th

e
r’
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

        

T
B

C
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 

148



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

 6
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

In
te

ri
m

 U
p
d
a
te

 R
e
p
o
rt
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

G
ro

w
th

 a
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

U
p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 k

e
y
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

e
lv

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 L

e
a
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 
/ 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 (
R

e
) 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

fo
r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 
B

a
rn

e
t 

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 
/ 
T
h
e
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
G

ro
u
p
 (
B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s
) 

 

T
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
s
 /
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
ls

 -
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
in

g
 

 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 

G
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
ls

 (
a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
ly

) 
a
t 
s
ix

-m
o
n
th

ly
 i
n
te

rv
a
ls

. 

•
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

la
c
e
s
 O

S
P
  

•
 

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 
T
F
G

 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t 
T
F
G

 
 

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 

G
ro

u
p
 

T
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

P
o
lic

y
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
 

     

149



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

1
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
. 

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

la
c
e
 /
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 
/ 
T
h
e
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
G

ro
u
p
 (
B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s
) 

 

2
3
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
th

e
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 f
o
r 
re

p
o
rt
in

g
 t
o
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
 

N
/A

 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
  

It
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
ll
o
c
a
te
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 N

o
rt
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

W
a
s
te

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 j
o
in

t 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
) 
 

  

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

la
c
e
 

150



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 D

is
o
rd

e
r 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 d

is
o
rd

e
r 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 
 

- 
N

e
w

 P
o
lic

in
g
 M

o
d
e
l;
 

- 
E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
; 
 

- 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 S

a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
1
 –

 2
0
1
4
; 
a
n
d
 

- 
U

p
d
a
te

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
  

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 

S
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 W

e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
/ 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

S
k
ill

s
, 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
  

 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 o

n
: 

•
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 S

k
ill

s
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

2
0
1
2
 –

 2
0
1
5
; 
a
n
d
 

•
 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

n
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
  
 

 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

la
c
e
 /
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 L

e
a
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

 

151



152

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

London Borough of Barnet Decisions Taken Under Executive Functions – Advance 
Notice of Proposed Items for Decision and Parts of Meetings which will not be held in 
public session (‘subject to exempt report’). 

 
This notice gives details of proposed decisions due to be taken under Executive functions, 
together with information as to whether any proposed decisions are subject to an exempt 
report, consideration of which will not be in public session. The document below is also 
indicative of the decisions which at this stage are intended to be classified as ‘key’. For the 
purposes of complying with the The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 however, all prospective decisions listed 
below are to be regarded as potentially key or potentially subject to a separate exempt report 
(not held in public session). 
 
Please note: this plan lists prospective decisions. The final agenda for each meeting, which 
may not include all prospective decisions listed for that meeting on this document, will be 
published five clear working days prior to the meeting on the authority’s website: 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk 
 

Title Description of proposed decision Cabinet Member 
Key 
Decision 

(Y/N). 

Subject 
to 
Exempt 
Report 

(Y/N). 

CABINET RESOURCES COMMITTEE, 16 JANUARY 2014 
Hendon Town Hall, The Burroughs, NW4 4BG 

 
Brent Cross/ 
Cricklewood 
Regeneration 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This report will seek to approve 

1) the changes to the terms and 
conditions of the Brent Cross PDA and 
the terms and conditions of the CRL 
Co-operation Agreement; and 
authorise the Chief Executive  in 
consultation with the Leader of the 
Council to approve the Brent Cross 
PDA and CRL Co-operation 
Agreements. 

2) approve procurement strategy to 
enable the Council to deliver the 
regeneration of the southern parts of 
Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration 
Area 

3) approve that the Council enter into 
negotiations with landowners to 
acquire land required in advance of 
any CPO.    

4) approve that the Council progress and 
fund the design and development work 
required to develop the business case 
and funding strategy for the 
Thameslink Station. 
 

 
Leader of the 
Council 

 

      Y Y 

 
Notice published: 19 December 2014 
 

153



This page is intentionally left blank

154


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	8 Interim Update Report on the Growth and Regeneration Programme
	Appendix 1 - Interim Annual Regeneration Report

	9 Housing Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Housing Strategy Evidence Base

	10 Parking Policy Task and Finish Group
	11 Task and Finish Groups / Scrutiny Panels - Recommendation Tracking
	Appendix A - Contract Monitoring and Community Benefit Task and Finish Group
	Appendix B - Early Intervention  Prevention (Childrens Services) Task and Finish Group
	Appendix C - Supply of Secondary School Places Overview and Scrutiny Panel

	12 Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A - Business Management OSC Work Programme
	Appendix B - Advanced Notice of Proposed Decisions under Executive Functions


